PUBLIC INSPECTION COPY

Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax

rm 990

Department of the Treasury

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private foundations)

P> Do not enter social security numbers on this form as it may be made public.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Senvice P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
A For the 2017 calendar year, or tax year heginning 09/01, 2017, and ending 08/31,20 18

C Name of organization D Employer Identification number
B checkitssicte | EMORY UNIVERSITY 58-0566256
prie] Doing business as
Name changs Number and street (or P.O. box if mail is not delivered to street address) Room/suite E Telephone number
Initial return 1599 CLIFTON ROAD, 3RD FLOOR 3.101 (404) 727-2827
.F,",‘:i,:f:::“ City or town, state or province, counlry, and ZIP or foreign postal code
Amended ATLANTA, GA 30322 G Grossreceipts$ 4,531,906, 153.
Application | F Name and address of principal officer: CLAIRE E. STERK, PRESIDENT H(a) Is this a group retum for Yes
pending subordinates?

1599 CLIFTON ROAD 3RD

| Tax-exempt status: 1 X Ism(c)(a) l 1501(c)(
J  Website: p HTTP: //WWW.EMORY.EDU

FLOOR ATLANTA, GA 30322
) « (nsetno) | | 4947a)t)or |

H(b) Are anl subordinates

[ 527

X | No
included? Yes No

If "No," attach alist. (see instructions)

H(c) Group exemption number P

K Form of organization: | X lCorporaiion | |Trust| |Association [ |oter » | L Year of formation: 183 6| M Stale of legal domicile: ~ GA
Part | Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization's mission or most significant activities: EMORY UNIVERSITY'S MISSION IS TO CREATE,
g PRESERVE, TEACH, AND APPLY KNOWLEDGE IN THE SERVICE OF HUMANITY AND
s TO PROVIDE EXCELLENCE IN PATIENT CARE.
5 2 Check this box P |:] if the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets.
3| 3 Number of voting members of the governingbody (Part VI, line1a) , . . . . . . . v v v v v v v e .. |3 40.
°,,5, 4 Number of independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line1b), . . . ... ... .. A | 39.
5| 5 Total number of individuals employed in calendar year 2017 (PartV, line 2a), . . . . . . . . .. ... . ... |5 23,511.
‘% 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate if NECESSANY), & . v v v v v v v s o e e e s v e e e me e A 10,502.
<| 7a Total unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C), iNe 12 . . « v v v v v v v v v v v v e e eaes. |7Tal -14,979,557.
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34 . . . . . . v . v v v . . . e s s ae e |TB] -20,946,380.
Prior Year Current Year
| 8 Contributions and grants (Part VIIL ine 1h) . & o v v v o o v e v s e e e ee e e 717,202,964.1,090,729,734.
g 9  Program service revenue (Part VIIL INE2G) , o o v v v v v v e e e e e e e ..|2,900,178,970.[3,118,517,868.
é 10 Investment income (Part VIIl, column (A), lines 3,4, and 7d), . . . . . o v o v v un .. . 422,534,845. 288,498,651.
11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), lines 5, 6d, 8¢, 9¢, 10c, and 11e), . . . . . .. . - 25,902,789. 33,503,229.
12 Total revenue - add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part Vil column (A), line 12). ...|4,065,819,568.4,531,249,482.
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines1-3) , . . . . ... .. e 385,082,731. 426,464,152,
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), lined) . . . . ... .. .. e e e e 0. 0.
¢|15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines 5-10), , , , , ., | 1,851,159,164.|1,996,686,509.
2|16 a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e), , . . . . . e e e e 461,788, 64,882.
;3( b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) p 25,442,231.
"117  Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d, 111-24e) . . . . . . . ... ... ... 1,490,774,942.11,625,048,278.
18 Total expenses. Add lines 13-17 (must equal Part IX, column (A), line25) , . . . ... ... 3,727,478,625.14,048,263,821.
19 Revenue less expenses. Subtract iNe 18 from NE 12 . v v v v v v v v v v o v e o o e a o 338,340,943, 482,985, 661.
5§ Beglinning of Current Year End of Year
g.‘_‘:ﬂ 20 Total assets (Part X, lne16) . . . ... ... T T 13213226155.| 14174398357,
ft‘fé 21 Total liabilities (Part X, line 26), . . . . .. . e 4,181,496,800.14,172,231,894.
25]22  Net assets or fund balances. Subtract line 21 from e 20, . .« + & o v & o v e v s 9,031,729,355. 10002166463.

o
Y]
H

| Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, | declare th

A have examined this retum, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of my
true, correct, and cga;plete Declarati

of preparer (qther than officer) 'is based on all information of which preparer has any knowledge.

knowledge and belief, it is

LY
o | WLl QL 1/ /.19
Sign griature of offi Ll Date '
Here } CHRISTOPHERJL. AUGOSTINI EVP BUS & ADMIN
Type or print name and title

Print/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date if [ PTIN
Paid  SHAWN M HUTCHINSON , CPA /4“ Ao f;??mlTw,ed P01048557
Preparer L - 6/20/19 =
Use Only Firm's name  p-KPMG LLP Fim'sEIN B 13-5565207

Firm's address P>300 NORTH GREENE STREET, SUITE 400 GREENSBORO, NC 27401 Phoneno. 336-433-7142
May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see instructions) , . ., . . . .. . oo v v v v v v n.. ]il Yes | INo

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions,

FILED ELECTRONICALLY

12:09:45 PM V 17-7.10

JSA
7E1010 1.000

31030K W6dR 6/20/2019

Form 990 (2017)
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Form 8868

(Rev. January 2017)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Application for Automatic Extension of Time To File an
Exempt Organization Return

P> File a separate application for each return.
P> Information about Form 8868 and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form8868.

OMB No. 1545-1709

Electronic filing (e-file). You can electronically fle Form 8868 to request a 6-month automatic extension of time to file any of the
forms listed below with the exception of Form 8870, Information Return for Transfers Associated With Certain Personal Benefit
Contracts, for which an extension request must be sent to the IRS in paper format (see instructions). For more details on the electronic
filing of this form, visit www.irs.gov/efile, click on Charities & Non-Profits, and click on e-file for Charities and Non-Profits.

Automatic 6-Month Extension of Time. Only submit original (no copies needed).

All corporations required to file an income tax return other than Form 990-T (including 1120-C filers), partnerships, REMICs, and trusts
must use Form 7004 to request an extension of time to file income tax returns.

Enter filer's identifying number, see instructions

Name of exempt organization or other filer, see instructions.

Employer identification number (EIN) or

Type or
print EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
File by the Number, street, and room or suite no. If a P.O. box, see instructions.

due date for

filing your 1599 CLI FTON ROAD, 3RD FLOOR, ROOM 3. 101

Social security number (SSN)

Fetlir“- tsee City, town or post office, state, and ZIP code. For a foreign address, see instructions.
Instructions.
ATLANTA, GA 30322

Enter the Return Code for the return that this application is for (file a separate application foreachreturn) . . . . . . . . . ... M
Application Return | Application Return
Is For Code |Is For Code
Form 990 or Form 990-EZ 01 Form 990-T (corporation) 07
Form 990-BL 02 Form 1041-A 08
Form 4720 (individual) 03 Form 4720 (other than individual) 09
Form 990-PF 04 Form 5227 10
Form 990-T (sec. 401(a) or 408(a) trust) 05 Form 6069 11
Form 990-T (trust other than above) 06 Form 8870 12
e The books are in the careof » CAROL DKISSAL

Telephone No. » (404) 727-2827 FaxNo. »
e |f the organization does not have an office or place of business in the United States, check thisbox _ , . . . . ... ... ... | 4 |:|
e |[f this is for a Group Return, enter the organization's four digit Group Exemption Number (GEN) N/ A . If this is

for the whole group, check this box

a list with the names and EINs of all members the extension is for.

. If it is for part of the group, check this box

> |_, and attach

1 I request an automatic 6-month extension of time until 7/ 15

4 - calendar year 20 or

> tax year beginning 09/ 01

for the organization named above. The extension is for the organization’s return for:

,20 19 |, to file the exempt organization return

2  If the tax year entered in line 1 is for less than 12 months, check reason: |:| Initial return |:| Final return

Change in accounting period

3a If this application is for Forms 990-BL, 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter the tentative tax, less any
nonrefundable credits. See instructions. 3al|$ N A

b If this application is for Forms 990-PF, 990-T, 4720, or 6069, enter any refundable credits and
estimated tax payments made. Include any prior year overpayment allowed as a credit. 3b|$ N A

¢ Balance due. Subtract line 3b from line 3a. Include your payment with this form, if required, by using EFTPS
(Electronic Federal Tax Payment System). See instructions. 3c|$ N A

Caution. If you are going to make an electronic funds withdrawal (direct debit) with this Form 8868, see Form 8453-EO and Form 8879-EO for payment

instructions.

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see instructions.

JSA
8F8054 1.000

Form 8868 (Rev. 1-2017)



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 2
Part Il Statement of Program Service Accomplishments
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPart il _ . . . . . . .. ... ... .........

1 Briefly describe the organization's mission:
SEE SCHEDULE O

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on the
prior FOrm 990 0r 990-EZ2, . . . . . . . . .t [ Jves [X]no
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O.

3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
Lo = e |:| Yes No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O.

4 Describe the organization's program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses. Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, if any, for each program service reported.

4a (Code: ) (Expenses $ 1,969, 343, 505. including grants of $ 427,780,508. ) (Revenue $ 1,029,117, 460. )
EMORY UNI VERSI TY
SEE SCHEDULE O

4b (Code: ) (Expenses $ 912,513, 150. including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 1,086, 655, 310. )
EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL
SEE SCHEDULE O

4c (Code: ) (Expenses $ 866, 719, 260. including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 1,002, 745,098. )
EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMWN
SEE SCHEDULE O

4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O.)
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses p 3,748, 575, 915.
;quzomooo Form 990 (2017)

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PACGE 5




EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Form 990 (2017) Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes | No
1 Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3) or 4947(a)(1) (other than a private foundation)? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule A. . . . . . . L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 X
2 Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see instructions)?. . . . . . . ... 2 X
3 Did the organization engage in direct or indirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to
candidates for public office? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,Partl. . . . . . . . . i i i i i v it e e e e e 3 X
4 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage in lobbying activities, or have a section 501(h)
election in effect during the tax year? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,Partll. . . . . . . . .. . v v v v v v e v 4 X

5 Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501(c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes," complete Schedule C,
T 5 X

6 Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors
have the right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts in such funds or accounts? If

"Yes," complete Schedule D, Partl. . . . . . . @ . i i i i it i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 6 X
7 Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,

the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Partll, . . . ... ... 7 X
8 Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part Il . . . . . . . . 0 i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 8 X

9 Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X; or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or

debt negotiation services? If "Yes,”" complete Schedule D, PartIV . . . . . . . . . .. .. ... 9 X
10 Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted
endowments, permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartV. . . . .. .. 10 X

11 If the organization's answer to any of the following questions is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI,
VII, VIII, IX, or X as applicable.
a Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?7 If "Yes,"

complete Schedule D, Part VI . . . . . i v i i i e st s e s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1lla X
b Did the organization report an amount for investments-other securities in Part X, line 12 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartVIl . . . . ... ... .. ... .. 11b X
¢ Did the organization report an amount for investments-program related in Part X, line 13 that is 5% or more
of its total assets reported in Part X, line 167 If "Yes," complete Schedule D, PartVIIl, . . . . ... ... ...... 1llc X
d Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that is 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part IX, . . . . . . . . . . .. @ . i ueueneno. 11d X
e Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X , . . . . .. 1lle X
f Did the organization's separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that addresses
the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Part X . . . . . . 11f X
12a Did the organization obtain separate, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If "Yes," complete
Schedule D, Parts Xland XIl. . . . . & o o @ @ i i i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12a X
b Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts Xl and XIl is optional . |12b X
13 Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)ii)? If "Yes," complete Schedule E. . . .. ... ... 13 X
14a Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States?. . . . . . . ... ... 14a| X
b Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking,
fundraising, business, investment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate
foreign investments valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Partsland IV, . . . . ... ... 14b X
15 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule F,Partslland IV . . . . . . . .. ... ... 15 X
16 Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes," complete Schedule F, Partsllland IV . . . . ... ... ... ... 16 X
17 Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on
Part IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part | (see instructions). . . .. ........ 17 X
18 Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on
Part VIII, lines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part Il . . . . . . . . . @ i i i i i it ittt e e e e 18 X
19 Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a?
If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part lll . . . . . . . . v v v i i e i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 19 X
Form 990 (2017)
JSA
7E1021 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PACGE 6



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 4
Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Yes No
20a Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes," complete ScheduleH, . . . ... ...... 20a| X
b If "Yes" to line 20a, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return?, . . . . . 20b X
21 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or
domestic government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes," complete Schedule |, Partsland Il, . . . ... ... 21 X
22 Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or for domestic individuals on
Part IX, column (A), line 2? If "Yes," complete Schedule I, Parts land Illl. . . . . . . . . .. o v it i v v 22 X
23 Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the
organization's current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated
employees? If "Yes," complete Schedule J . . . . . & . o i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 23 X
24a Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than
$100,000 as of the last day of the year, that was issued after December 31, 20027 If "Yes," answer lines 24b
through 24d and complete Schedule K. If "No," gotoline25a. . . . . . & v o v v i v i i it e e e e e e e e a s 24a| X
b Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception?. . . . . . . 24b X
¢ Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year
to defease any tax-exemptbonds? . . . . . . . L L e e e e e e e e e e 24c X
d Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? . . . . . . 24d X
25a Section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations. Did the organization engage in an excess benefit
transaction with a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part] . . . . ... .. ... 25a X
b Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization's prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ?
If"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part | . . . . o v i i it it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 25b X
26 Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any
current or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or
disqualified persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part Il . . . . . . . v v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e 26 X
27 Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee,
substantial contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled
entity or family member of any of these persons? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Partlll. . . . . . ... ... ... 27 X
28 Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L,
Part IV instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions):
a A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, Part1V . . .. ... 28a X
b A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes," complete
Schedule L, Part IV, . . v v vt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 28b| X
¢ An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof)
was an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes," complete Schedule L, PartIV. . . . . .. .. 28c X
29 Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M. . . . | 29 X
30 Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified
conservation contributions? If "Yes," complete Schedule M . . . . . . . . . i i i i it e e e e e e e e 30 X
31 Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes," complete Schedule N,
= 31 X
32 Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"
complete Schedule N, Part Il . . . . o o v o v i s i e e s s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 32 X
33 Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations
sections 301.7701-2 and 301.7701-3? If "Yes," complete Schedule R,Part| . . . . . . .. ... .00 33 X
34 Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part II, Il
orlV,and PartV, line b . . . . . i it i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 34 X
35a Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)?. . . . . . . . . .. ... 35a| X
b If "Yes" to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a
controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, Part V,line2 . . . .. 35b X
36 Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable
related organization? If "Yes," complete Schedule R, PartV,line2 . . . . . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. 36 X
37 Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that is not a related organization
and that is treated as a partnership for federal income tax purposes? If "Yes," complete Schedule R,
L 37 X
38 Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and
197 Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O. 38 X
Form 990 (2017)
JSA
7E1030 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartV . .. ... ... ... .........
Yes | No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . . .. la 26, 430
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a. Enter -0- if not applicable. . . . . . . .. 1b 0.
c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and
reportable gaming (gambling) winnings to prizewinners? . . . ... ... ... ... ..... e e e s 1c X
2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and Tax
Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered by this return. . | 2a 23,511
b If at least one is reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns? | 2b X
Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a is greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see instructions). . . . . ..
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year?. . . .. ... ... 3a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No" to line 3b, provide an explanation in Schedule O, . . ... .. 3b X
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority
over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial
=T oo 111 4a X
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country: p
See instructions for filing requirements for FINCEN Form 114, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
(FBAR).
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the taxyear?. . . . . . . .. 5a X
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or is a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? | 5b X
c If "Yes" to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T2. . . . . . . . . . . v o v i v i i i i e e s 5¢c
6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the
organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?. . . .. ... ... 6a X
b If "Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or
gifts were not taxdeductible? . . . . . . . L L e e e e s e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods
and services provided to the payor? . . . . . . . . . . L L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7a X
b If "Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . ... ... ... 7b X
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which it was
required to file FOrM 82827 . .« .t v i v it et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7c X
d If "Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed duringtheyear . . . . . .. ... ... ... | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit contract? | 7€ X
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . . . . 7f X
g If the organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as required? | 79
h If the organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a Form 1098-C?. . 7h
8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds. Did a donor advised fund maintained by the
sponsoring organization have excess business holdings at any time duringtheyear?. . . . . . .. ... .. .. .. 8
9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.
a Did the sponsoring organization make any taxable distributions under section4966?2. . . . . . .. .. ... .. .. 9a
b Did the sponsoring organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person?. . . . . . . . .. 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter:
a Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIIl, line12 . . . . . . . . .. .. .. 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club facilities. . . . . 10b
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter:
a Gross income from membersorshareholders. . . . . . . . . o v i o Lo s n e e e 1lla
b Gross income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem.). . . . . . . . . .. L Lo oo o e e 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 1041? [12a
b If "Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the year, . . . . . 12b
13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.
a Is the organization licensed to issue qualified health plans in morethanonestate?. . . . .. ... ... ...... 13a
Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O.
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization is required to maintain by the states in which
the organization is licensed to issue qualified healthplans . . . . .. .. ... ... ... ... 13b
¢ Enterthe amountofreservesonhand. . . . . . . . i v vt it ittt et et 13c
14a Did the organization receive any payments for indoor tanning services during the taxyear? . . . . . . .. .. ... 14a X
b If "Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No," provide an explanation in Schedule O . . . ... 14b
23 040 1.000 Form 990 (2017)
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Form 990 ( 2017) EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 6

Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a "No"
response to line 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O. See instructions.
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthisPartVl . . . . . ... oo v o v v v o oo oo v u

Section A. Governing Body and Management

Yes | No
la Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the taxyear . . . . . la 49
If there are material differences in voting rights among members of the governing body, or
if the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee or similar
committee, explain in Schedule O.
b Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are independent . . . . . 1b 39
2 Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with
any other officer, director, trustee, or key employee?. . . . . . . . . . L L e e e e e e 2 | X
3 Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct
supervision of officers, directors, or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person? . . 3 X
4 Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was filed?. . . . . . 4 X
5 Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization's assets?. . . . 5 X
6 Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . . . . . o o L L e e e e e s 6 X
7a Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint
one or more members of the governing body? . . . . . . . o i L L h e e e s e e e e 7a X
b Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members,
stockholders, or persons other than the governingbody? . . . . . . . . o v v i i i i n i e 7b X
8 Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during
the year by the following:
a The governing body 2. . . o i i i i i e s s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ga | X
b Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody?. . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 8b | X
9 Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at
the organization's mailing address? If "Yes," provide the names and addresses in ScheduleO. . . . ... .... 9 X
Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)
Yes | No
10a Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affiliates? . . . . . .. ... ... . o 0o oo 10a X
b If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? . . . 10b
11a Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing the form? . 11a| X
b Describe in Schedule O the process, if any, used by the organization to review this Form 990.
12a Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If "No," gotoline13 . . .. .. ... .. .. ... 12a| X
b Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
HSE 10 CONMICES? & v v v v ot e e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12b| X
c Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,"
describe in Schedule Ohow thiSWas done .« .« v« v v v i v i et e e e e e e et e e e e et e e 12¢| X
13 Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy?. . . . . . . . . v o v 0 v it e e s e e 13 | X
14  Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy?. . . . . . . . . .. .. ... .. 14 | X
15 Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
a The organization's CEO, Executive Director, or top management official . . . . . . .. .. ... . 00000 15a| X
b Other officers or key employees of theorganization . . . . . . . . . . . o i i it i e 15b | X
If "Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see instructions).
16a Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate in a joint venture or similar arrangement
with ataxable entity dUring the Year? . . « .« v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 16a| X
b If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization's exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . ... ...t u . 16b | X

Section C. Disclosure

17  List the states with which a copy of this Form 990 is required to be filed PGA'

18 Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Forms 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (Section 501(c)(3)s only)
available for public inspection. Indicate how you made these available. Check all that apply.

Own website |:| Another's website Upon request |:| Other (explain in Schedule O)

19 Describe in Schedule O whether (and if so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of interest policy, and
financial statements available to the public during the tax year.

20 State the name, address, and teleghone number of tthBerson who(gossesses the organl |o s books and records: p
STOPHER L. AUGCGSTI NI 1599 CLI FTON RD 3RD FL ATLANTA, 04-7 8

JSA Form 990 (2017)
7E1042 1.000
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Form 990 (2017) EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 7
Compensation of Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated Employees, and
Independent Contractors
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto anylineinthisPartVIl. . . . . . ... ... ... oo
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

la Complete this table for all persons required to be listed. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the
organization's tax year.

e List all of the organization's current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount of
compensation. Enter -0- in columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid.

e List all of the organization's current key employees, if any. See instructions for definition of "key employee."

e List the organization's five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee, or key employee)
who received reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former officers, key employees, and highest compensated employees who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

e List all of the organization's former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations.

List persons in the following order: individual trustees or directors; institutional trustees; officers; key employees; highest
compensated employees; and former such persons.

|:| Check this box if neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee.

©
(GY (C)] Position (D) E) F)
Name and Title Average (do not check more than one Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per | box, unless person is both an compensation compensation from amount of
week (list any| officer and a director/trustee) from related other
hours for os|s| ol xlex| the organizations compensation
related |2 S| 2| 3 f‘: 2€ % organization (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations| 32 | S| S| 3|2 & | 8| (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted| 8 i—’ % 3 & 3 and related
line) g g § -?D organizations
(1)KATHELEN AMOS 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(Z)FACUNDO L BACARDI 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(3)THO\/AS I. BARKIN 2.00
TRUSTEE 1.00| X 0. 0. 0.
(4)THO\/AS D BELL, JR 3.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(5)HENRY L BOVWDEN, JR 2.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(6)W LLI AM A BROSI US 1.00
TRUSTEE 1.00| X 0. 0. 0.
(7)JA|VES WALKER BURNS 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(8)SUSAN A CAHOON 3.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(g)SHANTELLA CARR COOPER 3.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(10)CRYSTAL EDMONSON 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(11)RO3ERT C GODDARD 111 4. 00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(12)JAV| ER C. GO ZUETA 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(13)SUE HAUPERT- JOHNSON 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
(14)C ROB HENRI KSON 1.00
TRUSTEE 0. X 0. 0. 0.
JSA Form 990 (2017)
7E1041 1.000
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E E g :é—,g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted | & & | & s|laz|” and related
line) £ |3 g|®8 organizations
c = @ 3
°le g
g
15) M DOUGLAS | VESTER 3.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
16) MUHTAR KENT 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
17) JOHN L. LATHAM 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
18) JONATHAN K LAYNE 4. 00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
19) STEVEN H. LI PSTElI N 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
20) DEBORAH A. MARLOWAE 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
21) WLLIAM T MCALILLY 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
22) LEE P. MLLER 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
23) JOHN F MORGAN 2.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
24) JOHN G RICE 4. 00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
25) RICK M RI EDER 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
1b Sub-total | e > 0. 0. 0.
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A |, . . ... ....... | 2 18, 636, 643. | 14, 008, 010. 2, 064, 578.
d Total (add liNeS 1D and 1C) « v v v v v v v v v e et e e e e e e e e »| 18, 636, 643.| 14,008, 010.| 2,064, 578.
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A (B) ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
ATTACHVENT 1

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

306

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:1

0:27 PM V 17-7.10
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
oaed |12212]3|28|38 %‘ organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) | _fromthe
:Zzw?:t[t)zj g% % = é }<OD 8- = (W-2/1099-MISC) ar?d related
line) g = |3 2 mg organizations
gl |8 B
|2 2
Qo
26) TERESA M Rl VERO 3.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
27) ADAM H. ROCERS 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
28) WLLIAM H ROCERS, JR 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
29) KATHERINE T ROHRER 3.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
30) TIMOTHY C ROLLI NS 2.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
31) STUART A. RCSE 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
32) CYNTH A M SANBCRN 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
33) DI ANE W SAVAGE 4. 00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
34) LEAH WARD SEARS 3.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
35) LYNN H STAHL 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
36) ROSA TARBUTTON SUMTER 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0 0 0.
1b Sub-total | e >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax

year.

(A

Name and business address

B)

Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received

more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019
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Form 990 (2017)
PAGE 12



EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E E g :é—,g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted | & & | & s|laz|” and related
line) 9‘5 § % mg organizations
37) JAMES E SWANSON, SR 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
38) M TCHELL A TANZMAN 3.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
39) MARY VIRG NI A TAYLOR 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
40) GREGORY J. VAUGHN 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
41) WLLIAM C WARREN, IV 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
42) B M CHAEL WATSON 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
43) MARK A. WEI NBERGER 1.00
~ TRUSTEE 0.] X 0. 0. 0.
44) CHRI STOPHER AUGOSTI NI 65. 00
~ EVP BUSINESS AND ADM NISTR | 2.00] X 662, 401. 0. 35, 802.
45) CHARLES C. BARNES, JR. 60. 00
T VP-HUMAN RESOURCES |« 0. X 873, 702. 0. 33, 459.
46) SUSAN CRUSE 65. 00
~SVP ADV. & ALUM ENGAGEMENT | 0. X 688, 711. 0. 50, 482.
47) VI NCE DOLLARD 65. 00
~ INTERIM SVP-COWUNI CATIONS | 0. X 298, 232. 0. 39, 968.
1b Sub-total | e >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax

year.

(A

Name and business address

B)

Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received

more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E E g :é—,g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted | & & | & s|laz|” and related
line) g g § % ® g organizations
48) ALLI SON DYKES JCOHNSON 60. 00
~ VP-UNI'VERSI TY SECRETARY | 0. X 376, 147. 0. 37, 110.
49) CAROL KI SSAL 60. 00
©SEE SCHEDULE J PART I11 [ 1 1.00] X 474, 694. 0. 47, 890.
50) JONATHAN S. LEWN, M 65. 00
" SEE SCHEDULE J PART 111~ | 5.00] X 701, 304. 1, 426, 297. 49, 218.
51) PAUL P. MARTHERS 65. 00
" INTERFM'SVP - CAWPUS LIFE |« 0. X 180, 333. 0. 25, 906.
52) DWGHT A. MCBRI DE 65. 00
T PROVOST/EVP T 1.00] X 510, 972. 0. 30, 166.
53) AJAY NAIR 65. 00
T SVP-CAMPUS LIFE T T 0. X 419, 401. 0. 109, 826.
54) JOSHUA NEWION 65. 00
~SVP ADV. & ALUM ENGAGEMENT | 0. X 0. 0. 0.
55) SRI NI VAS PULAVARTI 60. 00
WP - ITNVESTMENTS [ 0. X 0. 0. 0.
56) DAVI D B SANDOR 65. 00
T SVWP - COMUNICATIONS [« 0. X 0. 0. 0.
57) STEPHEN D SENCER 65. 00
© T SVP-GENERAL COUNSEL |1 1.00] X 640, 614. 0. 56, 578.
58) CLAI RE STERK 80. 00
T PRESIDENT T T 0. X 1, 088, 301. 0. 94, 835.
1b Sub-total | e >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A (B) ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received

more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Form 990 (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E E g :é—,g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted | & & | & s|laz|” and related
line) g g § % ® g organizations
59) MARY BETH ALLEN 30. 00
" CHIEF HR OFFICER - EHC | 30.00] X 0. 638, 417. 29, 773.
60) GREG ANDERSON 60. 00
~ VP/CFO EMORY UNI'V HOSP M DTOWN| ¢ 0. | X 147, 573. 219, 200. 48, 893.
61) CARLA CHANDLER 60. 00
~ VP/CFO EMORY UNI'V HOSPITAL | 1 1.00] X 281, 805. 83, 745. 41, 898.
62) M CHAEL ELLIOTT 60. 00
" DEAN OF EMORY COLLEGE ~ |« 0. X 477, 965. 0. 38, 782.
63) BRYCE GARTLAND, MD 60. 00
~ CEO EMORY UNI'VERSITY HOSPI TAL | 1 1.00] X 439, 282. 258, 819. 107, 190.
64) DANI EL OWENS 60. 00
- CEO EMORY UNIV HOSP. M DTOM | 1 1. 00| X 407, 024. 214, 383. 104, 303.
65) SHARON PAPPAS 30. 00
~ CHIEF NURSING OFFICER | 31.00] X 0. 638, 123. 89, 189.
66) DANE PETERSON 30. 00
~ HOSPITAL GROUP PRESIDENT | 32.00] X 0.| 1,117, 606. 150, 356.
67) DAVI D STEPHENS, MD 60. 00
T INTERFMDEAN - SOM | 4.00] X 835, 596. 166, 145. 30, 676.
68) VI KAS SUKHATME, MD 60. 00
~ DEAN, SCHOOL OF MEDICINE | 4.00] X 169, 144, 73, 158. 12, 825.
69) JAMES T. HATCHER 30. 00
~CFO EMORY HEALTHCARE =~ | 35.00] X 0.| 1,062, 746. 37, 194.
1b Sub-total | e >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A (B) ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received

more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Form 990 (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations 5 £ E E g :é—,g g (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted | & & | & s|laz|” and related
line) g g § % ® g organizations
70) DANIEL L. BARROW MD 10. 00
TPHYSICANT T T T B1.00] X 262, 008. 1, 257, 652. 48, 468.
71) WALTER J. CURRAN, MD 45. 00
TUPHYSICANT T T 15000 X 941, 312. 583, 060. 127, 521.
72) SHERVI N OSKOUEI , MD 0.
TPHYSICANT T T T 760.700] X 0. 1,761, 772. 42,932.
73) DAN REFAI, M 0.
TPHYSICANT T T T 760.700 X 12. 1, 773, 000. 47, 631.
74) JOHN M RHEE, MD 0.
TPHYSICANT T T T 760.700] X 18. 2,203, 130. 42,041.
75) MARY L CAHILL 60. 00
T FORMER OFFICER 0. X 3, 263, 180. 0. 36, 963.
76) S VWRI GHT CAUGHMVAN, MD 40. 00
" FORMER OFFICER ] 20.00] X 454, 137. 67, 415. 45, 989.
77) DELBRI DGE KI NG 45. 00
" FORMER OFFICER T 0. X 278, 691. 0. 40, 839.
78) ROSEMARY M MAGEE 45. 00
" FORMER OFFICER T 0. X 218, 384. 0. 36, 425.
79) RI CHARD MENDOLA 60. 00
" FORMER OFFICER T 0. X 628, 111. 0. 55, 456.
80) JAMES W WAGNER 40. 00
" FORMER OFFICER T 0. X 718, 391. 0. 34, 854.
1b Sub-total | e >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . .. ... ... ..., 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax
year.
(A (B) ©
Name and business address Description of services Compensation

Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received

2
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »
JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Form 990 (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 8
REWRYIl  Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)
(A (B) © (D) E) F)
Name and title Average Position Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per (do not check more than one compensation | compensation from amount of
week (listany [ DOX, unless person is both an from related other
hours for officer and a director/trustee) the organizations compensation
related 1S3 121 Q18|34 |2| organization | (W-2/1099-MISC) from the
organizations |2 | 2|8 | o | B3 2 (W-2/1099-MISC) organization
below dotted 8,% =R - and related
line) £ |3 g|®8 organizations
c =~ @ _g
glz| |°] 3
°le g
g
81) THERESA M LAZZO 45. 00
FORMER OFFI CER 0. X 299, 761. 0. 37, 621.
82) STUART ZOLA 45. 00
FORMER OFFI CER 0. X 341, 681. 0. 25, 407.
83) ROBERT J BACHVAN 60. 00
FORMER KEY EMPLOYEE 0. X 420, 699. 134, 057. 46, 634.
84) CHRI STIAN P LARSEN , MD 40. 00
FORMER KEY EMPLOYEE 20. 00 X 679, 241. 329, 285. 47, 303.
85) THOMAS J LAWEY, M 25. 00
FORMER KEY EMPLOYEE 20. 00 X 457, 816. 0. 46, 175.
1 SUD-Oal | | | . L >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A , ., . .. ... ... .. | 2
d Total (add lineslband 1C) . . . = & & & @ @ @ i i i it e e e e e e e e e e >
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than $100,000 of
reportable compensation from the organization » 2124
Yes | No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director, or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated
employee on line 1a? If "Yes," complete Schedule J for suchindividual . . . . . . . . . . v v v v i v it e e e 3 X
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greater than $150,000? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for such
INAIVIAUAT .+ . o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4 | X
5 Did any person listed on line 1a receive or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual
for services rendered to the organization? If “Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson ., ... ............ 5 X

Section B. Independent Contractors

1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization. Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization's tax

year.

(A

Name and business address

B)

Description of services

©
Compensation

2 Total number of independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received
more than $100,000 in compensation from the organization »

JSA
7E1055 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Form 990 (2017)
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Form 990 (2017) EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 9
UMl Statement of Revenue

Check if Schedule O contains aresponse or note to anylineinthisPart VI, . . . .. ... ... . . 000000,
(GY (C)] © (D)

Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from tax
function revenue under sections
revenue 512-514

£2| 1a Federated i la
5= a Federated campaigns . . . . . . ..
> .
52| b Membershipdues. .. ....... 1b
a < ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . ... .. ic 2, 683, 153.
o8 d Related organizations . . . . . . .. 1d
; E _—
2 D e Government grants (contributions) . . | 1e 614, 949, 563.
o
g ) f Al other contributions, gifts, grants,
<
2 5 and similar amounts not included above . | 1f 473, 097, 018.
ég g Noncash contributions included in lines 1a-1f: $ 10, 485, 918.
© h Total. Addlines 1a-1f . « + & v & v & v & v & v & u o 4 s > 1,090, 729, 734.
% Business Code
% 2a TUI TI ON AND FEES 611600 710, 471, 411. 710, 471, 411.
% b HOSPI TAL AND MEDI CAL SERVI CES 624100 2,274, 285, 354. 2,274, 285, 354.
(;J c AUXI LI ARY OPERATI ONS 611600 74, 480, 513. 74, 480, 513.
g d | NDEPENDENT OPERATI ONS 721110 24,837, 055. 13, 628, 556. 11, 208, 499.
% e OTHER EDUCATI ONAL/ CLI NI CAL/ RESEARCH 611600 34, 443, 535. 34, 443, 535.
S f  All other program service revenue . . . . .
a g Total. Addlines2a-2f . . . . & v & v i 4 i 4 e e e e > 3,118, 517, 868.
3 Investment income  (including  dividends, interest,
and other similaramounts). « « + v ¢ 4 v v e e aw e e s > 93, 476, 708. - 26, 188, 056. 119, 664, 761.
4 Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds . P 1, 140. 1, 140.
5 Royalties = « & v v v v v v e s e s e e e e e e e e s > 6, 665, 553. 6, 665, 553.
(i) Real (ii) Personal
6a Grossrents + « « « v v . 10, 886, 860.
Less: rental expenses . . .
¢ Rental incomeor (loss) . . 10, 886, 860.
d Netrentalincomeor(loss). . « « « « v @ v v v 00w . » 10, 886, 860. 10, 886, 860.
7a  Gross amount from sales of (i) Securities (ii) Other
assets other than inventory 196, 523, 498. -1,502, 692.
b Less: cost or other basis
and sales expenses . . . .
¢ Ganor(loss) - « . « . .. 196, 523, 498. -1,502, 692.
d Netgainor(loss) + « « v v v v & v v v 0 v v 0 0 e > 195, 020, 806. 195, 020, 806.
o | 8a Gross income from fundraising
2 - - 2, 683, 154. ATCH 2
S events (not including $§ ___<: 292, 29%.
>
& of contributions reported on line 1c).
5 SeePartIV,lne18 + + v v v v v v v . . a 534, 309.
<
IS Less: directexpenses . + .+ . 4 0 4. b 656, 671
Net income or (loss) from fundraising events.ATC’H 3 » - 122, 362. -122, 362.
9a Gross income from gaming activities.
SeePartIV,line19 , , . ... ..... a
Less: directexpenses . + .+ . 4 0 4. b
Net income or (loss) from gaming activities. . . . . . . > 0.
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances , . . ... ... a
b Less:costofgoodssold. . . . . . . .. b
¢ Net income or (loss) from sales of inventory, , . ., . . .. » 0
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
11a FI NANCI AL ADM NI STRATI ON 611710 3, 535, 935. 3, 535, 935.
b CONCESSI ONS/ SERVI CES 611710 12, 313, 225. 12, 313, 225.
c NETWORK AND COMMUNI CATI ONS 611710 224,018. 224,018.
d Allotherrevenue « . . v v ¢ v v v o .
e Total. Addlines 11a-11d « « « « « ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ 0 v 0 0 v v s > 16, 073, 178.
12 Total revenue. Seeinstructions. . . « v« v & & & & &« . . | 2 4,531, 249, 482. 3, 107, 309, 369. - 14,979, 557. 348, 189, 936.
JSA

Form 990 (2017)

7E1051 1.000
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Form 990 (2017) EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 10
Statement of Functional Expenses
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns. All other organizations must complete column (A).
Check if Schedule O contains a response or noteto any lineinthisPartIX ., . ... ... ... ...,
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, 7b, Total eﬁpenses Progra(nB1)service Managt(e%)ent and Func(llrja)ising
8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIIL. expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to domestic organizations
and domestic governments. See Part IV, line21 . . . . 1141 0341 932. 114, 0341 932.
2 Grants and other assistance to domestic
individuals. See Part IV, line22 . . . ... ... 295, 437, 212. 295, 437, 212.
3 Grants and other assistance to foreign
organizations, foreign governments, and foreign
individuals. See Part IV, lines 15 and 16 _ _ _ . . 16, 992, 008. 16, 992, 008.
4 Benefits paid toor formembers , , . . .. ... 0.
5 Compensation of current officers, directors,
trustees, and key employees . . . . . . .. .. 18, 936, 623. 11, 842, 614. 5, 831, 691. 1, 262, 318.
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified
persons (as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and
persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B) , . . . . . 4, 116, 529. 4, 116, 529.
7 Other salaries andwages . . . . . . . . . . . . 1,496, 025, 683. |1, 376, 343, 628. | 104, 721, 798. 14, 960, 257.
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include
section 401(k) and 403(b) employer contributions) 110, 557, 057. 101, 712, 492. 7,738, 994. 1,105, 571.
9 Other employee benefits » » « » « « « + + .+ - . 260, 549, 223.| 239, 705, 285. 18, 238, 446. 2, 605, 492,
10 PAYIONEXES + « « v v v e e e e e 106, 501, 394. 97, 981, 282. 7, 455, 098. 1, 065, 014.
11 Fees for services (non-employees):
a Management _ . . . . .. ... ... .... 24,442, 238. 24,442, 238.
bLegal . . . v 10, 942, 421. 9,191, 634. 1, 641, 363. 109, 424.
cAccounting . . .. ... ... ... ..., 778, 032. 778, 032.
dLlobbying . ... ..., ... ... 169, 496. 169, 496.
e Professional fundraising services. See Part IV, line 17, 641 882. 641 882.
f Investment managementfees , ., ... ... 1, 546, 958. 1, 546, 958.
g Other. (if line 11g amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 11g expenses on Schedule O.)s + = & « 117’ 283’ 784. 66’ 258’ 116. 49’ 865’ 994. 1’ 159’ 674.
12 Advertising and promotion _ , . . . ... ... 2, 288, 506. 2,174, 081. 114, 425.
13 Office expenses . . v v o v v oo 15, 925, 102. 15, 606, 600. 159, 251. 159, 251.
14 Information technology. . . . . ... ... .. 12,108, 726. 9, 808, 068. 2,179, 571. 121, 087.
15 Royalties. . . ... .............. 0.
16 Occupancy . . . . . . .. 77,768,043 68, 435, 878. 8, 554, 485. 777, 680.
17 Travel . . o 34,193, 021. 28,722,138, 3,419, 302. 2,051, 581.
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses
for any federal, state, or local public officials 0.
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings , . ., . 25, 752, 421. 25,752, 421.
20 Interest . . . .. u i 65, 981, 215. 62, 682, 154. 3,299, 061.
21 Payments toaffiiates. . . . ... ... .. .. 0.
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization , , , , 212,154, 891. 203, 668, 695. 8,486, 196.
23 Insurance . . . ... ... 21, 928, 542. 21,928, 542.
24 Other expenses. Itemize expenses not covered
above (List miscellaneous expenses in line 24e. If
line 24e amount exceeds 10% of line 25, column
(A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O.)
2EDUCATI ONAL 6, 510, 304. 6, 510, 304.
p, MVEDI CAL 677,202, 102. 677,202, 102.
<PROVI SI ON FOR BAD DEBTS 99, 875, 786. 99, 875, 786.
4ADM NI STRATI VE 21, 486, 747. 21, 486, 747.
e Al other expenses 196, 709, 943.| 196, 709, 943.
4,048, 263, 821. |3, 748, 575, 915. 274, 245, 675. 25, 442, 231.

25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e

26 Joint costs. Complete this line only if the
organization reported in column (B) joint costs
from a combined educational campaign and
fundraising solicitation. Check here p if

following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

JSA
7E1052 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 11
Eli® @ Balance Sheet
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylineinthisPartX. . . ... ... ............ |:|
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash - non-interest-bearing . . . .. .. ... ... 0.] 1 0.
2 Savings and temporary cashinvestments , _ . . . .. .. ... .. ... .. 593, 511, 877.| 2 |1, 161, 311, 855.
3 Pledges and grantsreceivable,net | . . . . .. .. .. ... . .. 80, 407, 286. | 3 396, 126, 560.
4 Accounts receivable,net | ... ... o oL 643, 257,643. | 4 450, 454, 435.
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors,
trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees.
Complete Part Il of Schedule L , . .. ..\ .ot e nn ., 0.] 5 0.
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958(f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
® organizations (see instructions). Complete Part Il of ScheduleL . . . . . . . ... 0.1 6 0.
‘sn? 7 Notes and loans receivable, net | . . . . . . . . . . . . 0.] 7 0.
2| 8 Inventories for sale Oruse . . . . ... ... 17,261,172.| g 22, 563, 699.
9 Prepaid expenses and deferredcharges . . . . ... ... ... ... ..., 239,376, 621. | 9 256, 038, 953.
10a Land, buildings, and equipment: cost or
other basis. Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 5616415642.
b Less: accumulated depreciation. . . . . . . . . . 10b 2858149306. |2, 671, 392, 911. |10¢ |2, 758, 266, 336.
11 Investments - publicly traded securities ., , . . . .. ... .. .. ... ... 2,425, 661, 065. | 11 |2,177,877,924.
12 Investments - other securities. See Part IV, line 11, _ . . . . ... .. ... 6,517, 436, 552. | 12 |6, 928, 620, 799.
13 Investments - program-related. See Part IV, line 11 _ . . . . ... ... ... 24,920, 789. | 13 23, 137, 557.
14 Intangible @SSetS . . . . . . . ... ... 0.]14 0.
15 Other assets. See Part IV, line 11 | . . . . . . . . . i 239.| 15 239.
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equalline 34) . ... . ... .. 13213226155. | 15 14174398357.
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses. . . . . . . . . . .t eu.. 482, 450, 308. | 17 438, 541, 109.
18 Grantspayable . . . . ... i i e e 0.|18 0.
19 Deferred reVeNUE . . . . . o v oo vt e e et e et e e e e 429, 084, 520. | 19 | 468, 038, 927.
20 Tax-exempt bond liabiliies . . . . ... ... ... ... 1,607,149, 162. | 20 |1, 575, 574, 581.
21 Escrow or custodial account liability. Complete Part IV of Schedule D | | | . 0. 21 0.
@ 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors,
= trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, and
% disqualified persons. Complete Part Il of Schedule L , , _ . . ... ...... 0.| 22 0.
=123  Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties | |, . . . . 0.| 23 0.
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties, |, . . . . .. 377,199, 135. | 24 376, 433, 736.
25  Other liabilities (including federal income tax, payables to related third
parties, and other liabilities not included on lines 17-24). Complete Part X
of Schedule D | . . . .. . ... ... 1,285,613, 675. | 25 |1, 313, 643, 541.
26 _ Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25, . . . . .\ ot v v s o v ... 4,181, 496, 800. | 26 |4, 172, 231, 894.
Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » m and
3 complete lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
5|27 Unrestricted netassets | ... L L L. 4,163, 532, 971. | 27 |4, 587, 104, 447,
8128 Temporarily restricted netassets . ... ... ... ... ... 2,705, 886, 455. | 28 |3, 192, 920, 608.
T|29 Permanently restricted netassets. . . . .. ... ... ... ... .. 2,162, 309, 929. | 29 |2, 222, 141, 408.
T Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here P> |:| and
5 complete lines 30 through 34.
,g 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or currentfunds = = . . . ... ..... 30
©131 Paid-in or capital surplus, or land, building, or equipmentfund == = | 31
f 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds = = | 32
Z(33 Total net assets or fund balances .~ . 9, 031, 729, 355. | 33 10002166463.
34 Total liabilities and net assets/fund balances . . . . . . . . v o v v i i u ' .. 13213226155. | 34 14174398357.
Form 990 (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Form 990 (2017) Page 12
Part XI Reconciliation of Net Assets
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to anylineinthisPart XI. . ... ... ............
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A),line 12) . . . . . . . . i v i v i i e e e e e e 1 4, 531, 249, 482.
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A),line25) . . . . . . . . v i i i v i i it e e r 2 4, 048, 263, 821.
3 Revenue less expenses. Subtractline2fromline 1. . . . . . . . .. i i i i i i it v v vt 3 482, 985, 661.
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, coumn (A)) . . . .. 4 9, 031, 729, 355.
5 Net unrealized gains (losses)oninvestments . . . . . . . . . . . i i it it it i e 5 271, 968, 893.
6 Donated services and use offacilities . . . . . . . . . v i i i i e e e e e e e e e 6 0.
7 INVEStMENt BXPENSES . & v v v v vt e ke e e ke e e e e e e e e e e e e e 7 0.
8 Prior period adjustments . . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 8 0.
9 Other changes in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule O). . . . ... ......... 9 215, 482, 554.
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year. Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line
33, C0MUMN (B)) & v 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 10 | 10, 002, 166, 463.

WPl Financial Statements and Reporting
Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XII

Yes | No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990: |:| Cash Accrual |:| Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explain in
Schedule O.
2a Were the organization's financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant?, . . . . . . 2a X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or
reviewed on a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis |:| Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization's financial statements audited by an independent accountant? . . . . ... .. .. ... 2b | X
If "Yes," check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a
separate basis, consolidated basis, or both:
|:| Separate basis Consolidated basis |:| Both consolidated and separate basis
c If "Yes" to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight
of the audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c | X
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O.
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in
the Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 . . . & o v o v i i e e e e s e s e s e e s s e s s 3a | X
b If "Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the
required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits. 3p | X
Form 990 (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE A Public Charity Status and Public Support | QM No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust. 2@ 1 7

Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. i
Department of the Treasury . > ) ) ) ) Open to Public
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.

The organization is not a private foundation because it is: (For lines 1 through 12, check only one box.)

- A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ).)

- A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

- A medical research organization operated in conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state:

5 |:| An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described in

section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part I1.)

6 A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 An organization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part Il.)

8 A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II.)

9 An agricultural research organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ix) operated in conjunction with a land-grant college
or university or a non-land-grant college of agriculture (see instructions). Enter the name, city, and state of the college or
university:

10 |:| An organization that normally receives: (1) more than 331/3 % of its support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions - subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3 %of its
support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30, 1975. See section 509(a)(2). (Complete Part lIl.)

11 An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety. See section 509(a)(4).
12 An organization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes
of one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2). See section 509(a)(3).
Check the box in lines 12a through 12d that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 12e, 12f, and 12g.
a |:| Type I. A supporting organization operated, supervised, or controlled by its supported organization(s), typically by giving
the supported organization(s) the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the directors or trustees of the
supporting organization. You must complete Part IV, Sections A and B.
b Type Il. A supporting organization supervised or controlled in connection with its supported organization(s), by having
control or management of the supporting organization vested in the same persons that control or manage the supported
organization(s). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and C.

c Type lll functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with, and functionally integrated with,
its supported organization(s) (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A, D, and E.
d Type lll non-functionally integrated. A supporting organization operated in connection with its supported organization(s)

that is not functionally integrated. The organization generally must satisfy a distribution requirement and an attentiveness
requirement (see instructions). You must complete Part IV, Sections A and D, and Part V.

e Check this box if the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it is a Type |, Type Il, Type llI

functionally integrated, or Type lll non-functionally integrated supporting organization.
f Enter the number of supported organizations. . . . . . . . . . . . . i e e e e e e e e e e e :
g Provide the following information about the supported organization(s).

(i) Name of supported organization (i) EIN (iii) Type of organization | (iv) Is the organization | (v) Amount of monetary (vi) Amount of
(described on lines 1-10 |listed in your governing support (see other support (see
above (see instructions)) document? instructions) instructions)

Yes No
(A)
(B)
©)
(D)
B
Total
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under
Part lll. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part lIl.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) 2017 (f) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received. (Do not
include any "unusual grants.”) . . . . . . 626,712,257. | 585,280,325. | 639,959,619.| 717,202, 964. |1,090, 729, 734. | 3, 659, 884, 899.
2  Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either paid
to or expended onitsbehalf . . . . . .. 0.

3 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the

organization without charge . . . . . . . 0.

Total. Add lines 1 through 3. + + « + . . 626,712, 257. | 585, 280,325. | 639,959, 619.| 717,202, 964. | 1, 090, 729, 734. | 3, 659, 884, 899.
5 The portion of total contributions by

each person (other than a

governmental unit or publicly

supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the amount

shown on line 11, column (f). . . . . . . 536, 528, 340.
6  Public support. Subtract line 5 from line 4 3, 123, 356, 559.
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) » (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) 2017 (f) Total
7 Amounts from line4. « « « « o o o . .. 626,712, 257. | 585,280,325. | 639,959,619.| 717,202, 964. |1, 090, 729, 734. | 3, 659, 884, 899.

8 Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from
similar sources 49,478,577.| 130, 867,565. | 132, 718, 201. 98, 559, 100. | 111,030, 258.| 522, 653, 701.

9 Net income from unrelated business
activities, whether or not the business
is regularly carriedon . . . . . .. ... 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

10 Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets

(Explain in PartVI.) .ATCH. 1 ... .. 11, 668, 462. 12, 860, 220. 16, 765, 014. 12, 941, 763. 15, 950, 816. 70, 186, 275.
11  Total support. Add lines 7 through 10 . . 4,252,724, 875.
12 Gross receipts from related activities, etc. (Se€INStrUCtONS) « « « + v v & v v v v b v e e e e e e e e . 12 13, 498, 796, 758.

13 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check thisboxandstop here. . . . . & v v 0 v i v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e » l:l

Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage

14 Public support percentage for 2017 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)). . . . . . . .. 14 73.44 o
15 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, PartIll,line14 . . . . . . ... ... ... .... 15 81. 059
16a 331/3% support test - 2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 is 331/3 % or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization. . . . ... ... ... ......... >
b 331/3% support test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13 or 16a, and line 15 is 331/3 % or more, check
this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . . ... ... ........... > |:|

17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2017. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14 is
10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here. Explain in
Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported

o o =T 2221 1o oS > |:|
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
15 is 10% or more, and if the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test, check this box and stop here.
Explain in Part VI how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances" test. The organization qualifies as a publicly

supported organization . . . . . . . . . i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
INSITUCHIONS & v v v v vt v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > |:|
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Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)
(Complete only if you checked the box on line 10 of Part | or if the organization failed to qualify under Part Il.
If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)
Section A. Public Support
Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) 2017 (f) Total

1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and membership fees

received. (Do not include any "unusual grants.")

2  Gross receipts from admissions, merchandise
sold or services performed, or facilities
furnished in any activity that is related to the

organization's tax-exempt purpose . « . .« . .

3 Gross receipts from activities that are not an

unrelated trade or business under section 513 .

4  Tax revenues levied for the
organization’s benefit and either paid to
orexpended onitsbehalf . . . . . . ..

5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to the
organization without charge . . . . . . .

6 Total. Add lines 1 through5. . . . . ..

7a Amounts included on lines 1, 2, and 3

received from disqualified persons . . . .

b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3

received from other than disqualified

persons that exceed the greater of $5,000

or 1% of the amount on line 13 for the year

c Addlines7aand7b. . . .+ v . ...

8 Public support. (Subtract line 7c from

liNEB.) v v v v v v i e i v e e e e
Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning in) P (a) 2013 (b) 2014 (c) 2015 (d) 2016 (e) 2017 (f) Total

9 Amounts fromline6. . . . ... ....
10a Gross income from interest, dividends,
payments received on securities loans,
rents, royalties, and income from similar
SOUIMCES « + s = = « = = = & = = = s = = &«

b Unrelated business taxable income (less
section 511 taxes) from businesses
acquired after June 30, 1975 . . . . . .

¢ Addlines10aand10b . . . . . . . ..

11 Net income from unrelated business
activities not included in line 10b,
whether or not the business is regularly
carriedon. « = v v 4 f v w e e e e e

12  Other income. Do not include gain or
loss from the sale of capital assets
(ExplaininPartVL) ., ... .......

13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c, 11,

and12.) « . v f e e e e e e e e
14 First five years. If the Form 990 is for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a section 501(c)(3)
organization, check thisboxand stop here. . . . . . & 0 0 v 0 i v i i i it e e e e e e e e e e s e e e e e e e e a s e »
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2017 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)), . . . . . ... .. ... 15 %
16 Public support percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Partlll, line15. . . . . . . . v o v v v v i v v v 0w w v s 16 %
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2017 (line 10c, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) . . . . . .. . .. 17 %
18 Investment income percentage from 2016 Schedule A, Partlll, line17 | , . . . . . . . . v o v o v o v v . 18 %

19a 331/3% support tests - 2017. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 is more than 331/3 %, and line
17 is not more than 331/3 %, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization . | 2
b 331/3% support tests - 2016. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 or line 19a, and line 16 is more than 331/3 %, and
line 18 is not more than 331/3 %, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization | 2 ’:’

20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see instructions | 2
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Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 4
Supporting Organizations
(Complete only if you checked a boxin line 12 on Part I. If you checked 12a of Part I, complete Sections A
and B. If you checked 12b of Part |, complete Sections A and C. If you checked 12c of Part I, complete
Sections A, D, and E. If you checked 12d of Part I, complete Sections A and D, and complete Part V.)
Section A. All Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Are all of the organization's supported organizations listed by name in the organization's governing
documents? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organizations are designated. If designated by
class or purpose, describe the designation. If historic and continuing relationship, explain. 1

2 Did the organization have any supported organization that does not have an IRS determination of status
under section 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI how the organization determined that the supported
organization was described in section 509(a)(1) or (2). 2

3a Did the organization have a supported organization described in section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6)? If "Yes," answer
(b) and (c) below. 3a

b Did the organization confirm that each supported organization qualified under section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) and
satisfied the public support tests under section 509(a)(2)? If "Yes," describe in Part VI when and how the
organization made the determination. 3b

¢ Did the organization ensure that all support to such organizations was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization put in place to ensure such use. 3c

4a Was any supported organization not organized in the United States ("foreign supported organization")? If
"Yes," and if you checked 12a or 12b in Part I, answer (b) and (c) below. 4a

b Did the organization have ultimate control and discretion in deciding whether to make grants to the foreign
supported organization? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the organization had such control and discretion
despite being controlled or supervised by or in connection with its supported organizations. 4b

¢ Did the organization support any foreign supported organization that does not have an IRS determination
under sections 501(c)(3) and 509(a)(1) or (2)? If "Yes," explain in Part VI what controls the organization used
to ensure that all support to the foreign supported organization was used exclusively for section 170(c)(2)(B)
purposes. 4c

5a Did the organization add, substitute, or remove any supported organizations during the tax year? If "Yes,"
answer (b) and (c) below (if applicable). Also, provide detail in Part VI, including (i) the names and EIN
numbers of the supported organizations added, substituted, or removed; (i) the reasons for each such action;
(iii) the authority under the organization's organizing document authorizing such action; and (iv) how the action
was accomplished (such as by amendment to the organizing document). 5a

b Type | or Type Il only. Was any added or substituted supported organization part of a class already
designated in the organization's organizing document? 5b

¢ Substitutions only. Was the substitution the result of an event beyond the organization's control? 5¢C

6 Did the organization provide support (whether in the form of grants or the provision of services or facilities) to
anyone other than (i) its supported organizations, (ii) individuals that are part of the charitable class benefited
by one or more of its supported organizations, or (iii) other supporting organizations that also support or
benefit one or more of the filing organization’s supported organizations? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 6

7 Did the organization provide a grant, loan, compensation, or other similar payment to a substantial contributor
(defined in section 4958(c)(3)(C)), a family member of a substantial contributor, or a 35% controlled entity with
regard to a substantial contributor? If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 7

8 Did the organization make a loan to a disqualified person (as defined in section 4958) not described in line 7?
If "Yes," complete Part | of Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ). 8
9a Was the organization controlled directly or indirectly at any time during the tax year by one or more

disqualified persons as defined in section 4946 (other than foundation managers and organizations described
in section 509(a)(1) or (2))? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9a
b Did one or more disqualified persons (as defined in line 9a) hold a controlling interest in any entity in which
the supporting organization had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9b
¢ Did a disqualified person (as defined in line 9a) have an ownership interest in, or derive any personal benefit
from, assets in which the supporting organization also had an interest? If "Yes," provide detail in Part VI. 9c

10a Was the organization subject to the excess business holdings rules of section 4943 because of section
4943(f) (regarding certain Type Il supporting organizations, and all Type Il non-functionally integrated
supporting organizations)? If "Yes," answer 10b below. 10a

b Did the organization have any excess business holdings in the tax year? (Use Schedule C, Form 4720, to
determine whether the organization had excess business holdings.) 10b

JSA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Supporting Organizations (continued)

Yes| No

11  Has the organization accepted a gift or contribution from any of the following persons?
a A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (b) and (c)
below, the governing body of a supported organization? lla
b A family member of a person described in (a) above? 11b
¢ A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (a) or (b) above? If “Yes” to a, b, or ¢, provide detail in Part VI. 1llc
Section B. Type | Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Did the directors, trustees, or membership of one or more supported organizations have the power to
regularly appoint or elect at least a majority of the organization's directors or trustees at all times during the
tax year? If "No," describe in Part VI how the supported organization(s) effectively operated, supervised, or
controlled the organization's activities. If the organization had more than one supported organization,
describe how the powers to appoint and/or remove directors or trustees were allocated among the supported
organizations and what conditions or restrictions, if any, applied to such powers during the tax year. 1

2 Did the organization operate for the benefit of any supported organization other than the supported
organization(s) that operated, supervised, or controlled the supporting organization? If "Yes," explain in Part
VI how providing such benefit carried out the purposes of the supported organization(s) that operated,
supervised, or controlled the supporting organization. 2

Section C. Type Il Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1  Were a majority of the organization's directors or trustees during the tax year also a majority of the directors
or trustees of each of the organization's supported organization(s)? If "No," describe in Part VI how control
or management of the supporting organization was vested in the same persons that controlled or managed
the supported organization(s). 1

Section D. All Type lll Supporting Organizations

Yes| No

1 Did the organization provide to each of its supported organizations, by the last day of the fifth month of the
organization's tax year, (i) a written notice describing the type and amount of support provided during the prior
tax year, (ii) a copy of the Form 990 that was most recently filed as of the date of notification, and (iii) copies of
the organization's governing documents in effect on the date of notification, to the extent not previously
provided? 1

2 Were any of the organization's officers, directors, or trustees either (i) appointed or elected by the supported
organization(s) or (ii) serving on the governing body of a supported organization? If "No," explain in Part VI how
the organization maintained a close and continuous working relationship with the supported organization(s). 2

3 By reason of the relationship described in (2), did the organization's supported organizations have a
significant voice in the organization's investment policies and in directing the use of the organization's
income or assets at all times during the tax year? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role the organization's
supported organizations played in this regard. 3

Section E. Type lll Functionally Integrated Supporting Organizations
1 Check the box next to the method that the organization used to satisfy the Integral Part Test during the year (seeinstructions).

a The organization satisfied the Activities Test. Complete line 2 below.
b The organization is the parent of each of its supported organizations. Complete line 3 below.
c The organization supported a governmental entity. Describe in Part VI how you supported a government entity (see instructions).

Yes| No

2 Activities Test. Answer (a) and (b) below.

a Did substantially all of the organization's activities during the tax year directly further the exempt purposes of
the supported organization(s) to which the organization was responsive? If “Yes," then in Part VI identify
those supported organizations and explain how these activities directly furthered their exempt purposes,
how the organization was responsive to those supported organizations, and how the organization determined
that these activities constituted substantially all of its activities. 2a

b Did the activities described in (a) constitute activities that, but for the organization's involvement, one or more
of the organization's supported organization(s) would have been engaged in? If "Yes," explain in Part VI the
reasons for the organization's position that its supported organization(s) would have engaged in these
activities but for the organization's involvement. 2b

3 Parent of Supported Organizations. Answer (a) and (b) below.
a Did the organization have the power to regularly appoint or elect a majority of the officers, directors, or
trustees of each of the supported organizations? Provide details in Part VI. 3a

b Did the organization exercise a substantial degree of direction over the policies, programs, and activities of each
of its supported organizations? If "Yes," describe in Part VI the role played by the organization in this regard. 3b
Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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% Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations
1

Check here if the organization satisfied the Integral Part Test as a qualifying trust on Nov. 20, 1970 (explain in Part VI). See
instructions. All other Type Ill non-functionally integrated supporting organizations must complete Sections A through E.
(B) Current Year

(optional)

Section A - Adjusted Net Income (A) Prior Year

1 Net short-term capital gain

2 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

3 Other gross income (see instructions)

4 Add lines 1 through 3.

5 Depreciation and depletion

6 Portion of operating expenses paid or incurred for production or
collection of gross income or for management, conservation, or
maintenance of property held for production of income (see instructions)
7 Other expenses (see instructions)

8 Adjusted Net Income (subtract lines 5, 6, and 7 from line 4). 8

A [W[IN (-

(B) Current Year

Section B - Minimum Asset Amount (A) Prior Year .
(optional)

1 Aggregate fair market value of all non-exempt-use assets (see

instructions for short tax year or assets held for part of year):
a Average monthly value of securities la
b Average monthly cash balances 1b
¢ Fair market value of other non-exempt-use assets 1c
d Total (add lines 1a, 1b, and 1c) 1d
e Discount claimed for blockage or other
factors (explain in detail in Part VI):

2 Acquisition indebtedness applicable to non-exempt-use assets 2

3 Subtract line 2 from line 1d.

4 Cash deemed held for exempt use. Enter 1-1/2% of line 3 (for greater amount,

see instructions).

5 Net value of non-exempt-use assets (subtract line 4 from line 3)

6 Multiply line 5 by .035.

7 Recoveries of prior-year distributions

8 Minimum Asset Amount (add line 7 to line 6)

w

o|~|o o~

Section C - Distributable Amount Current Year

1 Adjusted net income for prior year (from Section A, line 8, Column A)

2 Enter 85% of line 1.

3 Minimum asset amount for prior year (from Section B, line 8, Column A)

4 Enter greater of line 2 or line 3.

5 Income tax imposed in prior year

6 Distributable Amount. Subtract line 5 from line 4, unless subject to

emergency temporary reduction (see instructions). 6

7 |_, Check here if the current year is the organization's first as a non-functionally integrated Type lll supporting organization (see
instructions).

A [W[IN (-
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Type Il Non-Functionally Integrated 509(a)(3) Supporting Organizations (continued)

Section D - Distributions

Current Year

1 Amounts paid to supported organizations to accomplish exempt purposes

2 Amounts paid to perform activity that directly furthers exempt purposes of supported
organizations, in excess of income from activity

3 Administrative expenses paid to accomplish exempt purposes of supported organizations

4 Amounts paid to acquire exempt-use assets

5 Qualified set-aside amounts (prior IRS approval required)

6 Other distributions (describe in Part VI). See instructions.

7 Total annual distributions. Add lines 1 through 6.

8 Distributions to attentive supported organizations to which the organization is responsive
(provide details in Part VI). See instructions.

9 Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6

10 Line 8 amount divided by Line 9 amount

Section E - Distribution Allocations (see instructions)

0]

Excess Distributions

(i)
Underdistributions
Pre-2017

(iii)
Distributable
Amount for 2017

Distributable amount for 2017 from Section C, line 6

Underdistributions, if any, for years prior to 2017
(reasonable cause required-explain in Part VI). See
instructions.

w

Excess distributions carryover, if any, to 2017

From 2013

From 2014

From 2015

From 2016 ... .. ..

Total of lines 3a through e

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2017 distributable amount

Carryover from 2012 not applied (see instructions)

=T T|je ™o |a|o|o|lw

Remainder. Subtract lines 3g, 3h, and 3i from 3f.

IN

Distributions for 2017 from
Section D, line 7: $

Applied to underdistributions of prior years

Applied to 2017 distributable amount

Remainder. Subtract lines 4a and 4b from 4.

Remaining underdistributions for years prior to 2017, if
any. Subtract lines 3g and 4a from line 2. For result
greater than zero, explain in Part VI. See instructions.

Remaining underdistributions for 2017. Subtract lines 3h
and 4b from line 1. For result greater than zero, explain in
Part VI. See instructions.

Excess distributions carryover to 2018. Add lines 3j
and 4c.

Breakdown of line 7:

Excess from 2013. . . .

Excess from 2014. . . .

Excess from 2015. . . .

Excess from 2016. . . .

oo |T|o

Excess from 2017, . . .

JSA
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Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part Il, line 10; Part I, line 17a or 17b; Part
lll, line 12; Part IV, Section A, lines 1, 2, 3b, 3c, 4b, 4c, 5a, 6, 9a, 9b, 9¢, 11a, 11b, and 11c; Part IV, Section
B, lines 1 and 2; Part IV, Section C, line 1; Part IV, Section D, lines 2 and 3; Part IV, Section E, lines 1c, 2a, 2b,
3a and 3b; Part V, line 1; Part V, Section B, line 1e; Part V, Section D, lines 5, 6, and 8; and Part V, Section E,
lines 2, 5, and 6. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See instructions.)

ATTACHVENT 1
SCHEDULE A, PART |l - OTHER | NCOVE
DESCRI PTI ON 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 TOTAL
FUNDRAI SI NG EVENTS - 341, 638. 216, 210. - 337, 376. 248, 305. -122, 362. - 336, 861.
FI NANCI AL ADM NI STRATI ON 1,180, 145. 1,062, 611. 2,225, 983. 2, 338, 366. 3, 535, 935. 10, 343, 040.
CONCESSI ONS/ SERVI CES 10, 564, 387. 11, 388, 013. 14,588, 781. 10, 262, 454. 12, 313, 225. 59, 116, 860.
NETWORK/ COMMUNI CATI ONS 265, 568. 193, 386. 287, 626. 92, 638. 224, 018. 1, 063, 236.
TOTALS 11, 668, 462. 12, 860, 220. 16, 765, 014. 12,941, 763. 15, 950, 816. 70, 186, 275.
JSA Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule B Schedule of Contributors OME No. 1545-0047

(Form 990, 990-EZ,

or 990-PF) » Attach to Form 990, Form 990-EZ, or Form 990-PF. 2@17
Department of the Treasury . . .
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Employer identification number

Organization type (check one):

Filers of:

Form 990 or 990-EZ

Form 990-PF

Section:

501(c)( 3 ) (enter number) organization

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust not treated as a private foundation
527 political organization

501(c)(3) exempt private foundation

4947(a)(1) nonexempt charitable trust treated as a private foundation

Ododnx

501(c)(3) taxable private foundation

Check if your organization is covered by the General Rule or a Special Rule.

Note: Only a section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) organization can check boxes for both the General Rule and a Special Rule. See
instructions.

General Rule

[]

For an organization filing Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF that received, during the year, contributions totaling $5,000
or more (in money or property) from any one contributor. Complete Parts | and Il. See instructions for determining a
contributor's total contributions.

Special Rules

[]

For an organization described in section 501(c)(3) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that met the 33 1/3 % support test of the
regulations under sections 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi), that checked Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ), Part Il, line
13, 16a, or 16b, and that received from any one contributor, during the year, total contributions of the greater of (1)
$5,000; or (2) 2% of the amount on (i) Form 990, Part VIII, line 1h; or (ii) Form 990-EZ, line 1. Complete Parts | and II.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, total contributions of more than $1,000 exclusively for religious, charitable, scientific,
literary, or educational purposes, or for the prevention of cruelty to children or animals. Complete Parts |, II, and Ill.

For an organization described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or (10) filing Form 990 or 990-EZ that received from any one
contributor, during the year, contributions exclusively for religious, charitable, etc., purposes, but no such
contributions totaled more than $1,000. If this box is checked, enter here the total contributions that were received
during the year for an exclusively religious, charitable, etc., purpose. Don't complete any of the parts unless the
General Rule applies to this organization because it received nonexclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions
totaling $5,000 or more during the year . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... > 5

Caution: An organization that isn't covered by the General Rule and/or the Special Rules doesn't file Schedule B (Form 990,
990-EZ, or 990-PF), but it must answer "No" on Part 1V, line 2, of its Form 990; or check the box on line H of its Form 990-EZ or on its
Form 990-PF, Part |, line 2, to certify that it doesn't meet the filing requirements of Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF).

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF.

JSA
7E1251 1.000
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

Page 2

Name of organization

EVMURY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Contributors (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part | if additional space is needed.

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

1

400, 000, 000.

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

32, 554, 340.

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

25, 000, 000.

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

(@)
No.

(b)

Name, address, and ZIP + 4

(c)

Total contributions

(d)

Type of contribution

Person
Payroll
Noncash

(Complete Part Il for
noncash contributions.)

JSA
7E1253 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

Page 3

Name of organization EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256
2EIggl] Noncash Property (see instructions). Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$
(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$
(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$
(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$
(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$
(a) No. (c)
from Description of norgzllsh roperty given FMV (or estimate) Date r(gc):eived
Part | P property g (See instructions.)

$

JSA Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)
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Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)

Page 4

Name of organization EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

3EIglll] Exclusively religious, charitable, etc., contributions to organizations described in section 501(c)(7), (8), or
(10) that total more than $1,000 for the year from any one contributor. Complete columns (a) through (e) and
the following line entry. For organizations completing Part lll, enter the total of exclusively religious, charitable, etc.,

contributions of $1,000 or less for the year. (Enter this information once. See instructions.) » $

Use duplicate copies of Part Il if additional space is needed.

(a) No.
from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |
(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.

from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |

(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.

from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held
Part |

(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee

(a) No.

from (b) Purpose of gift (c) Use of gift (d) Description of how gift is held

Part |

(e) Transfer of gift
Transferee's name, address, and ZIP + 4 Relationship of transferor to transferee
JSA Schedule B (Form 990, 990-EZ, or 990-PF) (2017)
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SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)
For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527 2@ 1 7

P Complete if the organization is described below. P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Opento Public
Department of the Treasury » Got . IE 990 for inst ti d the latest inf ti .
Internal Revenue Service 0 to www.irs.gov/Form or instructions an e latest information. Inspection
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Campaign Activities), then

® Section 501(c)(3) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and B. Do not complete Part I-C.
® Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations: Complete Parts I-A and C below. Do not complete Part I-B.
® Section 527 organizations: Complete Part I-A only.
If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-A. Do not complete Part 11-B.
® Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)): Complete Part II-B. Do not complete Part II-A.

If the organization answered "Yes," on Form 990, Part IV, line 5 (Proxy Tax) (see separate instructions) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy
Tax) (see separate instructions), then

® Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations: Complete Part III.
Name of organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.
1 Provide a description of the organization's direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV. (see instructions for
definition of "political campaign activities")
2 Political campaign activity expenditures (see instructions) . . . . ... ... ... ... ..... » 5
3 Volunteer hours for political campaign activities (seeinstructions). . . . . . ... ... ... ...
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955, , . . . . > $
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 , ., » $
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for thisyear? , . . . ... ... ...... Yes No
4a Was acorrection made? . . . . . . . ... i e e e e e e e e e e Yes No
b If "Yes," describe in Part V.
Part I-C Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function
ACtVItIES . . . L L L L e e e e e >S5
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section
527 exempt function activities , , . . . . . ... . L e e e e e e e > $
3 Total exempt function expenditures. Add lines 1 and 2. Enter here and on Form 1120-POL,
Ne 17D e e e e e e »$
4 Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for thisyear? . . . . . . . . . . . @ i i i i i e e e e e e e u |_, Yes |_, No

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing
organization made payments. For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization's funds. Also enter
the amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such
as a separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC). If additional space is needed, provide information in Part IV.

(a) Name (b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from (e) Amount of political
filing organization's contributions received and
funds. If none, enter -0-. promptly and directly

delivered to a separate
political organization. If
none, enter -0-.

1)

)]

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 2

HWHIPY Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election under
section 501(h)).

A Check >|_| if the filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name,
address, EIN, expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures).

B Check Pl:l if the filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply.

Limits on Lobbying Expenditures (a) Filing (b) Affiliated
(The term "expenditures" means amounts paid or incurred.) organization's totals group totals

la Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying)
Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying) . . . . . .
Total lobbying expenditures (add lines1aand1b) . . . . . ... ... ... ......
Other exempt purpose expenditures . . . . . . . . . . . i it it
Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines icand1d). . . .. ... ... .....
Lobbying nontaxable amount. Enter the amount from the following table in both
columns.
If the amount on line 1e, column (a) or (b) is:| The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1e.
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000.
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 |$175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000.
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 |$225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000.
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000.
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f) . . . . . .. ... ... ... ...
Subtract line 1g from line 1a. If zeroorless,enter0- . . . . ... ... .........
Subtract line 1f from line 1c. If zeroorless, enter-0-, . . . . . . . . . . v v v o v ..
If there is an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 1i, did the organization file Form 4720
reporting section 4911 taxforthisyear? . . . . . . @ . i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e |:| Yes |:| No
4-Year Averaging Period Under section 501(h)
(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five columns below.
See the separate instructions for lines 2a through 2f.)

- O QO O T

b (o]

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year (a) 2014 (b) 2015 (c) 2016 (d) 2017 (e) Total
beginning in)

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column (e))

Cc Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of line 2d, column (e))

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 3
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT filed Form 5768
(election under section 501(h)).
For each "Yes," response on lines la through 1i below, provide in Part IV a detailed © ©
description of the lobbying activity. Yes | No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or
referendum, through the use of:

a Volunteers? | . . . L . . e e e e X

b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 1i)?. X

¢ Mediaadvertisements? . . . . . . . . L e e e e e e e e e e e X

d Mailings to members, legislators, orthe public?. . . . . . .. ... ...« ... X

e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? . . . . .. ... ... ............ X

f  Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? . . . . . . . . . . . L o o0 e X

g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body? . . . . . . X 169, 496.

h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means?. . . . X

i Otheractivities? . . . . . . o i i i i i e e e e e X 513, 381.

| Total. Add iNeS TCHNrOUGN 11 « « « « « v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 682, 877.
2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described in section 501(c)(3)? . . . X

b If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section4912. . . . . . . . .. .. .. ...

¢ If "Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912 , .,

d If the filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?, . . . .
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).
Yes | No

1 Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members? , ., . . .. ... .......... 1
2 Did the organization make only in-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 orless?. . . . ... . . . . . v o v . .. 2
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political campaign activity expenditures from the prior year? | 3

EWRIERE Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part lll-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No," OR (b) Part lll-A, line 3, is

answered "Yes."

5

Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members

Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of

political expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

Currentyear. . v o v v s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Carryoverfrom lastyear. . . . . . o o i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Total . v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s

Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues. - . . .
If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the
excess does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying

and political expenditure nextyear? . . . . . . . oL e e e e e e e
Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see instructions) . . .. ... ......

2a

2b

2C

Part IV Supplemental Information
Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1; Part I-B, line 4; Part I-C, line 5; Part II-A (affiliated group list); Part Il-A, lines 1 and
2 (see instructions); and Part II-B, line 1. Also, complete this part for any additional information.

SEE PACE 4

JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 4
Part IV Supplemental Information (continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE C, PART I|1-B, LINE 1I

OTHER ACTI VI TI ES

EMORY UNI VERSI TY DI D NOT PARTI Cl PATE OR | NTERVENE | N ANY PQOLI Tl CAL
CAMPAIGNS. A DE M NIM S PORTI ON OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S TOTAL ACTI VI TI ES

I NVOLVE LEG SLATI VE AND REGULATORY MATTERS OF DI RECT CONCERN TO HI GHER
EDUCATI ON AND HEALTH CARE OR OF COWVPELLI NG | MPORTANCE TO EMORY UNI VERSI TY

I N PARTI CULAR.

UNDER THE HONEST LEADERSHI P AND OPEN GOVERNMENT ACT OF 2007, AN AMENDMENT
TO THE LOBBYI NG DI SCLOSURE ACT OF 1995, EMORY UNI VERSI TY REPORTS DETAI LED
LOBBYI NG ACTI VI TIES AT THE NATI ONAL LEVEL ON A QUARTERLY AND SEM - ANNUAL
BASI S TO THE SECRETARY OF THE SENATE AND THE CLERK OF THE HOUSE OF
REPRESENTATI VES. EMORY UNI VERSI TY ALSO REPORTS DETAI LED LOBBYI NG
ACTIVITIES AT THE STATE LEVEL TO THE GEORG A GOVERNMENT TRANSPARENCY AND

CAMPAI GN FI NANCE COWM SSI ON.

EFFORTS TO | NFLUENCE LEGQ SLATI ON AND REGULATI ON ARE DI RECTED BY THE EMORY
UNI VERSI TY OFFI CE OF GOVERNMENT AND COMMUNI TY AFFAI RS. THE OFFI CE

CONSI STS OF SEVEN EMPLOYEES WHO ACT AS EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S LI Al SONS AND
MONI TOR PROPOSED AND ENACTED LEG SLATI ON AND OTHER GOVERNMENTAL
DEVELOPMENTS. ACTIVITIES OF THE STAFF | NCLUDE CONTACT BY LETTERS, PHONE
CALLS, EMAILS, AND MEETINGS W TH LEG SLATORS AND MEMBERS OF THEI R STAFFS
OR OTHER GOVERNMENT OFFI Cl ALS. MEETI NGS W TH LOCAL CI TI ZENS ARE ALSO
CONDUCTED REGARDI NG | SSUES W TH LOCAL GOVERNMENT. EMORY UNI VERSI TY

LOBBI ES BOTH THE FEDERAL AND STATE GOVERNMENT ON | SSUES OF MAJOR CONCERN:

JSA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 4
Part IV Supplemental Information (continued)

HI GHER EDUCATI ON, ECONOM C DEVELOPMENT, HUMAN RESOURCES, CULTURAL
RESCURCES, COMMUNI TY RELATI ONS, YOUTH | SSUES, ENVI RONMENTAL CONCERNS,
UNI VERSI TY REGULATI ON, RESEARCH | SSUES, TRANSPORTATI ON,

APPROPRI ATI ONS/ BUDCGET, TAX | SSUES, AND HEALTHCARE.

ESTI MATED EXPENSES ARE AS FOLLOWG:

LI NE 1G

CONTRACT LOBBYI STS: $166, 080

STATE LOBBYI NG $3, 416
TOTAL: $169, 496
LI NE 1I:
SALARI ES: $377, 601
TRAVEL: $45, 585
MEMBERSHI P DUES: $77, 827
OFFI CE OVERHEAD: $12, 368
TOTAL: $513, 381

JSA Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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?F%TiDéJgLOE) b Supplemental Financial Statements OUE Mo, 0400047
» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2@ 1 7
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990.
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 6.
(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number atendofyear . . .........
Aggregate value of contributions to (during year)
Aggregate value of grants from (during year) . .
Aggregate value atendofyear. . . . ... ...
Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors in writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legalcontrol? . . . ... ... .. |:| Yes |:| No
6 Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors in writing that grant funds can be used
only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring impermissible private benefit? . . . . . L L L 0 e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e |:| Yes |:| No
Part Il Conservation Easements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 7.
1 Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply).
Preservation of land for public use (e.g., recreation or education) Preservation of a historically important land area
Protection of natural habitat Preservation of a certified historic structure
Preservation of open space
2 Complete lines 2a through 2d if the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation

a b~ WN B

easement on the last day of the tax year. Held at the End of the Tax Year

a Total number of conservationeasements . . . . . .. ... ... .. ... ..., 2a

b Total acreage restricted by conservatoneasements . . . . ... ... ........... 2b

¢ Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a). . . . . 2c

d Number of conservation easements included in (c) acquired after 7/25/06, and not on a
historic structure listed in the National Register. . . . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 2d

3 Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during the

tax year »

4 Number of states where property subject to conservation easement is located »
5 Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of

violations, and enforcement of the conservation easementsitholds? . ... ... ... ... ... ...... |:| Yes |:| No
6 Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| 2
7 Amount of expenses incurred in monitoring, inspecting, handling of violations, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
| &

8 Does each conservation easementreported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4)(B)(i)
and section T70(ABYI? . .+ o o v v e e e e e e e e e e e [Jves [ no
9 In Part XIIl, describe how the organization reports conservation easements in its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, if applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes the
organization's accounting for conservation easements.
Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 8.

la |If the or?anization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide, in Part XllI, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items.

b If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of
public service, provide the following amounts relating to these items: 4 735 775

(i) Revenue included on Form 990, Part VIl line 1. . . v v v o v v v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e >3
(i) Assetsiincluded in Form 990, Part X. . . . . . & o v i i i i i e e e e e e e e e s >3 106, 743, 137.

2 If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items:

a Revenueincluded on Form 990, Part VIIl, line 1. . . . . . . . o v i i i i it s e e e e e e e e e e >3

b Assets included in Form 990, Part X. . . . v v v 0 v v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > 3
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
JSA
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58- 0566256

Page 2

Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

Using the organization's acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply):

Public exhibition
Scholarly research

Preservation for future generations
Provide a description of the organization's collections and explain how they further the organization's exempt purpose in Part

XI1.

d Loan or exchange programs
e Other EDUCATI ONAL PROGRAMS

During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures, or other similar

No

Escrow and Custodial Arrangements.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form

990, Part X, line 21.

la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? | | | . . . . e e e e |:| Yes No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part Xlll and complete the following table:
Amount
c Beginningbalance . . ... ... ... ... e 1c
d Additions during the year . . . ... ... ... . . .. . e 1d
e Distributions duringtheyear, , ., ., . ... ... ... ... .. ... le
f Endingbalance . . . .. .. ... ... e 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21, for escrow or custodial account liability? |_| Yes | | No
b If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIll. Check here if the explanation has been provided on Part XIll | . . . . . _ . ..
W@ Endowment Funds.
Complete if the organization answered “Yes” on Form 990, Part IV, line 10.
(a) Current year (b) Prior year (c) Two years back (d) Three years back | (e) Four years back
la Beginning of year balance . . . . 6175223812. 5775784405. | 5763138887. | 5962965212. 5247301885.
b Contributions » .« + v v v v ... 59, 005, 107. 62, 885, 056. | 54, 586, 238. | 108, 493, 602. 52,572, 333.
¢ Net investment earnings, gains,
and 10SSES .« + » v v v e 502, 127, 129. | 603, 741, 196. | 213, 296, 802. |- 66, 428, 385. | 893, 744, 270.
d Grants or scholarships . . . . . . 27,763, 922. 35,098, 656. | 24,897,719.| 22,051, 776. 18, 150, 191.
e Other expenditures for facilities
and programs .« « . « . . ... . . 221,891, 319. | 210, 272, 785. | 209, 481, 805. | 200, 138, 770. | 193, 769, 135.
f Administrative expenses . . . . . 22,164, 208. 21, 815, 404. | 20, 857,998.| 19, 700, 996. 18, 733, 950.
g End of year balance. . . . . . . . 6464536599. 6175223812. | 5775784405. | 5763138887. 5962965212.
2 Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as:
a Board designated or quasi-endowment p 24. 8300 %
b Permanent endowment p 33. 1900 o
Temporarily restricted endowment p 42.7800 o
The percentages on lines 2a, 2b, and 2c should equal 100%.
3a Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by: Yes | No
(i) unrelated OrganizationS . . . . . v v v i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3a(i) X
(i) related organizations . . . . . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 3a(ii) X
b If "Yes" on line 3a(ii), are the related organizations listed as required on ScheduleR? ., . . . ... ... ...... 3b
4  Describe in Part Xlll the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds.
Land, Buildin%s, and Equipment. . .
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.
Description of property (a) Cost or other basis (b) Cost or other basis (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
(investment) (other) depreciation
la Land, . . ... ... ... ... ... 1, 539, 769.| 107, 364, 715. 108, 904, 484.
b Buildings | . ... ... .......... 3243763241.| 1306359323. 1, 937, 403, 918.
¢ Leasehold improvements, . . . .. ...
d Equipment | . ... ... .. ... ... 2263747917.| 1551789983. 711, 957, 934.
e Other . . . ... %' iiinn...
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e. (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10c), . . . . . . > 2,758, 266, 336.
Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
JSA
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Il Investments - Other Securities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11b. See Form 990, Part X, line 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
(including name of security) Cost or end-of-year market value

(1) Financial derivatives . . . . ... ... ... .. .. 1,401, 862. ATTACHVENT 1
(2) Closely- Sts . . L.
O o PP ACHERFF

(A) SHORT- TERM | NVESTMENTS 215, 732, 301. FW

(8) COMM NGLED FUNDS- EQUI TY 235, 423, 324. FW

() COMM NGLED FUNDS- FI XED | NCOVE 77,434, 384. FW

(D)REAL ESTATE PARTNERSHI PS 279, 082, 087. FW

(E) | NVESTMENT- PRI VATE SECURI Tl ES 15, 556, 878. FW

(F) MARKETABLE REAL ESTATE 1,674, 204. FW

(G)M SCELLANEQUS | NVESTMENTS 4,313, 976. FW

(HYHEDGED STRATEG ES 2,775,397, 093. FW

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 12.) P> 6, 928, 620, 799.
WYl Investments - Program Related.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11c. See Form 990, Part X, line 13.

(a) Description of investment (b) Book value (c) Method of valuation:
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)
(2)
(3)
4
(5)
(6)
)
(8)
(9

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 13.) | 2

Part IX Other Assets.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11d. See Form 990, Part X, line 15.
(a) Description (b) Book value

1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
()
(6)
(1)
(8)
9)
Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 15.). . . . . . . . . . . @ v v v i i v e e e e »
Other Liabilities.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See Form 990, Part X,

line 25.

1. (a) Description of liability (b) Book value
(1) Federal income taxes
(2)I NTEREST PAYABLE 29, 266, 249.
(3)PROFESSI ONAL LI ABI LI TY RESERVE 277, 869, 047.
(4)FUNDS HELD I N TRUST FOR OTHERS 791, 840, 958.
(5)GOV_ ADVANCE- FEDERAL LOAN PROG 18, 659, 385.
(6)ANNUI TI ES PAYABLE 15, 704, 341.
(7)LI ABI LI TY FOR DERI VATI VES 127, 869, 979.
(8)ASSET RETI REMENT OBLI GATI ON 52, 433, 582.
(9)

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col. (B) line 25.) » 1, 313, 643, 541.

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions. In Part Xlll, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that reports the
organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740). Check here if the text of the footnote has been provided in Part Xlll

JSA Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
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Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return.

O O O T 9

[o 2]

c
5

EWPMIl Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements With Expenses per Return.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements . . . . . ... ... ...... 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12:

Net unrealized gains (losses)oninvestments . . . . . .. ... ... ... .. 2a

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . .« . o v v v oo oo o0 2b

Recoveries of prioryeargrants. . . . . . . . v o v i i i i hh i e s e e s 2¢c

Other (DescribeinPart XIIL.) . . . . v v o v v v i o e s e s s e e 2d

Add lines 2athrough 2d . . . & v v v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2e
Subtractline2e fromline L . v v v v v i v it et e e e e e e e e e e 3
Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vlll, line7b . . . . . . . 4a

Other (DescribeinPart XIIL) . . . . o v o v v v i o e s e s s e 4b

Add INES 42 and 4D « v v v i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4c
Total revenue. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Partl,line12.) . . . . . .« v v v o v v 5

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.

O O 0O T 9

[o 2]

c
5

Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements . . . . . . . . . o v oo v v i oo 1
Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part IX, line 25:

Donated services and use of facilities . . . . . . .« o v v v oo oo 2a

Prior year adjustments . . . . . . . . . o o e e e e s e e s 2b

OtNEr I0SSES . + + v v v e e e v et e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2c

Other (DescribeinPart XIIL) . . . . o v o v v v i o e s e s s e e 2d

Add lines2athrough 2d . . . v v v v v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 2e
Subtractline2e fromline L . . v v v v i v it e e e e e e e e e e e 3
Amounts included on Form 990, Part IX, line 25, but not on line 1:

Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part Vlll, line7b . . . . . . . 4a

Other (DescribeinPart XIIL.) . . . . o v o v v v i o e s e s e 4b

Add iNES 42 and 4D & v v v i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 4c
Total expenses. Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, Part I, line 18.) . . . . . . . .« .. .. 5

REWPMIIN Supplemental Information.
Provide the descriptions required for Part Il, lines 3, 5, and 9; Part lll, lines 1a and 4; Part IV, lines 1b and 2b; Part V, line 4; Part X, line

2; Part Xl, lines 2d and 4b; and Part XlI, lines 2d and 4b. Also complete this part to provide any additional information.

SEE PACE 5

JSA
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CETS@MIIl Supplemental Information (continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE D, PART |11, LINE 4

COLLECTI ONS OF ART, HI STORI CAL TREASURES & SI M LAR ASSETS THE M CHAEL C.
CARLOS MUSEUM COLLECTS, PRESERVES, EXHI BITS, AND | NTERPRETS ART AND

ARTI FACTS FROM ANTI QUI TY TO THE PRESENT I N ORDER TO PROVI DE UNI QUE
OPPORTUNI TI ES FOR EDUCATI ON AND ENRI CHVENT IN THE COVWUNI TY AND TO
PROMOTE | NTERDI SCI PLI NARY TEACHI NG AND RESEARCH AT EMORY UNI VERSI TY. THE
COLLECTI ONS EMPHASI ZE: A) WORKS OF ART ON PAPER; B) THE ART OF THE

ANCI ENT CULTURES OF THE MEDI TERRANEAN BASI N | NCLUDI NG GREECE AND ROVE; C)
THE ART OF ANCI ENT EGYPT, NUBI A AND THE NEAR EAST; D) THE ART OF THE

| NDI GENOUS AMERI CAS; E) THE ART OF SUB- SAHARAN AFRICA; F) THE ART OF

ASI A. THE MUSEUM | S FORTUNATE TO HAVE RECEI VED ASSI STANCE FROM 97
VOLUNTEERS DURI NG THE REPORTI NG YEAR WHO COLLECTI VELY PROVI DED

APPROXI MATELY 2,175 HOURS LEADI NG TOURS, CONDUCTI NG WORKSHOPS, ASSI STl NG
W TH THE CONSERVATI ON TREATMENT OF ARTWORK, FACI LI TATI NG SPECI AL EVENTS,
AND PROVI DI NG OTHER ADM NI STRATI VE SUPPCORT. THE STUART A. ROSE

MANUSCRI PT, ARCHI VES AND RARE BOCK LI BRARY ( RCSE LI BRARY) DEVELOPS,
PRESERVES AND MAKES ACCESSI BLE FOCUSED AREAS TO SUPPCORT THE RESEARCH AND
TEACH NG M SSI ON OF THE UNI VERSI TY. ROSE LI BRARY'S COLLECTI ONS OF RARE
BOCKS, DI STI NCTI VE COLLECTI ONS I N UNPUBLI SHED PERSONAL AND ORGANI ZATI ONAL
RECORDS, WORKS OF ART, AND RESEARCH COLLECTI ONS EMPHASI ZE: A) LI TERATURE;
B) AFRI CAN AMERI CAN HI STORY AND CULTURE; C) EARLY PRI NTED WORKS FROM
THE LOW COUNTRI ES; D) SOUTHERN HI STORY; E) RELIGON, F) THE CIVIL

RI GHTS AND POST-CIVIL RIGHTS PERIODS; G FRONTI ERS OF MEDI CI NE; H)
CONFLI CT RESOLUTI ON; AND |I) HI STORY OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY, | TS PREDECESSOR

SCHOOLS, AND | TS AFFI LI ATE ORGANI ZATI ONS.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
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CETS@MIIl Supplemental Information (continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE D, PART V, LINE 4

| NTENDED USES OF THE ORGANI ZATI ON'S ENDOWVENT FUNDS

THE | NTENDED USES OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S ENDOAWENT FUNDS CONSI ST OF A

VARI ETY OF AREAS | NCLUDI NG FUNDI NG OF SCHOLARSHI PS AND FELLOWSHI PS,

ENDONED CHAI RS, LECTURESHI PS, PROFESSORSHI PS, OPERATI NG BUDGET SUPPORT,

LI BRARY MATERI ALS, CAPI TAL PRQJECTS, RESEARCH, STUDENT LOANS AND OTHER

SPECI AL PRQJECTS.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE D, PART X, LINE 2

THE UNI VERSI TY | S RECOGNI ZED AS A TAX EXEMPT ORGANI ZATI ON AS DEFI NED | N

SECTI ON 501(C)(3) OF THE U.S. | NTERNAL REVENUE CODE (THE CODE) AND | S

GENERALLY EXEMPT FROM THE FEDERAL | NCOVE TAXES ON RELATED | NCOVE PURSUANT

TO SECTI ON 501(A) OF THE CODE. ACCORDI NAY, NO PROVI SI ON FOR | NCOVE TAXES

I'S MADE IN THE CONSCLI DATED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS. UNRELATED BUSI NESS

I NCOVE OF THE UNI VERSI TY IS REPORTED ON FORM 990-T. | N DECEMBER 2017, THE

TAX CUTS AND JOBS ACT (THE ACT) WAS APPROVED BY THE UNI TED STATES

CONGRESS. EMORY | S CURRENTLY EVALUATI NG THE | MPACT OF THE ACT.

ATTACHVENT 1

SCHEDULE D, PART VII1 - I NVESTMENTS - FI NANCI AL DERI VATI VES

CasT
DESCRI PTI ON BOOK VALUE OR FW
DERI VATI VES 1, 401, 862. FW

TOTALS 1, 401, 862.
ATTACHVENT 2

SCHEDULE D, PART VII1 - I NVESTMENTS - OTHER SECURI Tl ES

CasT
DESCRI PTI ON BOOK VALUE OR FW

JSA
7E1226 1.000
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CETS@MIIl Supplemental Information (continued)

ATTACHVENT 2 (CONT' D)

SCHEDULE D, PART VII1 - I NVESTMENTS - OTHER SECURI Tl ES
casT

DESCRI PTI ON BOOK VALUE OR FW
PRI VATE MARKET | NVESTMENTS 1,512, 156, 699. FW
NATURAL RESOURCES 497, 886, 354. FW

A L/ GAS 1, 155, 404. FW

I NTEREST | N PERPETUAL FUNDS 1, 311, 406, 233. FW

TOTALS 6, 927, 218, 937.

Schedule D (Form 990) 2017
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SCHEDULE E SChOOIS I OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ) p Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, 2@ 1 7
Part IV, line 13, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 48.

Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

6a

Employer identification number

Does the organization have a racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students by statement in its charter,

Does the organization include a statement of its racially nondiscriminatory policy toward students in all its
brochures, catalogues, and other written communications with the public dealing with student admissions,

Has the organization publicized its racially nondiscriminatory policy through newspaper or broadcast media
during the period of solicitation for students, or during the registration period if it has no solicitation program,
in a way that makes the policy known to all parts of the general community it serves? If "Yes," please
describe. If "No," please explain. If you need more space,usePartll. . . . . . . . ... o i i i i oo

SEE SUPPLEMENTAL PAGE

Does the organization maintain the following?

Records documenting that scholarships and other financial assistance are awarded on a racially

If you answered "No" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part Il.

Does the organization discriminate by race in any way with respect to:
Students' rights or privileges?

Admissions policies?

If you answered "Yes" to any of the above, please explain. If you need more space, use Part Il.

Has the organization's right to such aid ever been revoked or suspended?

If you answered "Yes" on either line 6a or line 6b, explain on Part Il.
Does the organization certify that it has complied with the applicable requirements of sections 4.01 through

4.05 of Rev. Proc. 75-50, 1975-2 C.B. 587, covering racial nondiscrimination? If "No," explainon Part 1l |

YES | NO
1 X
2 X
3 | X
4a | X
ap | X
4c | X
ad | X
5a X
5b X
5c X
5d X
5e X
5f X
59 X
5h X
6a | X
6b X
7 | X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
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Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) Page 2

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part |, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as applicable.
Also provide any other additional information (see instructions).

FORM 990, SCHEDULE E, PART |, LINE 3

GENERAL | NFORMATI ON

EMORY UNI VERSI TY |'S DEDI CATED TO PROVI DI NG EQUAL CPPORTUNI TI ES TO ALL

I NDI VI DUALS REGARDLESS OF RACE, COLCOR, RELIG ON, ETHNI C OR NATI ONAL

ORI G N, GENDER, ACE, DI SABILITY, SEXUAL ORI ENTATI ON, GENDER | DENTI TY,
GENDER EXPRESSI ON, VETERAN S STATUS, OR ANY FACTOR THAT IS A PROHI Bl TED
CONSI DERATI ON UNDER APPLI CABLE LAW  EMORY UNI VERSI TY DOES NOT

DI SCRI M NATE | N ADM SSI ONS, EDUCATI ONAL PROGRAMS, OR EMPLOYMENT ON THE
BASI S OF ANY FACTOR QUTLI NED ABOVE OR PROHI Bl TED UNDER APPLI CABLE LAW
STUDENTS, FACULTY, AND STAFF ARE ASSURED OF PARTI Cl PATION I N UNI VERSI TY
PROGRAMS AND | N THE USE OF FACI LI TI ES W THOUT SUCH DI SCRI M NATI ON. EMORY
UNI VERSI TY COWMPLI ES W TH ALL APPLI CABLE EQUAL EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNI TY LAWS
AND REGULATI ONS, AND FOLLOWS THE PRI NCI PLES OUTLI NED ABOVE I N ALL ASPECTS
OF EMPLOYMENT | NCLUDI NG RECRUI TMENT, HI RING PROMOTI ONS, TRANSFERS,

DI SCl PLI NE, TERM NATI ONS, WAGE AND SALARY ADM NI STRATI ON, BENEFI TS, AND

TRAI NI NG

FORM 990, SCHEDULE E, PART |, LINE 3

NONDI SCRI M NATORY POLI CY

ALL UNI VERSI TY ADVERTI SEMENTS, SOLI Cl TATI ONS AND CATALOGS | NCLUDE A
NONDI SCRI M NATORY POLI CY STATEMENT. THE PCLI CY REFLECTS THAT THE

UNI VERSI TY DCES NOT DI SCRI M NATE | N ADM SSI ONS, EDUCATI ONAL PROGRAMS,

FI NANCI AL Al D, OR EMPLOYMENT ON THE BASI S OF RACE, COLOR, RELIG ON,
ETHNI C OR NATI ONAL ORI G N, CENDER, AGE, DI SABILITY, SEXUAL ORI ENTATI CN,

GENDER | DENTI TY, CGENDER EXPRESSI ON, OR VETERAN S STATUS; AND PROHI BI TS

JSA Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017) Page 2

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part I, lines 3, 4d, 5h, 6b, and 7, as applicable.
Also provide any other additional information (see instructions).

SUCH DI SCRI M NATI ON BY | TS STUDENTS, FACULTY AND STAFF.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE E, PART |, LINE 6A

FI NANCI AL Al D & GOVERNMENT ASSI STANCE

THE FI NANCI AL Al D OR ASSI STANCE RECElI VED FROM A GOVERNMVENT AGENCY

CONSI STS OF U. S. GOVERNMENT ADVANCES RECEI VED FOR TI TLE |V STUDENT

FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE PROGRAMS AND TI TLE VII HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVI CES
STUDENT Al D ASSI STANCE PROGRAMS. FEDERAL, STATE OF GECRG A, AND CITY OF
ATLANTA FUNDS ARE RECEI VED FOR VARI QUS RESTRI CTED GRANTS, SCHOLARSH PS

AND CONTRACTS.

JSA Schedule E (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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2017

Open to Public
Inspection

SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
» Attach to Form 990.

Department of the Treasury P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Internal Revenue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on
Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.
1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
grants or assistance?

Yes |:| No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is (f) Total
offices in the employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent  |investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors located in the region)
in the region
(1) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS 2,535, 798, 132.
(2) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 487.
(3) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 236, 539.
(4) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 1, 364.
(5) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 2. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 81, 860.
(6) CENTRAL AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 1, 026, 388.
(7) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS 107, 029, 977.
(8) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. I NVESTMENTS (1) MANAGEMENT 33, 231.
(9) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUMNI  ACTI VI TY 15, 703.
(10) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 140, 376.
(11) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES DONATI ONS 4, 000.
(12) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 5. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 303, 392.
(13) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES PERFORMANCE/ EXHI BI TI ON 20, 833.
(14) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 63, 502.
(15) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 8. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 634, 435.
(16) EAST ASIA AND THE PACIFIC 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 667, 112.
(17) EURCPE 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS 356, 416, 046.
3a Sub-total, ., ... ..... 15. 3,002, 473, 377.
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part| _ . . .. 8. 245. 248, 831, 524.
c__Totals (add lines 3a and 3b) 8. 260. 3, 251, 304, 901.
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
» Attach to Form 990.
P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on
Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.
1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
grants or assistance?

Yes |:| No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is (f) Total
offices in the employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent  |investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors located in the region)
in the region
(1) EURCPE 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT 44, 146.
(2) EURCPE 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUMNI ACTI VI TY 16, 212.
(3) EURCPE 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 466, 807.
(4) EURCPE 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES DONATI ONS 24, 766.
(5) EURCPE 1. 44, PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 3, 228, 886.
(6) EUROPE 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES PERFORMANCE/ EXHI BI TI ON 13, 316.
(7) EURCPE 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 55, 665.
(8) EURCPE 0. 9. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 1, 495, 275.
(9) EURCPE 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 671, 680.
(10) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS 2,381, 169.
(11) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT 1, 584.
(12) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUMNI  ACTI VI TY 2, 000.
(13) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 16, 035.
(14) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 2. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 64, 417.
(15) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 1,577.
(16) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 1. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 38, 498.
(17) M DDLE EAST AND NORTH AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 1, 967.
3a Sub-total . ... ... ..
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part| _ . . ..
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

» Attach to Form 990.

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58-

Employer identification number

0566256

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on
Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
Grants OF @SSISIANCE? . . . . . . . . . ... ves [ No
2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.
3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)
(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is (f) Total
offices in the employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent  |investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors located in the region)
in the region
(1) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 | NVESTMENTS 43, 475, 359.
(2) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 | NVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT 404,
(3) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUWNI  ACTI VI TY 7, 080.
(4) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 120, 261.
(5) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 4,478.
(6) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES GRANT 5, 000.
(7) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 10, 126.
(8) NORTH AMERI CA 0 3 PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 132, 092.
(9) NORTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 575, 108.
(10) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0 0 | NVESTMENTS 1, 338, 331.
(11) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 5, 928.
(12) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0. 1 PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 72, 056.
(13) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 2,527.
(14) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0 19. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 197, 954.
(15) RUSSIA AND NEI GHBORI NG STATES 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 582, 961.
(16) SOUTH AMERI CA 0 0 | NVESTMENTS 8, 097, 849.
(17) SOUTH AMERI CA 0 0 PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUWNI ACTI VI TY 4,248,
3a Sub-total, , ... ...,
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part| _ . . ..
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.
» Attach to Form 990.

Department of the Treasury P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Internal Revenue Service
Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on
Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.
1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
grants or assistance?

Yes |:| No

2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.

3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)

(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is (f) Total
offices in the employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent  |investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors located in the region)
in the region
(1) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 31, 040.
(2) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 6. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 170, 080.
(3) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES GRANT 16, 500.
(4) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 22,148.
(5) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 6. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 121, 549.
(6) SOUTH AMERI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 620, 714.
(7) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS I NVESTMENTS 61, 790, 264.
(8) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT 54,592,
(9) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUMNI  ACTI VI TY 5, 654.
(10) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 2,131.
(11) SOUTH ASI A 0. 8. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 635, 247.
(12) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES GRANT 5, 000.
(13) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES RECRUI TI NG 34,571.
(14) SOUTH ASI A 0. 10. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 615, 113.
(15) SOUTH ASI A 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 4,321, 076.
(16) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS 100, 626, 032.
(17) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. | NVESTMENTS MANAGEMENT FEES 791, 855.
3a Sub-total . ... ... ..
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part| _ . . ..
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
JSA
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SCHEDULE F
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

» Attach to Form 990.

Statement of Activities Outside the United States

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 14b, 15, or 16.

P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Form 990, Part IV, line 14b.

General Information on Activities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on

1 For grantmakers. Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of its grants and other
assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and the selection criteria used to award the
Grants OF @SSISIANCE? . . . . . . . . . ... ves [ No
2 For grantmakers. Describe in Part V the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of its grants and other
assistance outside the United States.
3 Activities per Region. (The following Part |, line 3 table can be duplicated if additional space is needed.)
(a) Region (b) Number of (c) Number of | (d) Activities conducted in the (e) If activity listed in (d) is (f) Total
offices in the employees, region (by type) (such as, a program service, expenditures for
region agents, and fundraising, program services, describe specific type of and investments
independent  |investments, grants to recipients service(s) in the region in the region
contractors located in the region)
in the region
(1) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES ALUWNI  ACTI VI TY 781.
(2) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES CONFERENCE 38, 665.
(3) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 3. PROGRAM SERVI CES EDUCATI ON 101, 714.
(4) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES GRANT 11, 000.
(5) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 7. 133. PROGRAM SERVI CES RESEARCH 7,169, 153.
(6) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA 0. 0. PROGRAM SERVI CES SUBCONTRACT 8, 490, 883.
)
(8)
9
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
(17)
3a Sub-total, , ... ...,
b Total from continuation
sheetsto Part| _ . . ..
c Totals (add lines 3a and 3b)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256

Page 2

Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,

1 (a) Name of (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (9) Amount of (h) Description | (i) Method of
organization section and EIN grant cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
(if applicable) disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal, other)

(1) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 33,745. | WRE
(2) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 18,991. | WRE
(3) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 7,500. | WRE
(4) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 232,104. | WRE
(5) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 65,550. | WRE
(6) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 217,494. | WRE
(7) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 28,998. | WRE
(8) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 10,500. | WRE
(9) NORTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 30,707. | WRE
(10) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 215,092. | WRE
(11) SOUTH AS| A RESEARCH SUB 52,067. | WRE
(12) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 56, 744. | WRE
(13) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 329,514. | WRE
(14) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 713,712. | WRE
(15) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 29,867. | WRE
(16) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 11,321. | WRE

2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as tax-exempt

by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter >
3 Enter total number of other organizations orentities. . . . . . . .. ..o u e e e e e e e >
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256
Page 2

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,
Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name of (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (9) Amount of (h) Description | (i) Method of
organization section and EIN grant cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
(if applicable) disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal, other)
(1) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 2,020, 395. W RE
(2 EAST ASl A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 64,134, | WRE
(3) SOUTH AS| A RESEARCH SUB 17,757. | WRE
(4) CENT. AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN RESEARCH SUB 354, 728. W RE
(5) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 377,265. | WRE
(6) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | DONATI ON 143,812, | WRE
(7) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 381,412. | WRE
(8) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 1,772,289. | WRE
(9) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 130,704. | WRE
(10) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH' SUB 6,070. | WRE
(11) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND RESEARCH SUB 23, 547. W RE
(12) EUROPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 25,000. | WRE
(13) EUROPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 2,567,291. | WRE
(14) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 8, 575. W RE
(15) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH' SUB 392,867. | WRE
(16) EUROPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 23,768. | WRE

2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as tax-exempt

by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter

3  Enter total number of other organizations or entities
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256
Page 2

Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,

1 (a) Name of (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (9) Amount of (h) Description | (i) Method of
organization section and EIN grant cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
(if applicable) disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal, other)

(1) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C DONATI ON 91,271. | WRE
(2) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 6,500. | WRE
(3) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 50,329. | WRE
(4) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 29,803. | WRE
(5) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 77,500. | WRE
(6) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 20,854. | WRE
(7) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 150, 623. | WRE
(8) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 94,996. | WRE
(9) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 64,096. | WRE
(10) SOUTH AS| A RESEARCH SUB 12,882, | WRE
(11) SOUTH AS| A RESEARCH SUB 22,721. | WRE
(12) NORTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 139, 617. | WRE
(13) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 165,992. | WRE
(14) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 261,333. | WRE
(15) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 687,220. | WRE
(16) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 11,619. | WRE

2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as tax-exempt

by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter >
3 Enter total number of other organizations orentities. . . . .. ... ... ... ... ...\t . >
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256

Page 2

Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,

1 (a) Name of (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (9) Amount of (h) Description | (i) Method of
organization section and EIN grant cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
(if applicable) disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal, other)

(1) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 9,756. | WRE
(2) RUSSI A AND NEI GHBORI NG S | RESEARCH SUB 43,649. | WRE
(3) SOUTH ASI A RESEARCH SUB 135,111. | WRE
(4) NORTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 137,078. | WRE
(5) EUROPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 33,610. | WRE
(6) NORTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 207,000. | WRE
(7) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 88,816. | WRE
(8) CENT. AMERI CA/ CARI BBEAN RESEARCH SUB 671,660. | WRE
(9) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 164,366. | WRE
(10) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 51,424. | WRE
(11) SOUTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 7,133. | WRE
(12) NORTH AMERI CA RESEARCH SUB 60, 506. | WRE
(13) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 160, 052. | WRE
(14) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 30,924. | WRE
(15) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 31,144. | WRE
(16) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 95,719. | WRE

2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as tax-exempt

by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter >
3 Enter total number of other organizations orentities. . . . . . . .. ..o u e e e e e e e >
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256

Page 2

Part IV, line 15, for any recipient who received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations or Entities Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990,

1 (a) Name of (b) IRS code (c) Region (d) Purpose of (e) Amount of (f) Manner of (9) Amount of (h) Description | (i) Method of
organization section and EIN grant cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
(if applicable) disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,
appraisal, other)

(1) EURCPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | RESEARCH SUB 37,471. | WRE
(2) EAST ASI A/ PACI FI C RESEARCH SUB 170,136. | WRE
(3) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 31,794. | WRE
(4) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 1,915,753, | WRE
(5) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 28,856. | WRE
(6) SUB- SAHARAN AFRI CA RESEARCH SUB 597,641. | WRE
(7) EUROPE/ | CELAND/ GREENLAND | DONATI ON 22,500. | WRE
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)

2  Enter total number of recipient organizations listed above that are recognized as charities by the foreign country, recognized as tax-exempt

by the IRS, or for which the grantee or counsel has provided a section 501(c)(3) equivalency letter ... ... ... > 71.
3 Enter total number of other organizations orentities . . . . . . . . . . . . . L. L e e e e e e e e e e e »
Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Schedule F (Form 990) 2017 Page 3
Part IlI Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals Outside the United States. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 16.
Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.
(a) Type of grant or assistance (b) Region (c) Number of (d) Amount of (e) Manner of (f) Amount of (9) Description (h) Method of
recipients cash grant cash noncash of noncash valuation
disbursement assistance assistance (book, FMV,

appraisal, other)

1)

(2

(3)

4

(5)

(6)

@)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

a7

(18)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Schedule F (Form 990) 2017

Part IV Foreign Forms

58- 0566256

Page 4

Was the organization a U.S. transferor of property to a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,"
the organization may be required to file Form 926, Return by a U.S. Transferor of Property to a Foreign
Corporation (see Instructions for Form 926)

Did the organization have an interest in a foreign trust during the tax year? If "Yes," the organization
may be required to separately file Form 3520, Annual Return To Report Transactions With Foreign
Trusts and Receipt of Certain Foreign Gifts, and/or Form 3520-A, Annual Information Return of Foreign
Trust With a U.S. Owner (see Instructions for Forms 3520 and 3520-A; don't file with Form 990)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign corporation during the tax year? If "Yes,"
the organization may be required to file Form 5471, Information Return of U.S. Persons With Respect To
Certain Foreign Corporations (see Instructions for Form 5471)

Was the organization a direct or indirect shareholder of a passive foreign investment company or a
qualified electing fund during the tax year? If "Yes," the organization may be required to file Form 8621,
Information Return by a Shareholder of a Passive Foreign Investment Company or Qualified Electing
Fund (see Instructions for Form 8621)

Did the organization have an ownership interest in a foreign partnership during the tax year? If "Yes,"
the organization may be required to file Form 8865, Return of U.S. Persons With Respect to Certain
Foreign Partnerships (see Instructions for Form 8865)

Did the organization have any operations in or related to any boycotting countries during the tax year? If
"Yes," the organization may be required to separately file Form 5713, International Boycott Report (see
Instructions for Form 5713; don't file with Form 990)

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

Yes

|:|No

|:|No

JSA
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Schedule F (Form 990) 2017 Page 5

Supplemental Information
Provide the information required by Part I, line 2 (monitoring of funds); Part I, line 3, column (f) (accounting method;
amounts of investments vs. expenditures per region); Part Il, line 1 (accounting method); Part lll (accounting method); and
Part 1ll, column (c) (estimated number of recipients), as applicable. Also complete this part to provide any additional
information (see instructions).

FORM 990, SCHEDULE F, PART I, LINE 2

PROCESS FOR MONI TORI NG THE USE OF GRANT FUNDS QUTSI DE THE U. S.

EMORY USES STANDARD OPERATI NG PROCEDURES FOR EACH GRANT AGREEMENT THAT
| NCLUDES REGULAR MONI TORI NG OF ACTIVITY M LESTONES, BUDGETS, AND
EXPENDI TURES. EMORY UNI VERSI TY ALSO REQUI RES LEGAL SUBCONTRACTS THAT

| NCLUDE DETAI LED ACTIVITY AND BUDGET M LESTONES. TECHNI CAL AND FI NANCI AL
REPORTS ARE REVI EWED CLOSELY. EMORY UNI VERSI TY |'S RESPONSI BLE FCR
ENSURI NG THAT | T COMWWUNI CATES THE RELEVANT AND NECESSARY | NFORMATI ON
CONTAI NED I N THE AWARD DOCUMENT TO THE SUBRECI PI ENTS. THE OFFI CE OF
SPONSORED PROGRAMS MAI NTAI NS A COPY OF THE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT, WHI CH
STI PULATES THE TERM5 OF THE AWARD AND IS S| GNED BY REPRESENTATI VES OF
BOTH EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND THE SUBRECI PI ENT ORGANI ZATI ON. THI S AGREEMENT
| NDI CATES THAT THE SUBRECI PI ENT UNDERSTANDS AND | S AWARE OF THE AWARD
REQUI REMENTS. | N ADDI TION, | F THERE ARE ANY FURTHER CHANGES TO THE
AGREEMENT, AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT |'S GENERATED AND SI GNED BY THE

REPRESENTATI VE OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND THE SUBREC! PI ENT.

JSA Schedule F (Form 990) 2017
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SCHEDULE G Supplemental Information Regarding Fundraising or Gaming Activities | OMB No. 1545-0047

" Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17, 18, or 19, or if the
(Form 990 or 990 EZ) organization entered more than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

P> Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.

Department of the Treasury Open to Public

Internal Revenue Service P> Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest instructions. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Fundraising Activities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 17.

Form 990-EZ filers are not required to complete this part.
1 Indicate whether the organization raised funds through any of the following activities. Check all that apply.
Mail solicitations e Solicitation of non-government grants
Internet and email solicitations f Solicitation of government grants
Phone solicitations g Special fundraising events
In-person solicitations

o O T o

2a Did the organization have a written or oral agreement with any individual (including officers, directors, trustees,
or key employees listed in Form 990, Part VII) or entity in connection with professional fundraising services? Yes |:| No
b If "Yes," list the 10 highest paid individuals or entities (fundraisers) pursuant to agreements under which the fundraiser is to be
compensated at least $5,000 by the organization.

(i) Name and address of individual (iii) Did fundraiser have (iv) Gross receipts (VzoArTe?:irr]]tegatf/)to (vi) Amount paid to
] ; (i) Activity custody or control of e f - } (or retained by)
or entity (fundraiser) - from activity fundraiser listed in e
contributions? col. () organization
Yes No
1
ATTACHVENT 1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
TOtAl Lot et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > 406, 762. 64, 882. 341, 880.

3 List all states in which the organization is registered or licensed to solicit contributions or has been notified it is exempt from
registration or licensing.

AL, AK, AZ, AR, CA, CO, CT, DE, DC, FL, GA, HI , I D, I L, I N,
I A, KS, KY, LA, ME, ND, NA, M, M\, M5, MO, MT, NE, NV, NH, NJ, NM NY, NC, ND, CH,
XK, OR PA R, SC, SD, TN, TX, UT, VT, VA, WA, W/, W , WY,

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
JSA
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58- 0566256

Page 2

Fundraising Events. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 18, or reported more

than $15,000 of fundraising event contributions and gross income on Form 990-EZ, lines 1 and 6b. List events with
gross receipts greater than $5,000.

(a) Event #1 (b) Event #2 (c) Other events (d) Total events
W NSHI P GALA W NSHI P 5K 5. | (add col. (a) through
(event type) (event type) (total number) col. (C))
S
§ 1 Grossreceipts . . . . ... ..... 1,173, 202. 1, 005, 123. 1, 039, 137. 3,217, 462.
o)
hd
2 Less: Contributions | . . .. .. .. 942, 259. 862, 218. 878, 676. 2,683, 153.
3 Gross income (line 1 minus
Ne2). . v i i i i 230, 943. 142, 905. 160, 461. 534, 309.
4 Cashprizes, . . . ..........
5 Noncashprizes, , .. ... .....
8| 6 Rentfacilty costs . . . 106, 555. 101, 858. 208, 413.
g
& | 7 Food and beverages ., . . . .. ...
S
e
& | 8 Entertainment = ...,
9 Other direct expenses , _ . . . . .. 119, 914. 113, 406 214,938 448, 258.
10 Direct expense summary. Add lines 4 through 9incolumn(d) _ . . . . ... . . . ... . . ..... > 656, 671.
11 Net income summary. Subtract line 10 from line 3, column (d) . . . . . . o v o o v o e e e > -122, 362.
Part Il Gaming. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 19, or reported more

than $15,000 on Form 990-EZ, line 6a.

o) ; b) Pull tabs/instant i (d) Total gaming (add
2 (a) Bingo birggz)/progressive bingo (c) Other gaming col. (a) through col. (c))
2
&

1 Grossrevenue , , ., .........
@| 2 Cashprizes . . .. ....
[72]
5
2| 3 Noncashprizes ...........
]
© .
® | 4 Rent/facility costs = .
=

5 Other directexpenses , . ... ...

|| Yes % | |Yes % [|__|Yes %

6 Volunteer labor, . .. .. No No No

7 Direct expense summary. Add lines 2 through 5incolumn(d) = . . . ... .. ... ....... >

8 Net gaming income summary. Subtract line 7 from line 1, column (d) »

9 Enter the state(s) in which the organization conducts gaming activities:

a Is the organization licensed to conduct gaming activities in each of these states?

b If "No," explain:

|_|Yes |_, No

10a

b If "Yes," explain:

Were any of the organization's gaming licenses revoked, suspended, or terminated during the tax year?

|_|Yes |_, No

JSA
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11
12

13
a

b
14

15a

16

17
a

b

Indicate the percentage of gaming activity conducted in:
The organization's facility 13a %

An outside facility 13b %

Enter the name and address of the person who prepares the organization's gaming/special events books and
records:

If "Yes," enter the amount of gaming revenue received by the organizaton®» $ and the
amount of gaming revenue retained by the thirdparty » $
If "Yes," enter name and address of the third party:

Description of services provided »

|:| Director/officer |:| Employee |:| Independent contractor

Mandatory distributions:

Is the organization required under state law to make charitable distributions from the gaming proceeds to

retain the state gaming license?, . . . . . . . . ... e e [ Jves [ Ino
Enter the amount of distributions required under state law to be distributed to other exempt organizations

or spent in the organization's own exempt activities during the tax year p $

Supplemental Information. Provide the explanation required by Part I, line 2b, columns (iii) and (v), and

Part lll, lines 9, 9b, 10b, 15b, 15¢, 16, and 17b, as applicable. Also provide any additional information
(see instructions).

JSA
7E1503 1.000

Schedule G (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PACGE 64



EMORY UNI VERSI TY

990, SCHEDULE G PART | -

NAME AND ADDRESS OF
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MA 01960- 7906
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58- 0566256
ATTACHVENT 1

GROSS RECEI PTS
FROM ACTIVITY

AMOUNT PAI D TO
(OR RETAI NED BY

AMOUNT PAID TO
(OR RETAI NED BY

FUNDRAI SER ORGANI ZATI ON
406, 762. 64, 882. 341, 880.
ATTACHMENT 1
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SCHEDULE H Hospitals OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) 2@ 1 7

Open to Public
Inspection

P Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, question 20.
P Attach to Form 990.

Department of the Treasu . . . . .
P v P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Yes| No
la Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No," skip to question6a . . . . . . .. 1a| X
b If"Yes,"wasitawrittenpolicy?. . . . . . o i i i i e e e e e e s e e e s 1b | X

2 If the organization had multiple hospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of
the financial assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year.
Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities |:| Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
- Generally tailored to individual hospital facilities

3 Answer the following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of
the organization's patients during the tax year.

a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing
free care? If "Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care: |3a X
100% |:| 150% |:| 200% Other %

b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If "Yes,"
indicate which of the followin([; was the familﬁcome limit for eligibility for discounted care: , . . .. ... ..... 3b [ X

200% |:| 250% 300% 350% |:| 400% Other %

¢ If the organization used factors other than FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the criteria used
for determining eligibility for free or discounted care. Include in the description whether the organization used
an asset test or other threshold, regardless of income, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or
discounted care.

4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the

tax year provide for free or discounted care to the "medically indigent™?. . . . . . . . . . . i v i v it it e 4 | X
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial assistance policy during the tax year? 5a X
b If "Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? . . . . . ... ... ... 5b X
If "Yes" to line 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or
discounted care to a patient who was eligible for free or discounted care? . . . . . . . .. .. v o v i oo 5¢c
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the taxyear? . . . ... ... ... ... ... ... 6a | X
b If "Yes," did the organization make itavailabletothepublic? . . . . . . . . . . . o o v oo oo e e 6b | X

Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions. Do not submit
these worksheets with the Schedule H.
7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost

Financial Assistance and (a) ’t\"u'rtnber of (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent
Means-Tested Government apcrg/lrlaersngr served benefit expense revenue benefit expense of total
Programs {optional) (optional) expense
a Financial Assistance at cost
(from Worksheot 1) - « + - 54, 186, 282. 54, 186, 282. 1.37
b Medicaid (from Worksheet 3,
161, 567, 721. 135, 318, 823. 26, 248, 898. . 66

columna) « + v & 4 & 4
C Costs of other means-tested
government programs (from
Worksheet 3, coumnb) . .
d Total Financial Assistance and
Means-Tested Government

Programs o « « « + « o s 215, 754, 003. 135, 318, 823. 80, 435, 180. 2.03
Other Benefits

€ Community health improvement

services and community benefit 3, 562, 843 3, 562, 843 . 09

operations (from Worksheet 4) «

f Health professions education

(rom Workshoot 5) . . . . 333, 421, 306. 69, 161, 560. 264, 259, 746. 6. 69

g Subsidized health services (from

Worksheet ) « « + « + . © 235, 677, 084. 135, 318, 823. 100, 358, 261. 2.54
h  Ressarch (rom Workshest 7 586, 458, 058. 467, 750, 882. 118, 707, 176. 3.00

i Cashand in-kind contributions
for community beneft fom 210, 308. 210, 308. .01
i Total. Other Benefs . . . . 1,159, 329, 599. 672, 231, 265. 487, 098, 334. 12.33
k Total. Add lines 7d and 7j. . 1, 375, 083, 602. 807, 550, 088. 567, 533, 514. 14. 36
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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Community Building Activities Complete this table if the organization conducted any community building

activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities promoted the

health of the communities it serves.

(a) Number of | (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent of
activities or served building expense revenue building expense total expense
programs (optional)
(optional)
1 Physical improvements and housing
2 Economic development
3 Community support
4 Environmental improvements
5 Leadership development and
training for community members
6 Coalition building
7 Community health improvement
advocacy
8 Workforce development
9 Other
10 Total
Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Healthcare Financial Management Association
Statement NO. 157 . . . . L L . i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 | X
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense. Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate thisamount_ . , . . . ... ... .. 2 100, 352, 189.
3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense attributable to
patients eligible under the organization's financial assistance policy. Explain in Part VI
the methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale,
if any, for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit _ 3 2, 007, 000.
4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that describes bad debt
expense or the page number on which this footnote is contained in the attached financial statements.
Section B. Medicare
5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (includingDSHand IME) . . .. ... ... 5 390, 922, 402.
6 Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to paymentsonline5 . . . ... .. .. 6 415, 169, 428.
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5. This is the surplus (orshortfall) . . . ... .......... 7 - 24,247, 026.
8 Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community
benefit. Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported
on line 6. Check the box that describes the method used:
Cost accounting system Cost to charge ratio |:| Other
Section C. Collection Practices
9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the taxyear?. . . . . . . ... ... .. ... ... 9a | X
b If "Yes," did the organization's collection policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year contain provisions on the
collection practices to be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial assistance? DescribeinPartVI , ., , . . . . . . . . « . . 9b X

Part IV Management Companies and Joint Ventures (owned 10% or more by officers, directors

, trustees, key employees, and physicians - see instructions)

(a) Name of entity (b) Description of primary (c) Organization's (d) Officers, directors, (e) Physicians'
activity of entity profit % or stock trustees, or key profit % or stock
ownership % employees' profit % ownership %
or stock ownership %

1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9
10
11
12
13
JSA
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Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest - see instructions)

How many hospital facilities did the organization operate during

the tax year?
Name, address, primary website address, and state license
number (and if a group return, the name and EIN of the
subordinate hospital organization that operates the hospital
facility)

|endsoy pasuaor]

|e21Bins B [eoIpawW |Blausn)

leydsoy s,uaipjiyd

lendsoy Buiyoes |

|endsoy sseooe [eonl)

Aoey yosessay

sinoy yz-43

J8y10-43

Other (describe)

Facility
reporting
group

1 EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL

1364 CLI FTON ROAD, NE

ATLANTA GA 30322

WAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG

044-699

2 EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMWN

550 PEACHTREE STREET, NE

ATLANTA GA 30308

WAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG

060- 453

3 EMORY UNI VERSI TY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE

1455 MONTREAL ROAD, EAST

TUCKER GA 30084

VWAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG

044-636

4 EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA

3949 SOUTH COBB DRI VE

SMYRNA GA 30080

VWAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG

033-709

5

10

JSA
7E1286 1.000
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 4
Facility Information (continued)
Section B. Facility Policies and Practices
(complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group HCSPI TAL FACILITIES: LINES 1-4
Line number of hospital facility, or line numbers of hospital
facilities in a facility reporting group (from Part V, Section A): 1-4
Yes No
Community Health Needs Assessment
1  Was the hospital facility first licensed, registered, or similarly recognized by a state as a hospital facility in the
current tax year or the immediately preceding tax year? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e 1 X
2  Was the hospital facility acquired or placed into service as a tax-exempt hospital in the current tax year or
the immediately preceding tax year? If "Yes," provide details of the acquisition in SectionC , . . ... ... ... 2 X
3 During the tax year or either of the two immediately preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a
community health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skipto line 12 , . . . . . . . .. .. & . v, 3 | X
If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply):
a _X A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
b _X Demographics of the community
_X Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the
___ health needs of the community
d _X How data was obtained
e _X The significant health needs of the community
f _X Primary and chronic disease needs and other health issues of uninsured persons, low-income persons,
and minority groups
g The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the
community health needs
h The process for consulting with persons representing the community's interests
i The impact of any actions taken to address the significant health needs identified in the hospital
facility's prior CHNA(s)
j Other (describe in Section C)
4 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last conducted a CHNA: 20 i
5 In conducting its mostrecent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent
the broad interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or
expertise in public health? If "Yes," describe in Section C how the hospital facility took into account input from
persons who represent the community, and identify the persons the hospital facility consulted , . . . . ... .. 5 X
6a Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more other hospital facilities? If "Yes," list the other
hospital facilities in SECHON C . . . . . L .\ttt ettt e e e 6a | X
b Was the hospital facility's CHNA conducted with one or more organizations other than hospital facilities? If "Yes,"
list the other organizations in Section C | . | . . . . . . . ... ..ttt e e e 6b | X
7 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report widely available to the public? , . . . . ... ... ......... 7 | X
If "Yes," indicate how the CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply):
a Hospital facility's website (list url): EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG ABOUT/ COVMUNI TY. HTML
b - Other website (list url):
c Made a paper copy available for public inspection without charge at the hospital facility
d Other (describe in Section C)
8 Did the hospital facility adopt an implementation strategy to meet the significant community health needs
identified through its most recently conducted CHNA? If "No," skipto line 11, . . . . . . ... .. ... ..... 8 X
9 Indicate the tax year the hospital facility last adopted an implementation strategy: 20&
10 Is the hospital facility's most recently adopted implementation strategy posted on a website? , . . . . ... ... 10 | X
a If"Yes," (list ur|):El\/O?YHEALTHCARE. ORG ABOUT/ COMMUNI TY. HTML
b If "No," is the hospital facility's most recently adopted implementation strategy attached to this return? ., , . . . . 10b
11 Describe in Section C how the hospital facility is addressing the significant needs identified in its most
recently conducted CHNA and any such needs that are not being addressed together with the reasons why
such needs are not being addressed.
12a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a
CHNA as required by section 501(r)(3) 2 . . . . & . i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 12a X
If "Yes" to line 12a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the section 4959 excisetax? . . ... ... .. 12b
If "Yes" to line 12b, what is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form
4720 for all of its hospital facilities? $
;E’?ZS? 1000 Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply):

o 0O T o

X [ [

The FAP was widely available on a website (list url): SEE_PART VI

The FAP application form was widely available on a website (list url): SEE PART VI

A plain language summary of the FAP was widely available on a website (list url): SEE PART VI

The FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the hospital facility and
by mail)

The FAP application form was available upon request and without charge (in public locations in the
hospital facility and by mail)

A plain language summary of the FAP was available upon request and without charge (in public
locations in the hospital facility and by mail)

Individuals were notified about the FAP by being offered a paper copy of the plain language summary of
the FAP, by receiving a conspicuous written notice about the FAP on their billing statements, and via
conspicuous public displays or other measures reasonably calculated to attract patients' attention

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256 Page 5
Facility Information (continued)
Financial Assistance Policy (FAP)
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group HOSPI TAL FACI LI TIES: LI NES 1-4
Yes | No
Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that:
13 Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance included free or discounted care? | 13 X
If "Yes," indicate the eligibility criteria explained in the FAP:
a Federal poverty guidelines (FPG), with FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care of %
~__and FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care of %
b _X Income level other than FPG (describe in Section C)
¢ [ | Assetlevel
d _X Medical indigency
e _X Insurance status
f _X Underinsurance status
g || Residency
h || Other (describe in Section C)
14 Explained the basis for calculating amounts chargedtopatients?. . . . . . .. .. ... ... .......... 14 | X
15 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance?, . . . . . . . . . . . .. . . @ ' i urne.. 15 | X
If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility's FAP or FAP application form (including accompanying
instructions) explained the method for applying for financial assistance (check all that apply):
a Described the information the hospital facility may require an individual to provide as part of his or her
application
b Described the supporting documentation the hospital facility may require an individual to submit as part
of his or her application
c Provided the contact information of hospital facility staff who can provide an individual with information
about the FAP and FAP application process
d |:| Provided the contact information of nonprofit organizations or government agencies that may be
sources of assistance with FAP applications
e Other (describe in Section C)
16  Was widely publicized within the community served by the hospital facility? . . ... .............. 16 | X

h |:| Notified members of the community who are most likely to require financial assistance about availability
of the FAP
i The FAP, FAP application form, and plain language summary of the FAP were translated into the
primary language(s) spoken by LEP populations
j Other (describe in Section C)
Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 6
Facility Information (continued)
Billing and Collections
Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group HOSPI TAL FACI LI TIES: LI NES 1-4
17 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written Yes | No
financial assistance policy (FAP) that explained all of the actions the hospital facility or other authorized party
May take UPON NONPAYMENE? . . . o o v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 17 | X
18 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's
policies during the tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the
facility's FAP:
a || Reporting to credit agency(ies)
|| Selling an individual's debt to another party
|| Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to
~__nonpayment of a previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility's FAP
d || Actions that require a legal or judicial process
|| Other similar actions (describe in Section C)
f _X None of these actions or other similar actions were permitted
19 Did the hospital facility or other authorized party perform any of the following actions during the tax year
before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual's eligibility under the facility's FAP? , ., . . ... .. 19 X
If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged:
a || Reporting to credit agency(ies)
b || Selling an individual's debt to another party
¢ || Deferring, denying, or requiring a payment before providing medically necessary care due to
~_nonpayment of a previous bill for care covered under the hospital facility's FAP
d [ | Actions that require a legal or judicial process
e || Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

20 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility or other authorized party made before initiating any of the actions listed (whether or

not checked) in line 19 (check all that apply):

FAP at least 30 days before initiating those ECAs

Made a reasonable effort to orally notify individuals about the FAP and FAP application process
Processed incomplete and complete FAP applications

Made presumptive eligibility determinations

Other (describe in Section C)

f None of these efforts were made

[ [l [

T QO O T

Provided a written notice about upcoming ECAs (Extraordinary Collection Action) and a plain language summary of the

Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care

21 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care
that required the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to

individuals regardless of their eligibility under the hospital facility's financial assistance policy? , . . . ... ...

If "No," indicate why:

21

a The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions

b The hospital facility's policy was not in writing

c The hospital facility limited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe

in Section C)
d |:| Other (describe in Section C)
Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 7

Facility Information (continued)
Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance Under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)

Name of hospital facility or letter of facility reporting group HOSPI TAL FACILITIES: LINES 1-4

22 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged
to FAP-eligible individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care.

a |:| The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service
during a prior 12-month period

b |:| The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicare fee-for-service and
all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital facility during a prior 12-month period

c The hospital facility used a look-back method based on claims allowed by Medicaid, either alone or in
combination with Medicare fee-for-service and all private health insurers that pay claims to the hospital
facility during a prior 12-month period

d |:| The hospital facility used a prospective Medicare or Medicaid method

23 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility
provided emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to
individuals who had insurance covering such care? . = . . . . . . . o, 23 X
If "Yes," explain in Section C.

24  During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross
charge for any service provided to that individual? . . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i e e . 24 X

If "Yes," explain in Section C.

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule H (Form 990) 2017

Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B. Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
2, 3j, 5, 6a, 6b, 7d, 11, 13b, 13h, 15e, 16j, 18e, 19e, 20e, 21c, 21d, 23, and 24. If applicable, provide separate
descriptions for each hospital facility in a facility reporting group, designated by facility reporting group letter and
hospital facility line number from Part V, Section A ("A, 1," "A, 4," "B, 2," "B, 3," etc.) and name of hospital facility.

Page 8
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 9
Facility Information (continued)

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a Hospital Facility
(list in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year? 3
Name and address Type of Facility (describe)
1 EMORY AUTI SM CENTER DI AGNOSTI C EVALUATI ON
1551 SHOOP CT
DECATUR GA 30033
> FACULTY STAFF ASSI STANCE PROGRAM FACULTY AND STAFF HEALTHCARE
1762 CLI FTON RD
ATLANTA GA 30322
3 STUDENT HEALTH & COUNSELI NG SERVI CES STUDENT HEALTHCARE
1525 CLI FTON RD
ATLANTA GA 30322

10
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

PART I, LINE 3C

FPG ELI G BILITY:

NOT APPLI CABLE

PART |, LINE 6A

COVMMUNI TY BENEFI T REPORT:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY/ WOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER COVMUNI TY BENEFI T REPORT

CAN BE FOUND ON THE WVEB AT:

HTTP: / / WHSC. EMORY. EDU/ PUBLI CATI ONS/ COVMUNI TY- BENEFI TS- 2018/ | NDEX. HTML

PART I, LINE 7G

SUBSI DI ZED HEALTH SERVI CES:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HAS | NCLUDED $117, 216, 991 ATTRI BUTABLE TO PURCHASED

SERVI CES FROM THE EMORY CLINIC, INC. AS PART OF THE REPORTED SUBSI DI ZED

HEALTH SERVI CES TOTAL ON PART |, LINE 7G

JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=FY§@Vil Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons

who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

PART |, LINE 7, COLUWN F

PERCENT OF TOTAL EXPENSE:

IN THE "PERCENT OF TOTAL EXPENSE" CALCULATI ON CONTAI NED I N COLUW F OF
PART |, LINE 7, THE DENOM NATOR ( TOTAL FUNCTI ONAL EXPENSES REPORTED ON
PART | X, LINE 25A) WAS REDUCED BY $100, 352, 189 THE TOTAL PROVI SI ON FOR

BAD DEBTS | NCLUDED I N THAT NUMBER.

PART I, LINE 7

FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE AND CERTAI N OTHER COVMUNI TY BENEFI TS AT COST:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY | NCLUDES ONE OF THE NATI ON S LEADI NG ACADEM C COVPLEXES
FOR TEACHI NG RESEARCH, AND PATI ENT CARE - THE ROBERT W WOODRUFF HEALTH
SCI ENCES CENTER (WHSC). THE WHSC | NCLUDES EMORY UNI VERSI TY SCHOCL OF
MEDI CI NE, NELL HODGSON WOODRUFF SCHOOL OF NURSI NG ROLLINS SCHOOL OF
PUBLI C HEALTH, W NSHI P CANCER | NSTI TUTE, YERKES NATI ONAL PRI MATE RESEARCH
CENTER, AND EMCORY HEALTHCARE, WHICH | S THE WHSC S SYSTEM OF HEALTH CARE

OPERATI ONS.  EMORY HEALTHCARE | NCLUDES PHYSI Cl AN GROUPS FOR PEDI ATRI C AND

JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

ADULT PATIENTS AS WELL AS THE FOLLOW NG HOSPI TALS: (1) FOUR GENERAL AND

ACUTE CARE HOSPI TALS: EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL, EMORY UNI VERSI TY

ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL, EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOAN AND

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA; AND (2) TWO JO NT VENTURES: EMORY- SAI NT

JOSEPH S, INC. (WHI CH | NCLUDES EMORY JOHNS CREEK HOSPI TAL, AND SAI NT

JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF ATLANTA, I NC.) AND EMORY REHABI LI TATI ON HOSPI TAL.

ALTHOUGH PART OF THE EMORY HEALTHCARE SYSTEM THE VARI QUS HOSPI TALS ARE

OPERATI NG DI VI SIONS OF DI FFERENT EMORY ENTI TI ES. EMORY UNI VERSI TY

HOSPI TAL, EMORY UNI VERSI TY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL, EMORY

UNI VERSI TY HCOSPI TAL M DTOAN AND EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA ARE

OPERATI NG DI VI SIONS OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY. EMORY JOHNS CREEK HOSPI TAL AND

SAI NT JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF ATLANTA, |INC. ARE PART OF A JO NT VENTURE W TH

SAINT JOSEPH S HEALTH SYSTEM I NC. EMORY REHABI LI TATI ON HOSPI TAL |'S PART

OF A JO NT VENTURE W TH SELECT MEDI CAL CORPORATI ON. | N ADDI TI ON, EMORY

HAS CLOSE WORKI NG RELATI ONSHI PS W TH OTHER HOSPI TALS, | NCLUDI NG GRADY

MEMORI AL HOSPI TAL (" GRADY"), CHILDREN S HEALTHCARE OF ATLANTA, INC. AND

THE ATLANTA VETERANS AFFAI RS MEDI CAL CENTER (" ATLANTA VA"'). EMORY

JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

UNI VERSI TY SCHOOL OF MEDICINE IS A MAJOR SUPPLI ER OF THE PHYSI Cl ANS ( BOTH

MEDI CAL FACULTY AND PHYSI Cl AN RESI DENTS I N TRAI NI NG AT GRADY, PROVI DI NG

80

% OF PHYSI Cl AN CARE AT THIS FACILITY, WH CH IS ONE OF THE LARGEST

PUBLI C HOSPI TALS I N THE SOUTHEAST.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL, EMORY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL, EMCORY

UNI VERSI TY HCSPI TAL M DTOW, AS WELL AS GRADY, THE ATLANTA VA, AND

CHI LDREN S HEALTHCARE OF ATLANTA, |INC. SERVE AS TEACHI NG FACI LI TI ES FOR

THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY SCHOOL OF MEDI CI NE ( PROVI DI NG VENUES FOR RESI DENCY

TRAI NI NG AND EMORY' S NELL HODGSON WOODRUFF SCHOOL OF NURSI NG ( PROVI DI NG

DEDI CATED EDUCATI ON UNI TS FOR NURSI NG STUDENTS). EMORY UNI VERSI TY

HOSPI TAL AND EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOAN ALSO ARE ACTI VE SI TES

w

THIN THE CLI NI CAL | NTERACTI ON NETWORK OF THE NI H- SPONSORED ATLANTA

CLI NI CAL & TRANSLATI ONAL SCI ENCE | NSTI TUTE (ACTSI), WH CH SEEKS TO MAKE

CLI NI CAL TRI ALS FOR NEW TREATMENTS MORE EFFI Cl ENT AND MORE AVAI LABLE

THROUGHOUT THE COVMMUNI TY. EMORY | S THE LEAD PARTNER I N ACTSI, WH CH ALSO

I NVOLVES MOREHOUSE SCHOOL OF MEDI CI NE AND THE GEORG A | NSTI TUTE OF

TECHNCLOGY.

JSA
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

THROUGH THE EMORY MEDI CAL CARE FOUNDATI ON, INC. (EMCF), WHICH IS

CONTRCLLED BY EMORY UNI VERSI TY, EMORY PHYSI Cl ANS PROVI DED $36.3 M LLI ON

I N UNCOVMPENSATED PATI ENT CARE TO GRADY I N FY 2018. | N ADDI TI ON, EMCF

I NVESTS ANY REI MBURSEMENTS THAT EMORY FACULTY DO RECElI VE FOR SERVI CES

RENDERED AT GRADY TO UPGRADE EQUI PMENT AND SUPPORT VI TAL SERVI CES

PROVI DED BY EMORY PHYSI Cl ANS WORKI NG AT GRADY. EMCF | NVESTED $53. 1

M LLION FOR TH S PURPCSE I N FY 2018. EMORY ALSO PROVI DES 80% COF

PHYSI Cl AN CARE AT CHI LDREN S AT HUGHES SPALDI NG A PEDI ATRI C HOSPI TAL ON

GRADY' S CAMPUS OPERATED BY CHI LDREN' S HEALTHCARE OF ATLANTA, | NC.

THE TOTAL CHARI TY CARE AND COVMUNI TY BENEFI T ATTRI BUTED TO THE

ORGANI ZATI ON | S LOCATED ON PART I, LINE 7 OF SCHEDULE H. FOR A MORE

COVPREHENSI VE OVERVI EW OF THE TOTAL CHARI TY CARE AND COMMUNI TY BENEFI T

PROVI DED BY EMORY HEALTHCARE, PLEASE VI EW THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY/ WOODRUFF

HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER COVMMUNI TY BENEFI T REPCORT AT:

HTTP: / / WHSC. EMORY. EDU/ PUBLI CATI ONS/ COVMUNI TY- BENEFI TS- 2018/ | NDEX. HTML

JSA
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

FOR MORE SPECI FI CS AND A BREAKDOWN OF CHARI TY CARE BY | NDI VI DUAL FACI LI TY

AND FOR A CHART AGGREGATI NG A VARI ETY OF COVWUNI TY BENEFI TS I N DOLLAR

FI GURES SEE:

HTTP: / / WHSC. EMORY. EDU/ PUBLI CATI ONS/ COVMUNI TY- BENEFI TS- 2018/ CC- OVERVI EW HTM

L

I N COVPARI SON W TH OTHER HOSPI TALS | N METRO ATLANTA AND THE SURROUNDI NG

COVMUNI TY, EMORY HEALTHCARE HOSPI TALS ARE REFERRED A DI SPROPORTI ONATE

NUMBER OF PATI ENTS W TH EXTREMELY COMPLEX AND CHALLENG NG CONDI TI ONS.

OTHER AREA HOSPI TALS ROUTI NELY REFER PATI ENTS TO EMORY FOR WHOM THEY HAVE

NO OTHER TREATMENT RECOURSE. THESE SI CKEST- OF- THE- SI CK PATI ENTS ARE NOT

ONLY THE MOST CLI NI CALLY CHALLENG NG BUT ALSO THE MOST COSTLY PATI ENTS TO

TREAT. AT EMORY, SUCH PATI ENTS FI ND CLI Nl CI ANS DETERM NED TO PROVI DE THE

BEST, MOST COWPASSI ONATE CARE POSSI BLE REGARDLESS OF THESE PATI ENTS

ABI LI TY TO PAY.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL, | N PARTI CULAR, |I'S NOTED AS A DESTI NATI ON FOR

PATIENTS IN TH S H G+ ACUI TY CATEGORY. THI S HOSPI TAL CONTI NUES TO BE IN

JSA
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

THE TOP TWENTY OF THE HI GHEST CASE-M X | NDEX OF HOSPI TALS | N THE VI ZI ENT

DATABASE F/ K/ A UNI VERSI TY HEALTH SYSTEM CONSORTI UM DATABASE, WH CH MEANS

THAT | TS PATI ENTS ARE AMONG THE Sl CKEST TREATED ANYWHERE | N THE COUNTRY

AND | NCLUDE PATI ENTS ROUTI NELY REFERRED FROM HOSPI TALS THROUGHOUT ATLANTA

AND THE REG ON. EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL ALSO PROVI DES SERVI CES AND

PROCEDURES AVAI LABLE NONHERE ELSE | N THE STATE, | NCLUDI NG HI GH COVPLEX

TRANSPLANT PROCEDURES, AMONG OTHERS. EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL HELPS

Pl ONEER, TEST, AND DEVELOP NEW PROCEDURES THAT EVENTUALLY MAKE THEI R WAY

I NTO THE BROADER COVWMUNI TY OF HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS. | N ADDI TICON, IN

PARTNERSHI P W TH THE CENTERS FOR DI SEASE CONTRCL AND PREVENTI ON, EMORY

UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL HAS A SPECI AL | SOLATION UNIT FOR THE CARE OF PATI ENTS

W TH SERI QUS COVMUNI CABLE DI SEASES - SUCH AS CDC EMPLOYEES WHO HAVE

CONFI RVED, PROBABLE, OR SUSPECTED | NFECTI ON W TH OR EXPOSURE TO PATHOGENS

SUCH AS EBOLA, SMALLPOX, PNEUMONI C PLAGUE, OR SARS THAT ARE ASSOCI ATED

W TH HI GH | NFECTI VI TY RATES.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMN (EUHM), WH CH | NCLUDES A LEVEL 111

NEONATAL | NTENSI VE CARE UNIT AMONG | TS OTHER | CUS, ALSO HAS A CASE-M X

JSA
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Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

I NDEX THAT IS CONSI DERABLY HI GHER THAN THAT OF MOST COMMUNI TY HOSPI TALS.

I N PARTNERSHI P W TH THE ATLANTA POLI CE DEPARTMENT, EMORY UNI VERSI TY

HOSPI TAL M DTOMWN HAS A M NI ATLANTA POLI CE STATI ON PRECI NCT ON I TS SI TE,

VH CH HOUSES NUMEROUS SWORN POLI CE EMPLOYEES W TH RESPONSI BI LI TY FOR

PATROLLI NG M DTOMN AND DOANTOWN ATLANTA. EUHM SPONSCRS PERI CDI C WORKDAYS

DURI NG WHI CH EMPLOYEES DO CLEAN- UP ACTI VI TI ES | N THE NEI GHBORHOCD AROUND

EUHM EUHM ALSO COLLABORATES W TH STATE ACGENCI ES | N GEORG A AND THE

ROSWELL EMPLOYMENT AGENCY BRI GGS & ASSOCI ATES ON PRQJECT SEARCH TO TARGET

H GH SCHOOL SENI ORS W TH DEVELOPMENTAL DI SABI LI TI ES FOR ONE- ON- ONE JOB
TRAI NI NG AND COACHI NG. THESE YOUNG PECPLE BECOVE REGULAR EMPLOYEES,

EARNI NG REGULAR WAGES.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL (EUCSH), AN EXTENSI ON OF
EUH S ACUTE CARE SERVI CES, |S A 120-BED FACI LI TY THAT PROVI DES MEDI CAL
AND SURG CAL CARE FOR ORTHOPAEDI C AND SPI NE PATI ENTS AS WELL AS GENERAL
ACUTE CARE FOR PATI ENTS W TH NONSURG CAL NEEDS. AS A NOT- FOR- PROFI T
ACADEM C MEDI CAL CENTER, EUH AND EUOCSH ARE COWM TTED TO PROVI DI NG THE

BEST CARE FOR OUR PATI ENTS, EDUCATI NG HEALTH PROFESSI ONALS AND LEADERS
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

FOR THE FUTURE, PURSU NG DI SCOVERY RESEARCH, AND SERVI NG CUR COVMUNI TY.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA ( EUHS) HAS PROUDLY SERVED THE HEALTH
CARE NEEDS OF CUR NEI GHBORS SI NCE 1974. EUHS | S AN 88- BED COVMUNI TY
HOSPI TAL THAT IS LOCATED | N SMYRNA (COBB COUNTY) GEORG A. ORI G NALLY
FOUNDED AS SMYRNA HOSPI TAL BY A GROUP COF PHYSI CI ANS | N 1974, ADVENTI ST
HEALTH SYSTEM ACQUI RED THE HOSPI TAL IN 1976, MAKING | T THE FI RST
HEALTHCARE | NSTI TUTI ON I N THE ATLANTA AREA AFFI LI ATED W TH THE

SEVENTH- DAY ADVENTI ST CHURCH. | N 1995, ADVENTI ST HEALTH SYSTEM ENTERED
I NTO A JO NT VENTURE W TH EMORY HEALTHCARE, THUS CREATI NG THE FI RST
HOSPI TAL CO- OANED BY TWO LEADI NG HEALTHCARE PROVI DERS. THE FACI LI TY WAS

RENAMED EMORY- ADVENTI ST HOSPI TAL. | N 2015, EMORY UNI VERSI TY ACQUI RED

EMORY- ADVENTI ST HOSPI TAL AND RENAMED | T EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA.

THE FACILITY IS ANTI Cl PATED TO UNDERGO SI GNI FI CANT RENOVATI ON I N THE

UPCOM NG YEARS TO BETTER MEET THE NEEDS OF | TS COVMUNI TY.
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

PART 11, SECTION A, LINE 4 AND SECTION B, LINES 2 AND 3

FOOTNOTE TO FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENT FOOTNCOTE #5 NET PATI ENT
SERVI CE REVENUE | NCLUDES DI SCUSSI ON ON PROVI SI ONS FOR UNCOLLECTI BLE

ACCOUNTS FOR EMORY HEALTHCARE.

EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENT FOOTNOTE #1 ORGANI ZATI ON
DESCRI BES WHAT ALL I'S I NCLUDED I N EMORY HEALTHCARE FOR FI NANCI AL

REPORTI NG PURPCOSES.

PART 11, SECTION B, LINE 8

TREATMENT OF SHORTFALL:

SHORTFALL |I'S NOT REPCORTED IN LINE 7 COWUN TY BENEFI T. TO DETERM NE
MEDI CARE ALLOWABLE COSTS REPORTED | N THE MEDI CARE COST REPORT, THE
COST-TO- CHARGE RATIO IS APPLI ED TO GROSS PATI ENT REVENUE ASSOCI ATED W TH

SERVI CES PERFORMED FOR PATI ENTS WHO ARE ELI G BLE FOR MEDI CARE.
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

PART 111, SECTION C, LINE 9B

DEBT COLLECTI ON POLI CY:

CREDI T/ COLLECTI ON PCLI CY REQUI RES ALL ACCOUNTS TO BE REVI EMED FOR

POSSI BLE CHARI TY WRI TE- OFF.  COLLECTI ON PRACTI CES ARE NOT UNDERTAKEN W TH

RESPECT TO CHARGES RELATED TO SERVI CES COVERED BY THE ORGANI ZATI ON' S

FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE PCLI CY.

PART V

FACI LI TY | NFORMATI ON:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL, EMORY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL, EMCORY

UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOAN AND EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA ARE

DI RECTLY CONTROLLED OPERATI NG DI VI SI ONS OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY.

PART VI, LINE 2

NEEDS ASSESSMENT:
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

EMORY HEALTHCARE CURRENTLY CONDUCTS AN EXTENSI VE ANNUAL ENVI RONMENTAL

ASSESSMENT, WHI CH ENCOVPASSES EACH ENTI TY W THI N THE ORGANI ZATION. THI' S
ASSESSMENT | S UTI LI ZED TO PLAN THE STRATEG C DI RECTI ON FOR THE FOLLOW NG
FI SCAL YEAR. THE ENVI RONMENTAL ASSESSMENT | NCLUDES A DETAI LED REVI EW OF
PATI ENT ORI G N AND PATI ENT CHARACTERI STI CS, | NCLUDI NG AGE, ETHNICI TY, AND

PAYER. THE POPULATI ON DEMOGRAPHI CS FOR THE PRI MARY AND SECONDARY SERVI CE

AREAS ARE ANALYZED. THE ASSESSMENT ALSO | NCLUDES A REVI EW OF SERVI CES
CURRENTLY UTI LI ZED BY PATI ENTS ALONG W TH A FORECAST OF FUTURE SERVI CE
LINE NEEDS. |N ADDITION TO THI S ASSESSMENT, A DETAI LED MEDI CAL STAFF
DEVELOPMENT ASSESSMENT | S CONDUCTED ANNUALLY TO DETERM NE SPECI ALTY

NEEDS.

PART VI, LINE 3

PART V, SECTION B, LINES 13A, 13B, 15E, 16A, 16B, 16C AND 16J

PART |, LINE 3A AND LI NE 3B.

PATI ENT EDUCATI ON OF ELI G BI LI TY FOR ASSI STANCE:
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE POLI CY AND FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE APPLI CATI ONS ARE

DI SCUSSED W TH PATI ENTS DURI NG THE FI NANCI AL SCREENI NG PROCESS. ALL

PATI ENTS ARE SCREENED. AS PART OF THE SCREENI NG PROCESS, A FI NANCI AL
ASSI STANCE APPLI CATI ON IS COVWPLETED ON BEHALF OF THE PATI ENT AND ELI G BLE
PATI ENTS ARE NOTI FI ED OF THEI R STATUS OF FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE AS EACH
APPLI CATI ON | S PROCESSED. WE ALSO UTI LI ZE A MEDI CAI D ELI G BI LI TY VENDCOR

TO ASSI ST PATI ENTS | N APPLYI NG FOR MEDI CAI D OR OTHER GOVERNMENT PROCGRAMS.

FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE POLI CY
PLAI N LANGUAGE SUWMVARY
FI NANCI AL ASSI STANCE APPLI CATI ON ARE LCCATED AT:

HTTP: / / WAV EMORYHEALTHCARE. ORG PATI ENTS- VI SI TORS/ FI NANCI AL- ASSI STANCE. HTML

PART VI, LINE 4

COVMUNI TY | NFORMATI ON:

AS A TERTI ARY CARE FACI LI TY, EMORY UN VERSI TY HOSPI TAL (EUH) DRAWS

PATI ENTS FROM THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF GEORG A AND THE SOUTHEAST. FOR THE
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Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

PURPOSE OF EUH' S COVWWUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT, EUH S COWUNI TY | S

DEFI NED AS THE AREA FROM WHI CH OVER 55% OF EUH S | NPATI ENT ADM SSI ONS

ORI G NATE. EUH S COVWUNI TY CR PRI MARY SERVI CE AREA | NCLUDES DEKALB,

FULTON, GAN NNETT, COBB, HENRY AND CLAYTON COUNTIES I N GEORG A.

AS A TERTI ARY CARE FACI LITY, EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMN ( EUHM)

DRAWS PATI ENTS FROM THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF GECRG A AND THE SOUTHEAST.

FOR THE PURPOSE OF EUHM S COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT, EUHM S

COVWUNI TY IS DEFI NED AS THE AREA FROM WHI CH OVER 75% OF EUHM S | NPATI ENT

ADM SSI ONS ORI G NATE. EUHM S COWUNI TY OR PRI MARY SERVI CE AREA | NCLUDES

DEKALB, FULTON, GW NNETT, COBB, HENRY AND CLAYTON COUNTIES I N GEORG A.

AS A TERTI ARY CARE FACI LITY, EMORY ORTHOPAEDI CS & SPI NE HOSPI TAL ( EUCSH)

SERVES PATI ENTS FROM THROUGHOUT THE STATE OF CGEORG A AND THE SOUTHEAST.

FOR THE PURPCSE OF EUCSH S COMMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT, EUCSH S

COMWUNI TY | S DEFI NED AS THE CONTI GUOUS AREA FROM WHI CH OVER 55% OF

EUCSH S | NPATI ENT ADM SSI ONS ORI G NATE. EUCSH S COVMUNI TY OR PRI MARY

SERVI CE AREA | NCLUDES DEKALB, FULTON, GW NNETT, COBB, HENRY, AND CLAYTON

JSA
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

2 Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

COUNTI ES.

THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL SMYRNA (EUHS) COVMUNI TY |'S DEFI NED AS THE

CONTI GUOUS AREA FROM WHI CH OVER 75% OF EUHS' S | NPATI ENT ADM SSI ONS

ORI G NATE. EUHS'S COVWWUNI TY OR PRI MARY SERVI CE AREA | S COBB COUNTY I N

GECRG A

PART VI, LINE 5

PROMOTI ON OF COMMUNI TY HEALTH:

FOR MORE | NFORVATI ON PLEASE SEE " COVMUNI TY" AS FOUND AT

HTTP: / / WAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG/ ABOUT/ COMMUNI TY. HTML

PART VI, LINE 6

AFFI LI ATED HEALTH CARE SYSTEM

EMORY HEALTHCARE |I'S THE CLI NI CAL ENTERPRI SE OF THE ROBERT W WOODRUFF

HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY, WH CH FOCUSES ON PATI ENT

JSA
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Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

CARE, EDUCATI ON OF HEALTH PROFESSI ONALS, RESEARCH ADDRESSI NG HEALTH AND

I LLNESS, AND HEALTH PCLI CI ES FOR PREVENTI ON AND TREATMENT OF DI SEASE. A

KEY COVPONENT OF THE WOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER IS THE EMORY

UNI VERSI TY SCHOCOL OF MEDI CI NE, WHI CH HAS BEEN AT THE FOREFRONT OF MEDI CAL

KNOW.EDGE AND RESEARCH, PI ONEERI NG MANY ADVANCES AND PROCEDURES THAT HAVE

CHANGED THE FACE OF MEDI CAL HI STCRY.

PART V, SECTION B, LINES 3E, 3J AND LINE 5

COVMMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT - | NPUT FROM COVMUNI TY:

TO UNDERSTAND THE NEEDS OF THE COMMUNI TY WE SERVE, A COMMUNI TY HEALTH

NEEDS ASSESSMENT WAS CONDUCTED USI NG QUANTI TATI VE DATA (E. G,

DEMOGRAPHI CS DATA, MORTALITY RATES, MORBI DI TY DATA, DI SEASE PREVALENCE

RATES, HEALTH CARE RESOURCE DATA, ETC.) AND | NPUT FROM STAKEHOLDERS

REPRESENTI NG THE BROAD | NTEREST OF OUR COVMUNI TY (E. G, | NDI VI DUALS W TH

SPECI AL KNOWLEDGE OF PUBLI C HEALTH, THE NEEDS OF THE UNDERSERVED,

LOW | NCOVE, AND M NORI TY POPULATI ONS, THE NEEDS OF POPULATI ONS W TH

CHRONI C DI SEASES, ETC.).

JSA

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017

7E1327 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PAGE 90



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

COMMUNI TY STAKEHOLDER | NTERVI EW5:

A KEY COVPONENT | N THE COVWWUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT | S GATHERI NG

I NPUT FROM THE COVMUNI TY STAKEHOLDERS. THESE STAKEHOLDERS | NCLUDED A M X

OF | NTERNAL AND EXTERNAL REPRESENTATI VES OF PASTCRS, PUBLIC HEALTH

OFFI Cl ALS, HEALTH CARE PROVI DERS, SOCI AL SERVI CE AGENCY REPRESENTATI VES,

GOVERNMVENT LEADERS, AND BOARD MEMBERS. DUE TO THEI R PROFESSI ON, TENURE,

AND/ OR COVMUNI TY | NVOLVEMENT, COMMUNI TY STAKEHOLDERS OFFER DI VERSE

PERSPECTI VES AND | NFORVATI ON TO THE COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT.

THEY ARE | NDI VI DUALS AT THE FRONT LI NE AND BEYOND THAT CAN BEST | DENTI FY

UNMET SOCl AL AND HEALTH NEEDS OF THE COVMUNI TY. | NTERVI EW6 W TH

SEVENTEEN REPRESENTATI VES FROM ORGANI ZATI ONS AND ONE FOCUS CGROUP WERE

CONDUCTED BY THE WOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER STRATEG C PLANNI NG

OFFI CE.

FOR MORE | NFORVATI ON SEE APPENDI X B OF EACH COMMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS

ASSESSMENT AT:
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Provide the following information.

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part Ill, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and

9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the

organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related

organization, files a community benefit report.

HTTP: / / WAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG/ ABOUT/ COMMUNI TY. HTML

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 6A AND LI NE 6B

COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT - HOSPI TALS | NCLUDED:

THE COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT FOR HOSPI TALS | NCLUDED | N THE EMORY
RETURN WERE CONDUCTED BY THE WOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER STRATEGQ C

PLANNI NG OFFI CE.

THE HOSPI TALS' COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENTS FOR ADDI TI ONAL
OPERATI NG UNI TS AND AFFI LI ATES OF EMORY HEALTHCARE | NCLUDED:
EMORY JOHNS CREEK HOSPI TAL

SAI NT JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF ATLANTA

EMORY REHABI LI TATI ON HOSPI TAL

PART V, SECTION B, LINE 7D

COVMMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT - AVAI LABLE TO PUBLI C:

JSA
7E1327 1.000
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.

Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to
any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

THE COVMUNI TY HEALTH NEEDS ASSESSMENT WAS MADE W DELY AVAI LABLE TO THE

COVMMUNI TY AND SHARED W TH ORGANI ZATI ONS | NCLUDI NG GEORG A DEPARTMENT OF

COVWMUNI TY HEALTH, GECRG A DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C HEALTH, ROLLINS SCHOOL OF

PUBLI C HEALTH, AMERI CAN CANCER SCCI ETY, UNI TED WAY OF GREATER ATLANTA,

SAINT JOSEPH S MERCY CARE SERVI CES, VI SI TI NG NURSE HEALTH SYSTEMS,

VI STACARE HOSPI CE, GW NNETT SEXUAL ASSAULT CENTER & CHI LDREN S ADVOCACY

CENTER, GOOD SHEPHERD CLI NI C, THE DRAKE HOUSE, DEKALB COVMUNI TY SERVI CE

BOARD, CITY OF JOHN S CREEK POLI CE DEPARTMENT, CLAYTON COUNTY BQOARD OF

HEALTH, AREA AGENCY ON AG NG W TH ATLANTA REG ONAL COWM SSI OQN, AND

ADDI TI ONAL GROUPS.

PART V, LINE 11

DURI NG FI SCAL YEAR 2016, EMORY HEALTHCARE CONDUCTED COVMUNI TY HEALTH

NEEDS ASSESSMENTS ( CHNAS) TO ASSESS THE NEEDS OF THE COVMUNI TI ES SERVED

BY OUR HOSPI TALS. USI NG THE REPORTS, EACH HOSPI TAL | DENTI FI ED PRI ORI TY

HEALTH NEEDS FOR | TS COVMMUNI TY AND DEVELOPED STRATEG ES TO ADDRESS

ACTI ONABLE WAYS | N VWHI CH WE PLAN TO AID THOSE W THI N OQUR COVMUNI TY.

THROUGH THESE STRATEG ES, | T WAS AND CONTI NUES TO BE OUR GOAL TO | MPROVE

JSA

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017

7E1327 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PAGE 93



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.
Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to

any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

THE HEALTH AND WELL- BEI NG OF QUR COVMUNI TY MEMBERS, WHI LE CONTI NUALLY

DELI VERI NG OPTI MAL CARE TO OUR PATI ENTS. SI NCE FI SCAL YEAR 2016, EMORY

HEALTHCARE HAS SOUGHT TO ADDRESS ALL THE NEEDS | DENTI FI ED | N THE FI SCAL

YEAR 2016 CHNAS THROUGH A VARI ETY OF ACTIONS. THE FI SCAL YEAR 2016 CHNAS

| NCLUDE AN ASSESSMENT OF PROGRESS MADE ON THE 2013 | MPLEMENTATI ON

STRATEGY PLANS DEVELOPED BY EACH HOSPI TAL. SEE FURTHER DETAI LS AT:

HTTP: / / WAV EMORYHEAL THCARE. ORG/ ABOUT/ COMMUNI TY. HTML

JSA

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017 Page 10
=E1g@YIl Supplemental Information

Provide the following information.

1

Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part |, lines 3c, 6a, and 7; Part Il and Part lll, lines 2, 3, 4, 8 and
9b.
Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities it serves, in addition to

any CHNAs reported in Part V, Section B.

Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons
who may be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or
under the organization's financial assistance policy.

Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and
demographic constituents it serves.

Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization's hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e.g., open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc.).

Affiliated health care system. If the organization is part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served.

State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related
organization, files a community benefit report.

STATE FI LI NG OF COVMUNI TY BENEFI T REPORT

GA,

JSA

Schedule H (Form 990) 2017
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) ALBANY MEDI CAL COLLEGE
43 NEW SCOTLAND AVE ALBANY, NY 12208 14- 1641730 |501(0O)(3) 37,129. SUBCONTRACT
(2) ALBERT EINSTEIN COLLEGE OF MEDI CI NE
1300 MORRI' S PARK AVE BRONX, NY 10461 13-1624225 |501(0) (3) 61, 343. SUBCONTRACT
(3) AMERI CAN HEART ASSCCI ATI ON
1639 BRADLEY PARK DRI VE COLUMBUS, GA 31904 13-5613797 |501(0) (3) 2,760, 453. SUBCONTRACT
(4) AVERI CAN UNI VERSI TY
CGRNTS & CONTR ACCG WASH., DC 20016- 8065 53-0196549 [501(C)(3) 51, 512. SUBCONTRACT
(5) ANN & ROBERT H LURIE CHI LDREN S HOSPI TAL
225 E CH CAGO AVE CHI CAGO, |IL 60611 36-2170833 [501(C)(3) 14, 003. SUBCONTRACT
(6) ARI ZONA STATE UNI VERSI TY
P O BOX 870502 TEMPE, AZ 85287 86- 0196696 [GOVT 101, 693. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) ATLANTA DI ABETES ASSOCI ATES
1800 HOVELL M LL RD ATLANTA, GA 30318 58-1578080 (S CORP 40, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) ATLANTA RESEARCH & EDU FOUNDATI ON | NC
1902 CLAI RMONT RD DECATUR, GA 30033 58- 1857346 [501(C)(3) 192, 670. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) AUBURN UNI VERSI TY
208M WH TE SM TH HL AUBURN, AL 36849-5110 63-0000724 (115 37, 023. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) AUGUSTA UNI VERSI TY
DI V- SPONS PROGS AUGUSTA, GA 30912 58- 6002053 [GOVT 127, 319. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) AUGUSTA UNI VERSI TY RESEARCH | NSTI TUTE
1120 15TH ST AUGUSTA, GA 30912 58- 1418202 |[501(C)(3) 6, 758. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) BATTELLE MEMORI AL | NSTI TUTE
DEPT L 998 COLUMBUS, OH 43260 31-4379427 |[501(C)(3) 206, 050. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) BAYLOR COLLEGE OF MEDI CI NE
ONE BAYLOR PLAZA HOUSTON, TX 77030 74-1613878 |[501(C)(3) 935, 060. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) BAYLOR RESEARCH | NSTI TUTE
2001 BRYAN STREET DALLAS, TX 75201-3005 75-1921898 |[501(C)(3) 20, 643. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) BETH | SRAEL DEACONESS MEDI CAL CENTER
330 BROOKLI NE AVE BOSTON, MA 02215 04-2103881 [501(C)(3) 208, 791. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) BI OANALYTI CAL SYSTEMS | NC
2701 KENT AVENUE W LAFAYETTE, | N 47906 35-1345024 |[C CORP 95, 520. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) BLOOD SYSTEMS | NC
P O BOX 53022 PHCEN X, AZ 85072-3022 86- 0098929 ([501(C)(3) 34, 508. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) BOARD OF REGENTS NSHE
BOARD OF REGENTS - UNR RENO, NV 89557-0124 88- 6000024 [GOVT 94, 627. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) BO SE STATE UNI VERSI TY
1910 UNIVERSITY DRI VE BO SE, | D 83725-1135 82-0290701 (115 30, 957. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) BOSTON CHI LDREN S HOSPI TAL
300 LONGAOOD AVE BOSTON, MA 02241 04- 2774441 |[501(C)(3) 40, 587. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) BRI GHAM AND WOMEN S HOSPI TAL
800 BOYLSTON STREET BOSTON, MA 02199 04- 2312909 ([501(C)(3) 487, 589. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) BROOKI NGS | NSTI TUTI ON
1775 MASS. AVENUE NW WASHI NGTON, DC 20036 53-0196577 |[501(C)(3) 60, 693. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) BROWN UNI VERSI TY
BOX 1997 PROVI DENCE, Rl 02912 05- 0258809 [501(C)(3) 165, 831. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) CALI FORNI A | NSTI TUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
1200 E CALI FORNI A BLVD PASADENA, CA 91125 95- 1643307 [501(C)(3) 114, 722. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) CASE WESTERN RESERVE UNI VERSI TY
10900 EUCLI D AVE CLEVELAND, OH 44106 34-1018992 ([501(C)(3) 400, 768. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) CDC FOUNDATI ON
55 PARK PLACE ATLANTA, GA 30303 58- 2106707 [501(C)(3) 821, 849. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) CEDARS- SI NAI MEDI CAL CENTER
6500 W LSHI RE BLVD PHI LADELPHI A, PA 19178 95- 1644600 [501(C)(3) 168, 162. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) CENTER FOR VETERANS RESEARCH AND EDUCATI ON
ONE VETERANS DRI VE M NNEAPQLI'S, MN 55417 41- 1652941 |[501(C)(3) 6, 034. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) CENTERS FOR DI SEASE CONTROL & PREVENTI ON
UNI'V OFFI CE PARK ATLANTA, GA 30341 58- 6051157 [GOVT 3, 497, 032. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) CHEROKEE NATI ON
P O BOX 948 TAHLEQUAH, OK 74465 73-1497804 [GOVT 5, 096. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) CHILDREN S HEALTHCARE OF ATLANTA
1584 TULLIE CI R NE ATLANTA, GA 30341 58- 2367819 [501(C)(3) 4,454, 977. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) CHILDREN S HOSPI TAL & RESEARCH CENTER AT OA
747 52ND STREET OAKLAND, CA 94609 94- 0382330 [501(C)(3) 22, 486. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) CHILDREN S HOSPI TAL OF PHI LADELPHI A
34TH STREET PHI LADELPHI A, PA 19104 23-1352166 |[501(C)(3) 65, 130. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) CHI LDREN S MERCY HOSPI TAL
2401 G LLHAM RD KANSAS CITY, MO 64108 44- 0605373 [501(C)(3) 35, 603. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) CHILDREN S NATI ONAL MEDI CAL CENTER
111 M CHI GAN AVE WASHI NGTON, DC 20010 52- 1640403 |[501(C)(3) 23, 501. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) CHRI STOPHER NEWPORT UNI VERSI TY
CASH ER S OFF NEWPORT NEWS, VA 23606-3072 54-0701501 (115 33, 357. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) CI NCI NNATI CHI LDREN S HOSPI TAL MED CTR
333 BURNETT AVE CI NCI NNATI, OH 45229 31-0833936 |[501(C)(3) 735, 817. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) G TY SEM NARY OF NEW YORK
PO BOX 5536 NEW YORK, NY 10027 26- 0030436 [501(C)(3) 10, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) CLARK ATLANTA UNI VERSI TY
223 JAMES P BRAWEY DR ATLANTA, GA 30314 58- 1825259 [501(C)(3) 34, 363. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) COLD SPRING HARBOR LABORATORY PRESS
1 BUNGTOWN RD COLD SPRI NG HARBOR, NY 11724 11-2013303 |501(0Q) (3) 81, 822. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) COLORADO STATE UNI VERSI TY
2002 CAMPUS DEL FORT COLLINS, CO 80523-2002 |84-6000545 |GOVT 211, 871. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) COLUMBI A UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 29789 NEW YORK, NY 10087-9789 13-5598093 |501(0) (3) 327, 734. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) COVPREHENSI VE PET THERAPY
6600 ROSVEELL RD SANDY SPRI NGS, GA 30328 58- 2025659 (S CORP 23, 252. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) CONCORD BI OSCI ENCES LLC
10845 WVELLNESS WAY CONCORD, OH 44077 34-1911003 [LLC 48, 310. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) CONNECTI CUT CHI LDREN S MEDI CAL CENTER
282 WASHI NGTON STREET HARTFORD, CT 06106 06- 0646755 [501(C)(3) 8, 800. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) CURATORS OF THE UNI VERSI TY OF M SSOURI
PO BOX 807012 KANSAS CI TY, MO 64180-7012 43- 6003859 [GOVT 71, 048. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) CVS PHARMACY | NC
ONE CVS DRI VE WOONSOCKET, RI 02895 05- 0340626 |[C CORP 125, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) DANA FARBER CANCER | NSTI TUTE
44 BI NNEY ST BOSTON, MA 02215 04- 2263040 [501(C)(3) 562, 386. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) DARTMOUTH COLLEGE
11 ROPE FERRY ROAD HANOVER, NH 03755-1404 02- 0222111 |[501(C)(3) 150, 267. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) DECATUR BOOK FESTI VAL
P O BOX 337 DECATUR, GA 30331 20- 8669575 [501(C)(3) 7, 500. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) DENVER HEALTH & HOSPI TAL AUTHORI TY
777 BANNOCK STREET DENVER, CO 80204 84-1343242 |[GOV' T 15, 096. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) DRI SCOLL CHILDREN S HOSPI TAL
3533 S ALAMEDA ST CORPUS CHRI STI, TX 78411 74-2577746 |[501(C)(3) 5, 607. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) DUKE UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 602651 DURHAM NC 27710 56- 0532129 |[501(C)(3) 869, 858. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) EAST CAROLI NA UNI VERSI TY
EAST FI FTH STREET GREENVI LLE, NC 27858 56- 6000403 [GOV' T 5, 469. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) EAST TENNESSEE STATE UNI VERSI TY
1276 G LBREATH DR. JOHNSON CITY, TN 37614 62-6021046 |[501(C)(3) 53, 838. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) EGL GENETI C DI AGNGSTI CS LLC
2460 MOUNTAI N | NDUS BLVD TUCKER, GA 30084 47- 4383500 [LLC (PS) 17, 304. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) EHEALTH & | NFORVATI ON SYSTEM AFRI CA
1100 WTOWN & COUNTRY RD ORANGE, CA 92868 27-3049982 |[501(C)(3) 84, 612. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) FENWAY COVMUNI TY HEALTH CENTER | NC
1340 BOYLSTON STREET BOSTON, MA 02215 04- 2510564 [501(C) (3) 18, 215. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) FLORI DA A&M UNI VERSI TY
S. ADAMS ST TALLAHASSEE, FL 32307-3200 59- 0977035 [GOVT 40, 010. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) FLORI DA STATE UNI VERSI TY
425 W JEFFERSON ST TALLAHASSEE, FL 32306 59-1961248 [GOVT 134, 199. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) FRED HUTCHI NSON CANCER RESEARCH CTR
1100 FAI RVI EW AVE SEATTLE, WA 98109 23-7156071 |[501(C)(3) 177, 613. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) GEl SINGER MEDI CAL CENTER
100 NORTH ACADEMY AVE DANVI LLE, PA 17822 24-0795959 [501(C)(3) 16, 264. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) GEORGE WASHI NGTON UNI VERSI TY
45155 RESEARCH PLACE ASHBURN, VA 20147 53-0196584 [501(C)(3) 144, 609. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) GEORG A CENTER FOR ONCOLOGY RESEARCH & EDUC
50 HURT PLAZA STE 704 ATLANTA, GA 30303 57-1159979 |[501(C)(3) 44, 316. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) GEORG A DEPARTMENT OF PUBLI C HEALTH
2 PEACHTREE ST NW ATLANTA, GA 30303 90- 0676388 |[GOV' T 28, 321. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) GEORG A | NSTI TUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
500 TECH PARKVWAY ATLANTA, GA 30332 58- 6002023 [GOVT 70, 437. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) GEORG A PUBLI C LI BRARY SERVI CE
1800 CENTURY PLACE ATLANTA, GA 30345 58-6002348 [GOV' T 10, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) GEORG A SQUTHERN UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 8005 STATESBORO, GA 30460 58- 2354256 [501(C)(3) 13, 418. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) GEORG A STATE UNIV RESEARCH
P O BOX 3999 ATLANTA, GA 30302 58- 1845423 |[501(C)(3) 462, 051. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) GEORG A STATE UNI VERSI TY
ONE PARK PLACE ATLANTA, GA 30303 58- 6002050 [GOVT 116, 421. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) GEORG A TECH RESEARCH CORPORATI ON
P O BOX 100117 ATLANTA, GA 30332-0415 58- 0603146 [501(C)(3) 4,943, 726. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) GLOBAL DI ALOGUES | NC
2552 SHETLAND DRI VE DECATUR, GA 30033 47- 4029672 |[501(C)(3) 179, 386. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
7E1288 1.000
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) GRADY HEALTH SYSTEM
50 HURT PLAZA ATLANTA, GA 30303 26- 2037695 |[501(C)(3) 232, 312. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) HEALTH RESEARCH | NC
150 BROADVWAY MENANDS, NY 12204 14- 1402155 |501(0O) (3) 224, 308. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) HEALTHVPOVERS | NC
250 SCI ENTI FI C DR NORCRGCSS, GA 30092 58- 2524601 [501(C)(3) 228, 503. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) HENRY FORD HEALTH SYSTEM
ONE FORD PLACE DETRO T, M 48202 38- 1357020 |[501(C)(3) 7,431. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) HIF MEDI CAL RESEARCH | NTERNATI ONAL | NC
6720A ROCKLEDGE DR BETHESDA, MD 20817 52-2322791 |[501(C)(3) 5,797, 764. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) | CAHN SCHOOL OF MEDI CI NE AT MOUNT SI NAI
ONE GUSTAVE L LEVY PLACE NEW YORK, NY 10029 |13-6171197 |501(C)(3) 597, 591. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) I GT, LLC DBA EI GEN
13366 GRASS VLLY AVE GRASS VALLEY, CA 95945 |[68-0681074 |LLC 81, 876. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) | NDI ANA UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 66057 | NDI ANAPQOLI S, | N 46266- 6057 35-6001673 [GOVT 96, 027. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) | NTERNATI ONAL MEDI CAL CORPS
12400 WLSH RE BLVD LOS ANGELES, CA 90025 95- 3949646 [501(C)(3) 14, 203. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) JFK MEDI CAL CENTER
5301 S. CONGRESS AVENUE ATLANTI S, FL 33462 62-1694180 |[LLC 9, 360. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) JOHINS HOPKI NS UNI VERSI TY
733 N BROADVWAY BALTI MORE, MD 21205 52-0595110 ([501(C)(3) 2,461, 142. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) KAl SER PERVANENTE
1800 HARRI SON ST QAKLAND, CA 94612-3433 94- 1105628 [501(C)(3) 67, 129. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA

7E1288 1.000
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SCHEDULE |

OMB No. 1545-0047

Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, I
Governments, and Individuals in the United States

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
» Attach to Form 990.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

2017

Open to Public

Inspection

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Part | General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or assistance?
2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Yes

|:|No

Il Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form

990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) KAI SER PERVANENTE FOUNDATI ON RESEARCH | NSTI
1800 HARRI SON ST QAKLAND, CA 94612-3433 94- 1105628 [501(C)(3) 147, 048. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) KANSAS STATE UNI VERSI TY
2323 ANDERSON AVENUE MANHATTAN, KS 66502 48- 0771751 |[GOVT 99, 669. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) KENNEDY KRI EGER | NSTI TUTE
707 NORTH BROADWAY BALTI MORE, MD 21205 52-0607971 |[501(C)(3) 12, 420. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) K TWARE I NC
28 CORPORATE DR CLI FTON PARK, NY 12065 14- 1802694 |CORPCRATI ON 238, 004. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) LA JOLLA | NSTI TUTE OF ALLERGY& MVUNOLOGY
9420 ATHENA CIR LA JOLLA, CA 92037 33-0328688 [501(C)(3) 326, 448. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) LEHI GH UNI VERSI TY
526 BRODHEAD AVE BETHLEHEM PA 18015 24-0795445 |[501(C)(3) 31, 498. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) LOUI SI ANA STATE UNIV HEALTH SCI ENCES CTR
433 BOLI VAR ST NEW ORLEANS, LA 70112-2223 72-6087770 |[501(C)(3) 250, 715. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) LOVELACE RESPI RATORY RESEARCH | NSTI TUTE
2425 RI DGECREST DR ALBURQUERQUE, NM 87108 85-0110669 [501(C)(3) 162, 673. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) MASSACHUSETTS GENERAL HOSPI TAL
55 FRU T STREET BOSTON, MA 02114 04- 1564655 [501(C) (3) 327, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) MASSACHUSETTS | NSTI TUTE OF TECHNOLOGY
77 MASS. AVE CAMBRI DGE, MA 02139 04- 2103594 ([501(C)(3) 117, 156. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) MASSACHUSETTS UNI VERSITY OF
333 SQUTH ST SHREWSBURY, MA 01545 04-3167352 [GOVT 7,238. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) MEDI CAL UNI'V OF SOUTH CAROLI NA
19 HAGOOD AVE CHARLESTON, SC 29425-8040 57-6007222 [GOVT 130, 608. DONATI ON
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

JSA
7E1288 1.000
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Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) METACLI PSE THERAPEUTI CS CORPCORATI ON
3175 PRESI DENTI AL DR ATLANTA, GA 30340 80- 0937738 [CORPORATI ON 145, 712. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) M CHI GAN PUBLI C HEALTH | NSTI TUTE
2436 WOODLAKE CI R OKEMOS, M 48864 38-2963835 [501(C)(3) 48, 015. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) M D-M CHI GAN DI STRI CT HEALTH DEPARTMENT
615 N. STATE ST STANTON, M 48888-9702 38-1808049 ([501(C)(3) 21, 820. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) M NNEAPOLI S MEDI CAL RESEARCH FOUNDATI ON
701 PARK AVE M NNEAPCLI'S, MN 55415 41-1677920 |[501(C)(3) 40, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) M NNESOTA EPI LEPSY GROUP
225 NORTH SM TH AVE ST PAUL, MN 55102 41-1678254 [CORPORATI ON 57, 800. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) M Rl AM HOSPI TAL
ONE HOPPI N STREET PROVI DENCE, RI 02903 05- 0258905 [501(C) (3) 40, 354. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) M SSI SSI PPl STATE UNI VERSI TY
PO DRAVER 5227 M SSI SSI PPl STATE, Ms 39762 64- 6000819 [GOVT 18, 405. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) MOREHOUSE COLLEGE
830 WESTVI EW DR ATLANTA, GA 30314 58- 0566205 [501(C)(3) 15, 982. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) MOREHOUSE SCHOOL OF MEDI CI NE
720 WESTVI EW DRI VE SW ATLANTA, GA 30310 58- 1438873 [501(C)(3) 2,024, 393. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) NATI ONAL DEVELCOPMENT AND RESEARCH
71 WEST 23RD ST NEW YORK, NY 10010 23-7009089 [501(C)(3) 387, 036. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) NATI ONW DE CHI LDREN S HOSPI TAL
700 CHI LDRENS DRI VE COLUMBUS, OH 43205 31- 6056230 [501(C)(3) 60, 773. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) NEW YORK CI TY HEALTH AND HOSPI TALS CORP
125 WORTH ST ROOM 507 NEW YORK, NY 10013 13- 2655001 |GOVT 1, 450, 564. IVEDI CAL SUPPLI ES
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
7E1288 1.000
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) NEW YORK UNI VERSI TY
105 EAST 17TH STREET NEW YORK, NY 10012 13-5562308 |501(C)(3) 153, 203. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) NORTH SHORE JEW SH MEDI CAL CENTER
THE FEI NSTEI N | NST MANHASSET, NY 11030-3816 |11-2673595 |501(C)(3) 21, 550. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) NORTHWESTERN UNI VERSI TY
750 NORTH LAKESHORE DR CHI CAGO, |L 60611 36-2167817 |[501(C)(3) 184, 381. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) OCEAN NANOTECH LLC
7964 ARJONS DR STE G SAN DI EGO, CA 92126 27-0097569 [LLC 66, 984. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) OGLETHORPE UNI VERSI TY
4484 PEACHTREE RD NE ATLANTA, GA 30319 58- 0568698 [501(C)(3) 5, 062. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) OKLAHOVA STATE UNI VERSI TY FOUNDATI ON
401 WHI TEHURST STI LLWATER, OK 74078- 1031 73-6097060 [501(C)(3) 13, 848. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) OREGON HEALTH & SCI ENCE UNI'V FOUNDATI ON
3181 SWS. JACKSON PK RD PORTLAND, OR 97239 |23-7083114 |501(C)(3) 171, 976. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) OREGON HEALTH & SCI ENCE UNI VERSI TY
MAI LCODE L1060OPAM PORTLAND, OR 97239 93-1176109 [GOVT 77, 780. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) PALO ALTO VETERANS | NSTI TUTE FOR RESEARCH
PO BOX V-38 PALO ALTO, CA 94304 77-0207331 |[501(C)(3) 252, 527. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) PAN AMERI CAN SANI TARY BUREAU
525 23RD ST NW WASHI NGTON, DC 20037- 2895 52-1804954 [GOV' T 84, 066. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) PENNSYLVANI A STATE UNI VERSI TY
227 W BEAVER AVE STATE COLLEGE, PA 16801 24-6000376 [GOV'T 41, 350. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) PHYSI CAL SCI ENCES | NC
20 NEW ENGLAND BUS CTR ANDOVER, MA 01810 04-2517090 |[C CORP 53, 238. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
7E1288 1.000
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) P! EDVONT HOSPI TAL
1968 PEACHTREE RD ATLANTA, GA 30309 58- 0566213 [501(C)(3) 20, 960. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) PRESI DENT & FELLOWS OF HARVARD COLLEGE
122 BOYLSTON ST JAMACI A PLAINS, MA 02130 04- 2103580 [501(C)(3) 230, 041. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) PRINCETON UNI VERSI TY
4 NEW SOUTH BUI LDI NG PRI NCETON, NJ 08544 21- 0634501 |[501(C)(3) 136, 394. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) PROVI DENCE HEALTH & SERVI CES - WASHI NGTON
101 W8TH AVENUE SPOKANE, WA 99204 51- 0216586 [501(C)(3) 13, 692. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) PUBLI C HEALTH SOLUTI ONS
40 WORTH STREET NEW YORK, NY 10013 13-5669201 |501(C) (3) 158, 083. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) PUGET SOUND BLOCD CENTER
921 TERRY AVE SEATTLE, WA 98104 91- 1019655 |[501(C)(3) 479, 208. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) PURDUE UNI VERSI TY
ACCTS REC WEST LAFAYETTE, I N 47906 35- 6002041 [GOVT 54, 034. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) REGENTS OF THE UNIV OF CALI AT BERKELEY
CONTR/ GRNTS ACCTG BERKELEY, CA 94720 94- 6002123 [GOV' T 316, 982. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF CALI FORNI A
ONE SHI ELDS AVE DAVI S, CA 95616 94- 6036494 [GOVT 829, 269. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) RESEARCH FOUNDATI ON FOR THE STATE UNIV OF N
ROOM 6040Q BUFFALO, NY 14203 14-1368361 |501(0C)(3) 184, 548. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) RESEARCH FOUNDATI ON MENTAL HYGQ ENE | NC
RI VERVI EW CENTER MENANDS, NY 12204 14-1410842 |501(0) (3) 348, 519. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) RHODE | SLAND HOSPI TAL
593 EDDY STREET PROVI DENCE, Rl 02903 05- 0258954 [501(C) (3) 69, 648. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) ROBERT W WOODRUFF LI BRARY OF THE AUC, | NC.
AUC ATLANTA, GA 30314 20- 0267588 [501(C)(3) 10, 984. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) ROCKEFELLER UNI VERSI TY
1230 YORK AVE NEW YORK, NY 10021-6399 13-1624158 |501(C)(3) 586, 873. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) ROSALIND FRANKLIN UNI'V OF MEDI CINE AND SCI E
3333 GREEN BAY RD NORTH CHI CAGO, | L 60064 36-2181973 |[501(C)(3) 6, 542. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) RUSH UNI VERSI TY MEDI CAL CENTER
1700 WEST VAN BUREN ST CHI CAGO, IL 60612 36-2174823 |[501(C)(3) 188, 143. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) RUTGERS UNI VERSI TY
64 DAVI DSON RD PI SCATAWAY, NJ 08854- 5602 22-6001086 [GOVT 205, 129. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) SAGE Bl ONETWORKS
1100 FAIRVI EW AVE N SEATTLE, WA 98109 26- 4489946 |[501(C)(3) 231, 024. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) SANFORD BURNHAM PREBYS MEDI CAL DI SCOVERY
10901 N TORREY PINES LA JOLLA, CA 92037 51-0197108 |[501(C)(3) 90, 174. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) SCRI PPS COLLEGE
COFF- SPON PROG LA JOLLA, CA 92037 95- 1664123 [501(C) (3) 14, 715. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) SEATTLE CHI LDREN S RESEARCH | NSTI TUTE
PO BOX 24728 SEATTLE, WA 98124-0728 91- 1250116 |[501(C)(3) 1,274, 185. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) SI STERLOVE | NC
P O BOX 10558 ATLANTA, GA 30310 58- 2016070 [501(C)(3) 32, 000. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) SPELMAN COLLEGE
350 SPELMAN LANE SW ATLANTA, GA 30314 58- 0566243 [501(C)(3) 6, 774. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) ST JUDE CHI LDREN S RESEARCH
PO BOX 100 DEPT 949 MEMPHI S, TN 38148-0949 62- 0646012 [501(C)(3) 164, 548. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) ST LOUI'S UNIVERSI TY
3545 LINDELL BLVD ST LQUI'S, MO 63103 43- 0654872 [501(C)(3) 155, 779. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) STANFORD UNI VERSI TY
P O BOX 44253 STANFORD, CA 94305 94- 1156365 [501(C)(3) 1,948, 222. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) STATE UNI VERSI TY OF NEW YORK
PO BOX 8 ALBANY, NY 12222 14-6013200 |GOVT 160, 187. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) TEMPLE UNI VERSI TY
1801 N BROAD STREET PHI LADELPHI A, PA 19122 23-1365971 |[501(C)(3) 184, 122. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) THE AARON DI AVOND Al DS RESEARCH CENTER
455 FIRST AVE 7TH FL NEW YORK, NY 10016 13-3540234 |501(0) (3) 725, 080. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) THE FEI NSTEIN | NSTI TUTE FOR MED RESEARCH
972 BRUSH HOLLOW ROAD VESTBURY, NY 11590 11- 2673595 |501(C) (3) 9, 982. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) THE HENRY M JACKSON FOUNDATI ON
1401 ROCKVI LLE PI KE ROCKVI LLE, MD 20852 52-1317896 |[501(C)(3) 130, 313. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) THE JACKSON LABORATORY
600 MAIN STREET BAR HARBOR, ME 04609 01- 0211513 |[501(C)(3) 8, 337. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) THE NEMOURS FOUNDATI ON
10140 CENTURI ON PKWY JACKSONVI LLE, FL 32256 |59-0634433 |501(C)(3) 16, 812. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) THE OHI O STATE UNI VERSI TY
90 | WOODY HAYES DR COLUMBUS, OH 43210 31- 6025986 [GOVT 135, 943. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) THE REGENTS OF THE UNIV OF CALI FORNI A
9500 G LMAN DR LA JOLLA, CA 94720-1103 94- 6002123 [GOVT 744, 381. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) THE SCRI PPS RESEARCH | NSTI TUTE
10550 N TORREY PINES RD LA JOLLA, CA 92037 33-0435954 |[501(C)(3) 398, 532. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) THE TASK FORCE FOR GLOBAL HEALTH
325 SWANTON WAY DECATUR, GA 30030 58- 1698648 [501(C)(3) 2,317, 684. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) THE UNIVERSI TY OF NEW MEXI CO
HEALTH SCI CTR ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87131 85- 6000642 [GOV' T 15, 624. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) THE UNIVERSI TY OF OKLAHOVA
GRNTS/ CONTR ACCTG OKLAHOVA CI TY, OK 73126 73-6017987 [GOVT 9, 918. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) THE UNI VERSI TY OF TEXAS AT DALLAS
PO BOX 830688 RI CHARDSON, TX 75083 75-1305566 [GOVT 26, 448. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) THOVAS JEFFERSON UNI VERSI TY
170 S I NDEP MALL W PHI LADELPHI A, PA 19106 23- 1352651 |[501(C)(3) 30, 573. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) TRUSTEES OF BOSTON UNI VERSI TY
25 BUI CK STREET BOSTON, MA 02215 04- 2103547 |[501(C)(3) 41, 253. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) TRUSTEES OF THE UNI VERSI TY OF PENN
3451 WALNUT STREET PHI LADELPH A, PA 19104 23-1352685 [GOVT 303, 142. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) TUFTS MEDI CAL CENTER
800 WASHI NGTON STREET BOSTQN, MA 02111 04- 3400617 |[501(C)(3) 21, 541. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) TULANE UNI VERSI TY
100 JONES HALL NEW ORLEANS, LA 70118 72-0423889 |[501(C)(3) 338, 869. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) UGA RESEARCH FOUNDATI ON, | NC
200 DW BROOKS DRI VE ATHENS, GA 30602 58- 1353149 |[501(C)(3) 2,944, 846. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) UNIVERSI TY OF ALABAMA - BI RM NGHAM
1530 3RD AVE SQUTH BI RM NGHAM AL 35294 63- 6005396 [GOVT 1, 755, 837. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) UNIVERSI TY OF ARI ZONA
1040 E 4TH ST TUSCON, AZ 85721 74-2652689 [GOVT 140, 600. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name (a)pd address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ({gggﬁ%ﬁf?@'ﬁg&? (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
government (if applicable) grant cash assistance other) noncash assistance or assistance
(1) UNIVERSI TY OF ARKANSAS
210 ADM N BLDG FAYETTEVI LLE, AR 72701 71-6003252 [GOVT 23, 746. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) UNIVERSI TY OF CHI CAGO
5801 S ELLIS AVE CHI CAGO, | L 60637 36-2177139 |[501(C)(3) 333, 765. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) UNIVERSI TY OF CI NCI NNATI
PO BOX 932368 CLEVELAND, OH 44193 31- 6000989 [(GOVT 89, 208. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) UNIVERSI TY OF COLORADO AT DENVER
13199 EAST MONTVI EW DENVER, CO 80291 84- 6000555 [GOVT 633, 772. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) UNIVERSI TY OF FLORI DA
201 CRISER HALL GAI NESVI LLE, FL 32604 59- 6002052 [GOVT 141, 501. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) UNI VERSI TY OF HOUSTON
2700 BAY AREA BLVD HOUSTON, TX 77058 74- 6001399 [GOVT 56, 678. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) UNTVERSITY OF ILLINO S
504 EAST PENN. AVE CHAMPAI GN, |L 61820 37-6000511 [GOVT 234, 070. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) UNIVERSI TY OF 1 OMA
100 MOSSVAN BUS SVS | OMA CITY, | A 52242 42-6004813 [GOVT 111, 115. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) UNIVERSI TY OF KANSAS MEDI CAL CENTER RESEARC
KUMC KANSAS CITY, KS 66160 48-1108830 [501(C)(3) 52, 824. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) UNIVERSI TY OF KENTUCKY
301 PETERSON SVC BLDG LEXI NGTON, KY 40506 61- 6033693 [GOVT 122, 120. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) UNIVERSITY OF LOUI SVILLE
CTRS OFFI CE LOUI SVI LLE, KY 40202-1959 61- 1029626 |[501(C)(3) 69, 285. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) UNIVERSI TY OF MARYLAND
P O BOX 41428 BALTI MORE, MD 21201 52- 6002033 [GOVT 2,021, 214. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) UNIVERSI TY OF M AM
PO BOX 025405 M AM, FL 33102 59- 0624458 [501(C)(3) 460, 373. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) UNIVERSI TY OF M CHI GAN
2901 HUBBARD ST ANN ARBOR, M 48109 38- 6006309 [GOVT 777,198. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) UNIVERSI TY OF M NNESOTA
1300 S 2ND M NNEAPQLI' S, MN 55454 41- 6007513 [GOVT 806, 382. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) UNIVERSI TY OF M SSI SSI PPl MEDI CAL CENTER
OFF OF SPON. PROG JACKSON, Ms 39216-4505 64- 6008520 [501(C)(3) 120, 117. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) UNIVERSI TY OF NEBRASKA BOARD OF REGENTS
985045 NE MED CNTR OVAHA, NE 68198- 5045 47-0049123 [GOVT 2,523, 959. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) UNIVERSI TY OF NEW MEXI CO
MSC09 5225 ALBUQUERQUE, NM 87131 85- 6000642 [GOV' T 79, 500. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) UNIVERSI TY OF NORTH CAROLI NA
103 SOUTH BUI LDI NG CHAPEL HI LL, NC 27599 56- 6001393 [GOVT 366, 725. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) UNIVERSI TY OF NORTH CAROLI NA- W LM NGTON
600 S COLLEGE RD W LM NGTON, NC 28403-5934 56- 1258660 [GOVT 27, 851. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) UNIVERSI TY OF NORTH TEXAS
1155 UNION CI RCLE DENTON, TX 76203 75- 6002149 [GOVT 80, 905. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) UNIVERSI TY OF PI TTSBURGH
116 ATWOOD STREET PI TTSBURGH, PA 15260 25-0965591 [501(C) (3) 889, 712. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) UNIVERSI TY OF ROCHESTER
115 SULLY' S TRAIL PI TTSFORD, NY 14534 16- 0743209 |501(0O)(3) 24, 815. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) UNIVERSI TY OF SOUTH CAROLI NA
1400 GREENE ST COLUMBI A, SC 29208 57-6001153 [GOVT 441, 085. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) UNIVERSI TY OF SOUTHERN CALI FORNI A
3540 S FI GUEROA ST LOS ANGELES, CA 90007 95-1642394 [GOVT 125, 079. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) UNIVERSI TY OF TENNESSEE
527 ANDY HOLD TOWER KNOXVI LLE, TN 37996 62- 6001636 [GOVT 79, 741. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) UNIVERSI TY OF TEXAS
5323 HARRY HI NES BLVD DALLAS, TX 75284 74-1761309 [GOVT 266, 765. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) UNI VERSI TY OF UTAH
201 S 1460 E SALTLAKE CITY, UT 84112 87- 6000525 [GOVT 376, 704. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) UNIVERSI TY OF VERMONT
PO BOX 1389 BURLI NGTON, VT 05405-0160 03- 0179440 |[GOVT 14, 404. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) UNIVERSITY OF VIRG NI A
PO BOX 400127 CHARLOTTESVI LLE, VA 22904 54- 6001796 [GOVT 46, 298. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) UNIVERSI TY OF WASHI NGTON
1410 NE CAMPUS PARKWAY SEATTLE, WA 98195 91- 6001537 [GOVT 1, 226, 357. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) UNIVERSI TY OF W SCONSI N
1848 UNI VERSI TY AVE MADI SON, W 53726 39-1805963 [GOVT 556, 317. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) UNI VERSI TY SYSTEM OF NEW HAMPSHI RE
51 COLLEGE RD DURHAM NH 03824- 3585 26- 0000937 [GOVT 109, 103. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) UNLIM TED TECHNOLOGY SYSTEMS LLC
11501 NORTHLAKE DR CI NCI NNATI, OH 45249 81- 0614161 [LLC 30, 500. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) UTAH STATE UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 410027 SALT LAKE CITY, UT 84141-0027 |[87-6000528 |GOVT 5, 100. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(12) VANDERBI LT UNI VERSI TY
2361 VANDERBI LT PLACE NASHVI LLE, TN 37212 62- 0476822 |[501(C)(3) 307, 134. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) VANDERBI LT UNI VERSI TY MEDI CAL CENTER
DEPT. 1236, P O BOX 121236 35-2528741 |[501(C)(3) 181, 742. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(2) VIRG NIA COWONVEALTH UNI VERSI TY
BOX 843039 RI CHMOND, VA 23284-3039 54-6001758 (115 25, 964. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(3) WAKE FOREST UNI VERSI TY
1834 WAKE FOREST RD W NSTON-SALEM NC 27157 |22-3849199 |501(C)(3) 153, 538. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(4) WALTER REED ARMY | NSTI TUTE OF RESEARCH
503 RBRT GRANT AVE SI LVER SPRI NG, MD 20190 53-0196956 |[(GOV' T 131, 638. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(5) WASHI NGTON STATE UNI VERSI TY
240 FRENCH ADWN BLDG PULLMAN, WA 99164-1025 |91-6001108 |GOVT 71, 511. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(6) WASHI NGTON UNI VERSI TY
ONE BROOKI NGS DRI VE ST LOQUI'S, MO 63110 43- 0653611 [501(C)(3) 217, 331. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(7) WAYNE STATE UNI VERSI TY
5057 WOODWARD AVE DETROI T, M 48202 38- 6028429 [GOVT 14, 084. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(8) VEST VIRG NI A UNI VERSI TY
PO BOX 6002 MORGANTOWN, W/ 26506 55- 6000842 [GOVT 145, 703. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(9) WOMEN & | NFANTS HOSPI TAL OF RHCODE | SLAND
DI R- RESCH ACCTG PROVI DENCE, RI 02906 05- 0258937 [501(C) (3) 46, 179. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(10) YALE UNIVERSITY
PO BOX 2038 NEW HAVEN, CT 06521 06- 0646973 [501(C) (3) 33, 698. RESEARCH SUBCONTRACT
(11) ASSOCI ATI ON FOR CLI NI TCAL PASTORAL EDUCATI O
ONE WEST COURT SQ STE 325 DECATUR, GA 30030 |58-1921094 |501(C)(3) 5, 001. DONATI ON
(12) GEORG A CAMPAI GN FOR ADOLESCENT POAER AND P
1718 PEACHTREE STREET NW ATLANTA, GA 30309 31- 1520709 |[501(C)(3) 10, 000. DONATI ON
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fgo“gﬁtgﬁvog\é%'é?ggln (9) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance " othen) ’ noncash assistance or assistance
(1) GENERAL BOARD OF GLOBAL M NI STRIES (UMD)
458 PONCE DE LEON AVE NE ATLANTA, GA 30308 13- 5565089 |CHURCH 20, 000. DONATI ON
(2) GEORG A DEPT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
2 MK JR DRI VE SE ATLANTA, GA 30334 58-1130945 |[GOVT 10, 000. DONATI ON
(3) GOCD SAVARI TAN HEALTH CENTER
1015 DL HOLLOWELL PKWY ATLANTA, GA 30318 58- 2373395 [501(C)(3) 5,125. DONATI ON
(4) NATI ONAL BLACK ARTS FESTI VAL
235 PEACHTREE ROAD ATLANTA, GA 30303 58- 1736780 |[501(C)(3) 6, 000. DONATI ON
(5) SI GVA THETA TAU | NTERNATI ONAL
550 W NORTH STREET | NDI ANAPQLI S, | N 46202 41- 6022987 |[501(C)(3) 6, 000. DONATI ON
(6) GEORG A CHAMBER OF COWMMVERCE
P O BOX 102676 ATLANTA, GA 30368-0676 58- 1537370 [501(C)(3) 10, 000. DONATI ON
(7) T J MARTELL FOUNDATI ON
2870 PEACHTREE RD ATLANTA, GA 30305 80- 0377727 |[501(C)(3) 7, 500. DONATI ON
(8) METRO ATLANTA CHAMBER
191 PEACHTREE STREET NE ATLANTA, GA 30303 58- 0145520 [501(C)(3) 13, 333. DONATI ON
(9) THE UNI TED METHODI ST CHURCH
PO BOX 440102 NASHVI LLE, TN 37244-0102 31-1813333 [CHURCH 21, 154. DONATI ON
(10) GRADY HEALTH FOUNDATI ON
GRADY MEMORI AL HOSPI TAL ATLANTA, GA 30303 58- 2130437 |[501(C)(3) 40, 000. DONATI ON
(11) THE PEDI ATRI C CENTER
2015 UPPERGATE DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 58- 1692698 [501(C)(3) 150, 000. DONATI ON
(12) COUNCI L FOR ADVANCEMENT AND SUPPORT OF EDUC
1307 NEW YORK AVE WASHI NGTON, DC 20042-4022 |52-1012307 |501(C)(3) 8, 500. DONATI ON
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e >
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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SCHEDULE | Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations, | OoMmB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) Governments, and Individuals in the United States 2017
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury > Attach to Form 990. Open to P.Ub”C
Internal Revenue Service » Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
T4l General Information on Grants and Assistance
1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees’ eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants or @ssistance? . . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e Yes |:| No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds in the United States.

Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Organizations and Domestic Governments. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form
990, Part IV, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part Il can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

1 (a) Name and address of organization (b) EIN (c) IRC section (d) Amount of cash | (e) Amount of non- ((fg MEHI]:R/?VOf valuatioln (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
or government (if applicable) grant cash assistance 00K, Oth,e?)pprmsa, noncash assistance or assistance
(1) UNIV OF PUERTO RI CO MED SCI ENCES CAWMPUS
PO BOX 365067 SAN JUAN, PR 00936 GOVT 84, 466. DONATI ON
(2) MEDSHARE | NTERNATI ONAL | NC
3240 CLI FTON SPRINGS RD ATLANTA, GA 30034 58- 2433968 [501(C)(3) 109, 995. |FW MEDI CAL SUPP IVEDI CAL SUPPLI ES
(3) SAINT JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF ATLANTA I NC
5673 PEACHTREE DUNWOCDY RD 58- 0566257 [501(C)(3) 17, 755, 208. DONATI ON
(4) EMORY/ SAI NT JOSEPH S I NC
1440 CLI FTON RD NE ATLANTA, GA 30322 45-2721833 |[501(C)(3) 15, 046, 911. DONATI ON
(5)
(6)
(7
(8)
(9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1table . . . . . ... ... ... .. ... | 2 218.
3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthe line 1table. . . . . . . . . . . 0 i i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > 14.
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)

58- 0566256
Page 2

el Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part lll can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

(a) Type of grant or assistance

(b) Number of
recipients

(c) Amount of
cash grant

(d) Amount of
non-cash assistance

(e) Method of valuation (book,
FMV, appraisal, other)

(f) Description of non-cash assistance

1 EMORY UNIVERSITY

276, 304, 508.

2 EMORY LAW

15, 000.

7

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part |, line 2, Part lll, column (b); and any other additional

information.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE |, PART I,

MONI TORI NG THE USE OF GRANTS

LI NE 2

EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S STUDENT Al D AWARDS CONSI ST OF NEED- BASED AND

MERI T- BASED AWARDS. MERI T- BASED FUNDI NG | S AWARDED BASED UPON DONOR

PREFERENCES AND RESTRI CTI ONS OR | NSTI TUTI ONAL ACADEM C CRI TERI A

NEED- BASED Al D | S AWARDED BASED UPON | NSTI TUTI ONAL METHODOLOGY, A

STANDARD NEED ANALYSI S FORMULA GENERALLY PRACTI CED BY OTHER PRI VATE,

NON- PROFI T PEER | NSTI TUTI ONS.  STUDENT FI NANCI AL AID IS AWARDED TO

STUDENTS FCOR EDUCATI ONAL PURPOSES. AWARD AMOUNTS ARE CONTROLLED BY

EDUCATI ONAL COSTS ESTABLI SHED BY THE | NSTI TUTI ON AND STUDENT PROGRESS | S

JSA
7E1504 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Schedule | (Form 990) (2017) Page 2
el Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part lll can be duplicated if additional space is needed.
(a) Type of grant or assistance (b) Number of (c) Amount of (d) Amount of (e) Method of valuation (book, (f) Description of non-cash assistance
recipients cash grant non-cash assistance FMV, appraisal, other)

7

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part |, line 2, Part lll, column (b); and any other additional
information.

EVALUATED AT KEY PO NTS I N THE STUDENT LI FECYCLE | F THE AWARD HAS

CONTI NGENCI ES THAT REQUI RE SUCH. DI SBURSEMENT CONTROLS ARE | N PLACE THAT
REQUI RE DI RECT COSTS BE PAI D PRI OR TO PROVI DI NG REFUNDS FOR NON- DI RECT
EDUCATI ONAL EXPENSES. EMORY UNI VERSI TY IS RESPONSI BLE FOR ENSURI NG THAT
I T COMWUNI CATES THE RELEVANT AND NECESSARY | NFORMATI ON CONTAI NED | N
SUBCONTRACTED AWARD DOCUMENTS TO THE SUBRECI PI ENTS. THE OFFI CE OF
SPONSORED PROGRAMS MAI NTAINS A COPY OF THE SUBCONTRACT AGREEMENT, WHI CH
STI PULATES THE TERMS OF THE AWARD AND IS SI GNED BY REPRESENTATI VES OF
BOTH EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND THE SUBRECI PI ENT ORGANI ZATI ON. THI S AGREEMENT

| NDI CATES THAT THE SUBRECI PI ENT UNDERSTANDS AND | S AWARE OF THE AWARD

JSA

7E1504 1.000
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Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)

58- 0566256
Page 2

el Grants and Other Assistance to Domestic Individuals. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 22.

Part lll can be duplicated if additional space is needed.

(a) Type of grant or assistance (b) Number of
recipients

(c) Amount of
cash grant

(d) Amount of
non-cash assistance

(e) Method of valuation (book,
FMV, appraisal, other)

(f) Description of non-cash assistance

7

information.

Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part |, line 2, Part lll, column (b); and any other additional

REQUI REMENTS. | N ADDI TION, | F THERE ARE ANY FURTHER CHANGES TO THE

AGREEMENT, AN AMENDMENT TO THE AGREEMENT | S GENERATED AND SI GNED BY THE

REPRESENTATI VE OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND THE SUBRECI Pl ENT.

JSA
7E1504 1.000
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Schedule | (Form 990) (2017)
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SCHEDULE J Com pensation Information OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990) For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest

Compensated Employees

2017

p Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 23. o) Publi
Department of the Treasury ) p Attach to Form 990. - - pen to U IC
Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Questions Regarding Compensation

la

Check the appropriate box(es) if the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed on Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a. Complete Part lll to provide any relevant information regarding these items.
First-class or charter travel

Travel for companions

Tax indemnification and gross-up payments
Discretionary spending account

Housing allowance or residence for personal use
Payments for business use of personal residence
Health or social club dues or initiation fees

Personal services (such as, maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes on line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment
or reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part Ill to
501

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, and officers, including the CEO/Executive Director, regarding the items checked on line

Indicate which, if any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO/Executive Director. Check all that apply. Do not check any boxes for methods used by a
related organization to establish compensation of the CEO/Executive Director, but explain in Part Ill.

Compensation committee - Written employment contract
Independent compensation consultant Compensation survey or study
Form 990 of other organizations Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, with respect to the filing
organization or a related organization:

If "Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part lIl.

Only section 501(c)(3), 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of:

The organization? . . . . . i v i i it s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Any related organization? . . . . . . .. L L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
If "Yes" on line 5a or 5b, describe in Part Ill.

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of:

The organization? . . . . . i v i i it s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
Any related organization? . . . . . . .. L L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
If "Yes" on line 6a or 6b, describe in Part Ill.

For persons listed on Form 990, Part VI, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any nonfixed
payments not described on lines 5 and 67 If "Yes," describe inPartlll. . . . . .. ... ... ...........
Were any amounts reported on Form 990, Part VII, paid or accrued pursuant to a contract that was subject

to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53.4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
T = O |

Yes No
1b | X
2 X
4a X
ap | X
4c X
5a X
5b X
6a X
6b X
7 X
8 X
9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

JSA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
3Elaql] Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that
individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns (F) Compensation
(A) Name and Title (i) Base (i) Bonus & incentive (iii) Other other deferred benefits (B)(i)-(D) in column (B) repo!'ted
compensation compensation reportable compensation as difs:r:?%gg prior
compensation

MARY BETH ALLEN 0) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
,CHI EF HR OFFICER - EHC (ii) 370, 138. 232, 070. 36, 209. 18, 900. 10, 873. 668, 190.
CHRI STOPHER AUGOSTI NI @) 458, 701. 0. 203, 700. 24, 300. 11, 502. 698, 203.
2EVP BUSI NESS AND ADM NI STR. (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
CHARLES C. BARNES, JR | 540, 752. 315, 720. 17, 230. 24, 300. 9, 159. 907, 161.
3/P- HUMAN RESQURCES (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
SUSAN CRUSE @) 634, 771. 0 53, 940. 24, 300. 26, 182. 739, 193.
4SVP ADV. & ALUM ENGAGEMENT (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
VI NCE DOLLARD @) 297, 632. 0. 600. 22, 200. 17, 768. 338, 200.
5I NTERI M SVP- COWLUNI CATI ONS (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
ALLI SON DYKES JOHNSON [0) 366, 147. 10, 000. 0. 24, 300. 12, 810. 413, 257.
GVP- UNI VERSI TY SECRETARY (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
CARCL KI SSAL 0) 456, 030. 0. 18, 664. 24, 300. 23, 590. 522, 584.
7SEE SCHEDULE J PART 111 (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
JONATHAN S. LEWN, M 0) 634, 536. 0. 66, 768. 24, 300. 9, 298. 734, 902.
gSEE SCHEDULE J PART 111 (i) 643, 874. 768, 825. 13, 598. 0. 15, 620. 1,441, 917.
PAUL P. MARTHERS 0) 150, 491. 25, 000. 4,842. 13, 125. 12, 781. 206, 239.

9I NTERI M SVP - CAMPUS LI FE (i) 0. 0 0. 0. 0. 0.
DW GHT A. MCBRI DE @) 348, 462. 0 162, 510. 24, 300. 5, 866. 541, 138.
1P ROVCST/ BVP (ii) 0. 0 0. 0. 0. 0.
AJAY NAI R [0) 405, 694. 0. 13, 707. 85, 800. 24, 026. 529, 227.
115VP- CAVPUS LIFE (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
STEPHEN D SENCER [0) 607, 130. 33, 484. 0. 24, 300. 32, 278. 697, 192.
1pSVP- GENERAL COUNSEL (i) 0. 0 0. 0. 0. 0.
CLAI RE STERK @) 1, 012, 651. 0 75, 650. 24, 300. 70, 535. 1, 183, 136.
137 RES! DENT (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
GREG ANDERSON @i) 146, 588. 0. 985. 16, 200. 19, 932. 183, 705.
14YP/ GFO EMORY UNI'V HOSP M DTOMN (i) 136, 356. 82, 529. 315. 0. 12, 761. 231, 961.
CARLA CHANDLER 0) 280, 703. 0. 1, 102. 18, 157. 21, 246. 321, 208.
15VP/ CFO EMORY NIV HOSPI TAL (i) 0. 83, 715. 30. 0. 2,495, 86, 240.
M CHAEL ELLIOTT [0) 452, 965. 0. 25, 000. 24, 300. 14, 482. 516, 747.
1gPFAN OF BEMRY COLLEGE (ii) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
3Elaql] Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that
individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns (F) Compensation
(A) Name and Title (i) Base (i) Bonus & incentive (iii) Other other deferred benefits (B)(i)-(D) in column (B) repo!'ted
compensation compensation reportable compensation as deferred on prior
compensation Form 990

BRYCE GARTLAND, MD [0) 438, 085. 0. 1, 197. 18, 860. 5, 280. 463, 422.
,CFO EMORY' UNIVERSI TY HCSPI TAL (ii) 5, 304. 253, 485. 30. 65, 363. 17, 687. 341, 869.
DANI EL ONENS [0) 405, 827. 0. 1, 197. 18, 900. 425, 924.
oCFO EMRY UNI'V HOSP. - M DTOMN (ii) 1, 000. 213, 353. 30. 59, 063. 26, 340. 299, 786.
SHARON PAPPAS (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
JCHI EF NURSING OFFI CER (ii) 399, 815. 230, 403. 7, 905. 70, 000. 19, 189. 727, 312.
DANE PETERSON @) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.

4H1OSPI TAL GROUP PRESI DENT (i) 667, 393. 411, 743. 38, 470. 115, 020. 35, 336. 1, 267, 962. 67, 307.
DAVI D STEPHENS, MD @i) 814, 000. 0. 21, 596. 30, 100. -1, 308. 864, 388.
5 NTERIM DEAN - SOM (i) 0. 166, 145. 0. 0. 1, 884. 168, 029.
VI KAS SUKHATME, MD [0) 98, 780. 0. 70, 364. 11, 475. 295. 180, 914.
gDFAN, SCHOOL CF MEDI Q1 NE (i) 42, 501. 0. 30, 657. 0. 1, 055. 74, 213.
DANI EL L. BARROW NMD 0) 261, 612. 0. 396. 28, 147. 5, 100. 295, 255.
FHYSIC AN (i) 731, 108. 494, 936. 31, 608. 0. 15, 221. 1,272, 873.
WALTER J. CURRAN, MD 0) 939, 788. 0. 1, 524. 105, 828. 5, 088. 1, 052, 228.
g HYSI G AN (ii) 228, 016. 322, 610. 32, 434. 0. 16, 605. 599, 665.
SHERVI N OSKQUEI , MD [0) 0. 0. 0. 22, 020. 216. 22, 236.
HYSICIAN (ii) 863, 698. 886, 551. 11, 523. 0. 20, 696. 1, 782, 468.
DAN REFAI, MD [0) 0. 0. 12. 22, 020. 204. 22, 236.
1oPHYsiaaN (i) 823, 048. 938, 447. 11, 505. 0. 25, 407. 1,798, 407.
JOHN M RHEE, MD [0) 0. 0. 18. 22, 095. 198. 22, 311.
11PHYSI G AN (i) 1,078, 486. 1,112, 869. 11, 775. 0. 19, 748. 2,222, 878.
ROBERT J BACHVAN [0) 405, 867. 0. 14, 832. 18, 900. 9, 218. 448, 817.
1oFORVER KEY EMPLOYEE (i) 0. 134, 027. 30. 0. 18, 516. 152, 573.

MARY L CAHI LL @) 396, 660. 866, 549. 1, 999, 971. 24, 300. 12, 663. 3, 300, 143. 280, 824.
137ORVER OFFI GBR (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
S WRI GHT CAUGHVAN, MD @i) 426, 949. 0. 27,188. 29, 384. 5, 687. 489, 208.
14TORVER OFFI CER (ii) 59, 070. 0. 8, 345. 0. 10, 918. 78, 333.
DELBRI DGE KI NG @) 275, 916. 2,775. 0. 24, 300. 16, 539. 319, 530.
15 ORVER OFFI GBR (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
CHRI STI AN P LARSEN , MD| () 269, 324. 409, 000. 917. 30, 100. 5, 954. 715, 295.
16FCRVER KEY ENPLOYEE (i) 295, 520. 0. 33, 765. 0. 11, 249. 340, 534.

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017

JSA
7E1291 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PAGE 121



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
3Elaql] Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies if additional space is needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported on Schedule J, report compensation from the organization on row (i) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (ii). Do not list any individuals that aren't listed on Form 990, Part VII.

Note: The sum of columns (B)(i)-(iii) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that
individual.

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns (F) Compensation
(A) Name and Title (i) Base (i) Bonus & incentive (iii) Other other deferred benefits (B)()-D) in column (B) reported
compensation compensation reportable compensation as deferred on prior
compensation Form 990
THOVAS J LAWEY, M @) 433, 852. 0. 23, 964. 29, 800. 16, 375. 503, 991.
FORVER KEY ENPLOYEE (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
ROSEVARY M MAGEE @) 218, 384. 0. 0. 20, 132. 16, 293. 254, 809.
JFORVER OFFI CER (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
Rl CHARD MENDCLA @i) 595, 676. 0. 32, 435. 24, 300. 31, 156. 683, 567.
JFORVER OFFI CER (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
JAMES W VWAGNER 0) 718, 391. 0. 0. 24, 300. 10, 554. 753, 245.
JFORVER OFFI CER (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
THERESA M LAZZO 0) 296, 237. 2,974 550 24, 300. 13, 321. 337, 382.
5FORVER OFFI CER (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
STUART ZOLA @) 341, 681. 0. 0. 24, 300. 1, 107. 367, 088.
gFORVER OFFI CER (i) 0. 0. 0. 0. 0. 0.
JAVES T. HATCHER (i) 0. 0. 0.

7070 EMORY HEALTHCARE (ii) 500, 047. 516, 175. 46, 524. 18, 900. 18, 294. 1, 099, 940.

=)
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[ee]
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=

=)
SN}
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=
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=
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=
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=
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=
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=
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE J, PART |, LINE 1A

QUESTI ONS REGARDI NG COVPENSATI ON

FI RST CLASS OR CHARTER TRAVEL:

FI RST CLASS TRAVEL |'S NOT ALLOWED UNLESS IT IS THE ONLY SEAT AVAI LABLE ON

A REQUI RED FLIGHT OR IS A MEDI CAL NECESSI TY FOR THE EMPLOYEE.

TRAVEL FOR COMPANI ONS:

W TH THE EXCEPTI ON OF THE PRESI DENT, REI MBURSEMENT OR PAYMENT OF THE
TRAVEL EXPENSES OF AN ELI G BLE EMPLOYEE' S FAM LY MEMBER MUST NORVALLY BE
PRE- APPROVED BY THE PRESI DENT OR APPROPRI ATE EXECUTI VE VI CE PRESI DENT OR
SENI OR VI CE PRESI DENT. THE TRAVEL EXPENSES OF AN ELI G BLE EMPLOYEE' S
FAM LY MEMBER MAY BE PAI D FOR OR RElI MBURSED BY EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND ARE
NOT | NCLUDED | N THE EMPLOYEE' S TAXABLE | NCOVE, PROVI DED THE EMPLOYEE CAN
ESTABLI SH THAT THE PRESENCE OF HH S OR HER FAM LY MEMBER SERVES A " BONA
FI DE BUSI NESS PURPCSE" AS DEFI NED | N THE TREASURY REGULATIONS. A FAM LY
MEMBER S PRESENCE | S CONSI DERED TO SERVE A BONA FI DE BUSI NESS PURPCOSE | F
THE | NDI VI DUAL HAS A SI GNI FI CANT ROLE | N THE PROCEEDI NGS OR MAKES AN

| MPORTANT CONTRI BUTI ON TO THE SUCCESS OF THE EVENT. | F ATTENDANCE OF AN

ELI G BLE EMPLOYEE' S FAM LY MEMBER | S DESI RABLE BUT DCES NOT SERVE A BONA
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

FI DE BUSI NESS PURPCSE TO EMCRY, ANY SUCH PAYMENT OR RElI MBURSEMENT FOR

SUCH FAM LY MEMBER S TRAVEL EXPENSES W LL BE A TAXABLE PAYMENT.

TAX | NDEMNI FI CATI ON AND GROSS UP PAYMENTS:
EMORY UNI VERSI TY DOES NOT MAKE TAX | NDEWNI FI CATI ON OR GROSS- UP PAYMENTS

TO EXECUTI VE STAFF MEMBERS UNLESS AGREED TO PRI OR TO PAYMENT.

HOUSI NG ALLOMNCE OR RESI DENCE FOR PERSONAL USE:
EMORY UNI VERSI TY PROVI DES AN ON- CAMPUS RESI DENCE FOR THE PRESI DENT. THE
PRESI DENT MJUST LIVE IN TH S RESI DENCE AS A REQUI REMENT OF THE PCSI TI ON

AND UTI LI ZE THE RESI DENCE FOR UNI VERSI TY BUSI NESS PURPGCSES.

HEALTH OR SOCI AL CLUB DUES OR | NI TI ATI ON FEES:

EMORY UNI VERSI TY PROVI DES CERTAI N EXECUTI VES W TH TAXABLE COMPENSATI ON TO
REI MBURSE THE EXPENSE OF MEMBERSHI P DUES AND APPROPRI ATE | NI TI ATI ON FEES
FOR A SOCI AL OR COUNTRY CLUB USED FOR EMORY UNI VERSI TY BUSI NESS

ENTERTAI NVENT PURPCSES.

SUSAN CRUSE $4, 200

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

CLAI RE STERK $5, 450

FORM 990, SCHEDULE J, PART |, LINE 3

ESTABLI SHI NG COMPENSATI ON:

THE PRESI DENT' S COVPENSATI ON | S APPROVED BY THE EXECUTI VE COVPENSATI ON
AND TRUSTEES' CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST COW TTEE OF THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY
BOARD OF TRUSTEES, COVPOSED OF QUTSI DE TRUSTEES. THE RECOMVENDATION | S
BASED ON COVPENSATI ON SURVEY DATA W TH PERI CDI C REVI EW BY AN | NDEPENDENT

COVPENSATI ON CONSULTANT.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE J, PART I, LINE 4B
NON- QUALI FI ED RETI REMENT PLAN:
CERTAI N EXECUTI VES PARTI Cl PATE | N A SUPPLEMENTAL RETI REMENT PLAN | NTENDED

TO MAKE UP FOR LIM TS ON COVPENSATI ON I N THE QUALI FI ED RETI REMENT PLAN.

CHARLES C. BARNES, JR $17, 230
SUSAN CRUSE $34, 740
CAROL D. KI SSAL $18, 064
JONATHAN S. LEWN MD $59, 010
RI CHARD A. MENDOLA $31, 505

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017

JSA
7E1505 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PACE 125



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

AJAY NAIR $13, 707
STEPHEN D. SENCER $32, 884
CLAI RE E. STERK $70, 200

FORM 990, SCHEDULE J, PART |, LINE 7

NON- FI XED PAYMENTS:

PERFORMANCE BONUSES WERE PAI D TO CERTAI N EXECUTI VES DURI NG THE YEAR
CHARLES C. BARNES, JR $10, 000

ALLI SON DYKES JOHNSON $10, 000

DELBRI DGE KI NG $ 2,775

THERESA M LAZZO $ 2,974

IN 2017, MARY L. CAHILL, EMORY UN VERSI TY'S CHI EF | NVESTMENT OFFI CER, WAS
PAI D AN | NCENTI VE AWARD OF $866, 549 FOR 2016 PERFORVANCE AND 2017
PERFORMANCE THROUGH JULY. MS. CAHI LL ALSO RECElI VED A PAYOUT OF PREVI QUS
DEFERRED | NCENTI VE AWARDS OF $280, 824. AT THE TI ME OF HER DEPARTURE FROM

EMORY, MS. CAHI LL RECEI VED $1, 719, 147 AS A SEVERANCE PAYMENT.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017 Page 3

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE J, PART Il, COLUMN C & COLUWN F

SUPPLEMENTAL NON- QUALI FI ED RETI REMENT PLAN

FOR PURPOSES OF RETENTI ON, EMORY UN VERSI TY MADE CONTRI BUTI ONS TO 457(F)
DEFERRED COVPENSATI ON ACCOUNTS FOR THE FOLLOW NG | NDI VI DUALS, WHI CH ARE

NOT VESTED AND ARE SUBJECT TO A SUBSTANTI AL RI SK OF FORFEI TURE:

WALTER J. CURRAN, MD $75, 000
BRYCE GARTLAND, MD $65, 363
AJAY NAI R $61, 500
DANI EL OWENS $59, 063
SHARON PAPPAS $70, 000
DANE PETERSON $98, 820

THE FOLLOW NG | NDI VI DUALS RECEI VED A PAYQUT COF VESTED DEFERRED
COVPENSATI ON AWARDS VADE DURI NG PRI OR YEARS. THESE AWARDS WERE REPORTED
AS DEFERRED COWVPENSATI ON I N THOSE YEARS ON FORM 990.

DANE PETERSON $67, 307
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule J (Form 990) 2017

=E13lI[l Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for Part |, lines 1a, 1b, 3, 4a, 4b, 4c, 5a, 5b, 6a, 6b, 7, and 8, and for Part Il. Also complete this part
for any additional information.

Page 3

MARY CAHI LL $280, 824

FORM 990, PART VII & SCH J PART Il - TITLES
CARCL KI SSAL - VP-FI NANCE, CHI EF FI NANCI AL OFFI CER
JONATHAN S. LEWN, MD - EVP HEALTH AFFAI RS; EXECUTI VE DI RECTOR WOODRUFF

HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER; PRESI DENT, CEO AND CHAI RVAN OF THE BOARD OF EMORY

HEALTHCARE
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SCHEDULE K
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

TE BONDS PAGE 1
Supplemental Information on Tax-Exempt Bonds

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,

explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.
» Attach to Form 990.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
=g Bond Issues
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # | (d) Date issued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose (9) Defeased bghrza(l)fnof gi)rwpr?gilr?g
Issuer
Yes No Yes No Yes |No
A PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265158 08/ 04/ 2005 250, 000, 000. | SEE PART VI - 2005B X X X
B PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LTD0 08/ 25/ 2005 281, 575, 000. | SEE PART VI - 2005C X X X
C PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LVR6 05/ 13/ 2009 253,121, 397. | SEE PART VI - 2009B X X X
D PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LXFO 07/ 23/ 2009 99, 790, 294. | SEE PART VI - 2009C X X X
Proceeds
A B C D
1 Amountofbondsretired . . . . v v v it i e e e e e e e e e e e 157, 425, 000. 46, 000, 000. 4, 360, 000.
2 Amountofbondslegallydefeased. . . . . . .. .. ... ... e
3 Total Proceeds Of ISSUE « v« v v v v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 250, 002, 307. 287, 609, 146. 253, 146, 184. 99, 792, 074.
4 Gross proceedsinreserve funds . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
5 Capitalized interest from proceedS. . . . v v v v v v v v e e e e e e e e 3, 238, 536. 1,103, 458.
6 Proceeds in refunding @SCrOWS. . . v v v v v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e 249, 212, 532. 56, 620, 000. 210, 142, 000. 98, 935, 000.
7 Issuance CostS from ProCEEAS & « v v v v v v b v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 787, 468. 1,684, 295. 1,876, 072. 841, 733.
8 Credit enhancementfromproceeds . . . . . . v v v v v v it u h e e e e e e e e
9 Working capital expenditures fromproceeds . . . . . . . . . . i i d e e e
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds . . « v v v v v v v v v e v e e e e e 2, 307. 226, 066, 315. 40, 006, 921. 15, 341.
11 Otherspentproceeds. . . . . . v v v v v v v v vttt e et e e e e e e e e e e
12 Otherunspentproceeds . . . . . v v v v v v v v v b v e e h e e e e e e e e e e
13 Year of substantial completion . . . . . v v v i e e e e e e e e 2005 2007 2011 2009
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
14 Were the bonds issued as part of a current refundingissue? . . . . ... ......... X X X X
15 Were the bonds issued as part of an advance refundingissue?. . . . .. ... ... ... X X X X
16 Has the final allocation of proceedsbeenmade? . . . . . v v v v v i v it i i X X X X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the
final allocation of proceeds? . . . . . . . . . i i i i e e e e e e e e X X X X
Private Business Use
A B C D
1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
which owned property financed by tax-exemptbonds? . . . . v v v v v i e e X X X
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . ... e e e e e X X X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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TE BONDS PAGE 2
Supplemental Information on Tax-Exempt Bonds

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.

» Attach to Form 990.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

SCHEDULE K
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

=g Bond Issues
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # | (d) Date issued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose (9) Defeased bghrza(l)fnof gi)rwpr?gilr?g
Issuer
Yes No Yes No Yes |No
A PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LYF9 08/ 23/ 2011 238,277, 766. | SEE PART VI - 2011A X X X
B PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LA57 08/ 15/ 2013 214,792,974.| SEE PART VI - 2013A X X X
C PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LA73 08/ 15/ 2013 192, 965, 000. | SEE PART VI - 2013BC X X X
D PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY 58- 1407780 74265LK23 09/ 29/ 2016 151, 433, 077. | SEE PART VI - 2016A X X X
Proceeds
A B C D
1 Amountofbondsretired . . . v v v v i i e e e e e 92, 150, 000. 19, 100, 000.
2 Amountofbondslegallydefeased. . . . . . .. .. ... ... e
3 Total Proceeds OF ISSUE . » v v v v v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 238, 277, 809. 214,803, 734. 192, 990, 232. 151, 460, 048.
4 Gross proceedsinreserve funds . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
5 Capitalized interest from proceedS. . . . v v v v v v v v e e e e e e e e 2,745, 441. 687, 020. 5, 034, 592.
6 Proceeds in refunding @SCrOWS. . » v v v v v v v v v e i e e e e e e 236, 668, 501. 58, 968, 426. 157, 425, 000.
7 Issuance CostS from ProCEEAS & « v v v v v v b v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1, 609, 965. 1, 564, 110. 1,183, 200. 943, 818.
8 Credit enhancementfromproceeds . . . . . . v v v v v v it u h e e e e e e e e
9 Working capital expenditures fromproceeds . . . . . . . . . . i i d e e e
10 Capital expenditures from proceedS . « v v v v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e 151, 525, 683. 33, 695, 086. 145, 481, 638.
11 Otherspentproceeds. . . . . . v v v v v v v v vttt e et e e e e e e e e e e
12 Otherunspentproceeds . . . . . v v v v v v v v v b v e e h e e e e e e e e e e
13 Year of substantial completion . . . . . . . i i e e e e e e e e e e e 2011 2017 2017 2018
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
14 Were the bonds issued as part of a current refundingissue? . . . . ... ......... X X X X
15 Were the bonds issued as part of an advance refundingissue?. . . . . . . ........ X X X X
16 Has the final allocation of proceedsbeenmade? . . . . . v v v v v i v it i i X X X X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the
final allocation of proceeds? . . . . . . . . . i i i i e e e e e e e e X X X X
Private Business Use
A B C D
1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
which owned property financed by tax-exemptbonds? . . . . ... ... .. ... .... X X X X
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . ... e e e e e X X X X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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SCHEDULE K
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

TE BONDS PAGE 3

Supplemental Information on Tax-Exempt Bonds

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.

» Attach to Form 990.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Part |

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Bond Issues

(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP #

(d) Date issued

(e) Issue price

(f) Description of purpose

(9) Defeased

(h) On
behalf of
issuer

(i) Pooled
financing

A PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES AUTHORI TY

58- 1407780 74265LM70

09/ 29/ 2016

249, 693, 667.

SEE PART VI

- 2016B

Yes

No

Yes | No | Yes |No

X

X X

B

C

D

SERMIN Proceeds

Amountofbondsretired . . . . . . . . .. L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

A

9, 090, 000.

Amount of bonds legallydefeased . . . . . . ... ... ... ... ..

Total proceeds of ISSUE . . . . & & v v i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

249, 693, 667.

Gross proceedsinreserve funds . . . . . . .. . i L d e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s

Capitalized interest fromproceeds. . . . . . . . . v i v i v i i e e e e e e e e e s

Proceeds inrefunding @SCrows. . . . . . . o v v i i i i i i e e e e e e e e s

248, 091, 791.

Issuance costsfromproceeds . . . . . . . i i i i i h e e e e e e e e e e e e e

1, 601, 876.

Credit enhancement fromproceeds . . . . . . . . . @ v v v i i i i i e e e e e s

OO N | [W[IN|F

Working capital expenditures fromproceeds . . . . . . . . . .. i i e

=
o

Capital expenditures fromproceeds . . . . . . . v v i v i i i e e e e e e e e e e e s

=
=

Other spent proceeds. . . . . v v v v v i v ittt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e s

IR
N

Otherunspentproceeds . . . . . v v v i v i v i vt s e e e s e e e e e e e s

=
w

Year of substantial completion. . . . . . . . . ... . .. 0 e e e e

No

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes No

14

15

16

17

Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the
final allocation of proceeds? . . . . . . . . . i i i i e e e e e e e e

EEVRMIIN Private Business Use

1

Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC,

Yes

Yes

No

Yes

No

Yes No

2

Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
Private Business Use (Continued) TE BONDS PAGE 1
A B C D
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
business use of bond-financed property?. . . . . . . . . i it e e e e e e e e X X X
b If "Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other outside
counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed property? . . . . . X X X
¢ Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . . L . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s X X X
d If "Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?. . X X X
4  Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501(c)(3) organization or a state or local government . . . . . . > % . 2000 % 2.0000 % . 4000 %
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use as a
result of unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization,
another section 501(c)(3) organization, or a state or local government . . . .. ... » % % % %
6 Totalof iNeS4and5 . o v v v v v v v ettt et e e e e e e % - 2000 % 2.0000 % - 4000 %
7 Does the bond issue meet the private security or paymenttest? . . . ... ........ X X X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond-financed property to a
nongovernmental person other than a 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were issued? X X X
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or
disSpoSed Of + v v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e % - 0600 o 1.6900 o %
¢ If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations
sections 1.141-12and 1.145-22 . .+ v v i v i it e e e e e e e e X X
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all
nonqualified bonds of the issue are remediated in accordance with the
requirements under Regulations sections 1.141-12and 1.145-2?, . . . ... ... ... X X X
Arbitrage
A B C D
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, Yield Reduction and Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Penalty in Lieu of Arbitrage Rebate? . . « v v v v v v v v v i e e e e e e e e e X X X X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?. . . . i v i v i i i i e i e e e e e e e e
a Rebate NOt dUE YBt?. . o . v v it it ittt et et e e e X X X X
b Exceptiontorebate? . . . . . . . . . . . i it e e e e e e e e e ee e X X X X
Norebatedue? . . . . . . . o v v v v i e e e e e e e e e a e e e e e e e e e X X X X
If “Yes” to line 2c, provide in Part VI the date the rebate computation was
performed. . . . . . i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s
3 Isthe bond issue avariablerateissue?. . . . . . . . . . .o u i e e e . X X X X
4a Has the organization or the governmental issuer entered into a qualified
hedge with respect to the bond ISSUE?. . . . . v v v v v v v i e e e e e e e e X X X X
b Name of provider . . . . . . . v i i i et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e VELLS FARGO Cl TI GROU|WELLS FARGO CI TI GROU
C Term ofhedge. « . v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 31. 000 31. 000
d Was the hedge superintegrated?. . . . . . . i v v v i i ittt e X X
e Was the hedge terminated?, . . v v v v v v v v i e e e e e e e e e e X X
JSA Schedule K (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
Private Business Use (Continued) TE BONDS PAGE 2
A B C D
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
business use of bond-financed property?. . . . . . . . . i it e e e e e e e e X X X X
b If "Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other outside
counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed property? . . . . . X X X
¢ Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . . L . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s X X X X
d If "Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?. . X X X

4  Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501(c)(3) organization or a state or local government . . . . . . > . 2000 % . 3000 % . 0200 % %

5 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use as a
result of unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization,
another section 501(c)(3) organization, or a state or local government . . . .. ... » % % % %

6 Total of lines 4 and 5 . 2000 9 . 3000 % .0200 % %

8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond-financed property to a
nongovernmental person other than a 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were issued? . . . . X X X X

b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or
AISPOSEA OF « v v v v v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e . 0100 o - 0100 o - 0500 9 %

¢ If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations
sections 1.141-12and 1.145-27 . . . . & i i i i i i i e i e i e e e X X X

9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all
nonqualified bonds of the issue are remediated in accordance with the

Arbitrage

A B C D
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, Yield Reduction and Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Penalty in Lieu of Arbitrage Rebate? . . . . .« v v i v i v i e e e e e X X X X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?. . . . i v i v i i i i e i e e e e e e e e
a Rebate MOt dUE Yet?. . . o v vttt it e e e e e e e e X X X X
b Exceptiontorebate? . . . . . . . . . . . i it e e e e e e e e e ee e X X X X
Norebatedue? . . . . . . . o v v v v i e e e e e e e e e a e e e e e e e e e X X X X
If “Yes” to line 2c, provide in Part VI the date the rebate computation was
= 0 .11
3 Isthe bond issue avariable rate issue?. . . . . . . . . . .. ..o i e e e e e e X X X X
4a Has the organization or the governmental issuer entered into a qualified
hedge with respect to the bond ISSUE?. . . . . v v v v v v v i e e e e e e e e X X X X
b Nameofprovider . . . . . . . . . i i i i i it i i e et e e e e e e e e
c Termofhedge. . . . . . . . . . i i i i it i it i e e e e e e e e e e e
d Was the hedge superintegrated?. . . . . . . . . . . . i i i it e
e Was the hedgeterminated?. . . . . . . . . . . . o i e e e e e
JSA Schedule K (Form 990) 2017
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
Private Business Use (Continued) TE BONDS PAGE 3
A B C D
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
business use of bond-financed property?. . . . . . . . . i it e e e e e e e e X
b If "Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other outside
counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed property? . . . . . X
¢ Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of
bond-financed property? . . . . . . . . L . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s X
d If "Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?. . X
4  Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501(c)(3) organization or a state or local government . . . . . . > . 2000 % % % %
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use as a
result of unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization,
another section 501(c)(3) organization, or a state or local government . . . .. ... » % % % %
6 Totalof iNeS4and5 . o v v v v v v v ettt et e e e e e e - 2000 % % % %
7 Does the bond issue meet the private security or paymenttest? . . . . . . . . ... ... X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond-financed property to a
nongovernmental person other than a 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were issued? X
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or
disposed of . . . . o L e e e e e e e e e e e e % % % %
¢ If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations
sections 1.141-12and 1.145-27 . . . . & i i i i i i i e i e i e e e
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all
nonqualified bonds of the issue are remediated in accordance with the
requirements under Regulations sections 1.141-12and 1.145-2?, . . . ... ... ... X
Arbitrage
A B C D
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T, Arbitrage Rebate, Yield Reduction and Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Penalty in Lieu of Arbitrage Rebate? . . . . . . . . . . o v i o e e X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?. . . . i v i v i i i i e i e e e e e e e e
a Rebate Not dUe Yet?. . . o vt ittt e e e e et e e e et X
b Exceptiontorebate? . . . . . @ i i i i it i e e e e e e e e X
Norebatedue? . . . . . . . o v v v v i e e e e e e e e e a e e e e e e e e e X
If “Yes” to line 2c, provide in Part VI the date the rebate computation was
= 0 .11
3 Isthe bond issue avariablerateissue?. . . . . . . . . . .o u i e e e . X
4a Has the organization or the governmental issuer entered into a qualified
hedge with respecttothe bondissue?, . . . . . .. .. ... ..t ennenn X
b Nameofprovider . . . . . . . . . i i i i i it i i e et e e e e e e e e
c Termofhedge. . . . . v i v i i it it s s e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
d Was the hedge superintegrated?. . . . . . . . . . . . i i i it e
e Was the hedgeterminated?. . . . . . . . . . . . o i e e e e e
JSA Schedule K (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 3
Arbitrage (Continued)
B c D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds invested in a guaranteed investment contract (GIC)? . . ... ... X X X X
b Name of provider . . . . . . 0 i i i i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e TRANSAMERI CA OCCI DEN
C Termof GIC . . . . . . e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e . 014
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market value of the GIC satisfied? . . . . . . X
6 Were any gross proceeds invested beyond an available temporary period? . . . ... .. X X X X
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor the
requirements of section 1487 . . . . . . . . . L ... e e e e e e e a e X X X X
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
B c D
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that violations Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
of federal tax requirements are timely identified and corrected through the
voluntary closing agreement program if self-remediation isn't available under
applicable regulations? . . . . . . . L e e e e e e e e e X X X X

Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K. See instructions

JSA
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017

58- 0566256

Page 3
Arbitrage (Continued)
D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds invested in a guaranteed investment contract (GIC)? . . ... ... X X X X
b Name of provider . . . . . . i i i i i i i i it et et e et et
C Termof GIC . . . . . . e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market value of the GIC satisfied? . . . . . .
6 Were any gross proceeds invested beyond an available temporary period? . . . ... .. X X X X
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor the
requirements of section 1487 . . . . . . . . . L ... e e e e e e e a e X X X X
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
D
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that violations Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
of federal tax requirements are timely identified and corrected through the
voluntary closing agreement program if self-remediation isn't available under
applicable regulations? . . . . . . . L e e e e e e e e e X X X X

Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K. See instructions

JSA
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 3
Arbitrage (Continued)
D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds invested in a guaranteed investment contract (GIC)? . . ... ... X
b Name of provider . . . . . . i i i i i i i i it et et e et et
C Termof GIC . . . . . . e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market value of the GIC satisfied? . . . . . .
6 Were any gross proceeds invested beyond an available temporary period? . . . ... .. X
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor the
requirements of section 1487 . . . . . . . . . L ... e e e e e e e a e X
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
D
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that violations Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
of federal tax requirements are timely identified and corrected through the
voluntary closing agreement program if self-remediation isn't available under
applicable regulations? . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e X

Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K. See instructions

JSA
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 4
Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see instructions) (Continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE K, PART I, COLUWN F

PURPOSE AND | SSUE DATE OF REFUNDED | SSUES

A. 2005B - DEBT REFUNDI NG 8/7/97 (1997A), 9/17/97 (1997C), 8/11/98
(1998A), 9/29/99 (1999A), 8/16/00 (2000A), 10/10/01 (2001A)

B. 2005C - NEW FACI LI TY CONSTRUCTI ON AND DEBT REFUNDI NG 5/ 26/ 94 (1994A),
11/21/95 (1995A), 9/17/97 (1997C), 9/29/99 (1999A), 8/16/00 (2000A),

8/ 16/ 00 (2000B), 10/10/01 (2001B), 10/17/02 (2002B)

C. 2009B - NEW FACI LI TY CONSTRUCTI ON AND DEBT REFUNDI NG 8/16/00 (2000B),
10/ 10/ 01 (2001B), 10/17/02 (2002B), 3/10/09 AND 3/24/09 (2007 CP)

D. 2009C - DEBT REFUNDI NG 6/19/08 (2008A)

E. 2011A - DEBT REFUNDI NG 10/10/2001 (2001A), 10/17/2002 (2002A),

6/ 19/ 2008 (2008B)

F. 2013A - NEW FACI LI TY CONSTRUCTI ON AND DEBT REFUNDI NG 10/ 17/ 2002
(2002A), 09/ 04/2010 (2010 CP), 08/04/05 (2005A), 08/25/05 (2005C)

G 2013BC - NEW FACI LI TY CONSTRUCTI ON AND DEBT REFUNDI NG 08/ 25/ 05
(2005C)

H. 2016A - NEW FACI LI TY CONSTRUCTI ON

|. 2016B - DEBT REFUNDING 06/ 19/ 2008 (2008C), 08/04/2005 (2005A),

9/ 1/ 2016 (CP)

JSA
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 4
Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see instructions) (Continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE K, PART II, LINE 3

TOTAL PROCEEDS OF | SSUE THE PART |, COLUWN (E) "I1SSUE PRI CE'" DCES NOT
AGREE WTH THE PART |1, LINE 3 "TOTAL PROCEEDS COF | SSUE" FOR CERTAI N
BONDS DUE TO THE | NCLUSI ON OF | NVESTMENT EARNI NGS ON THE PROCEEDS
ACCOUNTS. THE CUMULATI VE | NVESTMENT EARNI NGS | NCLUDED I N PART 11, LINE 3
ARE AS FOLLOWE:

PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LSJ8 (2005B) $2, 307

PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LTDO (2005C) $6, 034, 146

PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LVR6 (2009B) $24, 784
PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LXFO (2009C) $1, 780
PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LYF9 (2011A) $43
PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LA57 (2013A) $10, 761

PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LA73 (2013BC) $25, 232

PRI VATE COLLEGES AND UNI VERSI TI ES CUSI P # 74265LK23 (2016A) $26, 970

FORM 990, SCHEDULE K, PART I11
PRI VATE BUSI NESS USE BOND | SSUE 2005B WAS USED ENTI RELY TO REFUND
PRE- 2003 BOND | SSUES. AS SUCH, PART |11, PRI VATE BUSI NESS USE, DOES NOT

APPLY

JSA
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Schedule K (Form 990) 2017 Page 4
Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see instructions) (Continued)

FORM 990, SCHEDULE K, PART 1V, LINE 2C
REBATE COVPUTATI ONS PERFORVED

| SSUE 2005B - 09/01/06; 09/01/11

| SSUE 2005C - 02/25/06; 02/25/07; 08/25/10
| SSUE 2009B - 05/13/14

| SSUE 2009C - 07/23/14

| SSUE 2011A - 08/23/2016

| SSUE 2013A - 8/15/2018

| SSUE 2013BC - 8/15/2018

FORM 990, SCHEDULE K, PART IV, LINE 6

A PORTI ON OF THE PROCEEDS OF THE SERI ES 2005B, 2013A, AND 2016B BONDS
WERE USED TO ADVANCE REFUND PRI OR OBLI GATI ONS, AND THEREFORE, GROSS
PROCEEDS WERE | NVESTED BEYOND AN AVAI LABLE TEMPORARY PERI CD. HOWEVER,
THE PROCEEDS USED I N THE ADVANCE REFUNDI NG WERE YI ELD RESTRI CTED I N

ACCORDANCE W TH THE CODE AND TREASURY REGULATI ONS.

JSA
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SCHEDULE L Transactions With Interested Persons |___OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-EZ)| p Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 2@17
28b, or 28c, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
PAttach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. Open To Public

Department of the Treasury

Internal Revenue Service P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3), section 501(c)(4), and 501(c)(29) organizations only).
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b.
1 (a) Name of disqualified person (b) Relationship bg:\gzﬁir;:ti;?]ualiﬂed person and (c) Description of transaction t::e':j
1
(2
(3
(4)
()
(6)
2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by the organization managers or disqualified persons during the year
UNder SECtON 4958 . . . L . i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e > 3
3 Enter the amount of tax, if any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization. . . . .. ......... > $
Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or Form 990, Part IV, line 26; or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5, 6, or 22.

(@) Name of interested person (b) Relationship | (c) Purpose of | (d) Loan to or (e) Original (f) Balance due (9) In default?|(h) Approved| (i) Written
with organization loan from the principal amount by board or | agreement?
organization? committee?

To |From Yes | No | Yes | No | Yes | No

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7
(8)
(9)
(10)
o) € » 3

REWHIN Grants or Assistance Benefiting Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between interested |(c) Amount of assistance (d) Type of assistance (e) Purpose of assistance
person and the organization

(1)
(2)
(3
4
(5
(6)
(7
(8)
(9
(10)
For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017

58- 0566256

Page 2

@I\ Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction (e) sharing of

interested person and the transaction organization's
organization revenues?

Yes | No
(l) MARY BALL FAM LY MEM OF OFFI CER 16, 719. | EMPLOYEE X
(2) CHRI STOPHER Y. CAUGHVAN FAM LY MEM OF FORMER OFFI 62, 602. | EMPLOYEE X
(3) SHERYL GABRAM MENDOLA FAM LY MEM OF FORMER OFFI 592, 228. | EMPLOYEE X
(4) DAVI D GOLDSM TH FAM LY MEM OF FORMER KEY 199, 776. | EMPLOYEE X
(5) JOHN LAW.EY FAM LY MEM OF FORMER KEY 145, 109. | EMPLOYEE X
(6) LESLI E LAWEY, M FAM LY MEM OF FORMER KEY 216, 228. | EMPLOYEE X
(7) MEGAN LAWEY FAM LY MEM OF FORMER KEY 73,787. | EMPLOYEE X
(8) LI NDA ORKIN LEWN, M FAM LY MEM OF OFFI CER 91, 803. | EMPLOYEE X
(9) DEBORAH LONG FAM LY MEM OF FORMER OFFI 98, 766. | EMPLOYEE X
FAM LY MEM OF KEY EMPLOYE 108, 227. | EMPLOYEE X

10 JENNI FER MATHEWS
Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).
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Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017 Page 2

@I\ Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship between (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction (e) sharing of
interested person and the transaction organization's
organization revenues?
Yes | No
(l) DEBBI E KI NG M LLER FAM LY MEM OF OFFI CER 43, 882. | EMPLOYEE X
(2) ANN SENCER FAM LY MEM OF OFFI CER 113, 294. | EMPLOYEE X
(3) KI MBERLY WAGNER FAM LY MEM OF FORMER OFFI 26, 124. | EMPLOYEE X
(4) MANDL & CO LLC BUSI NESS OMNED- FORMVER OFF 252, 618. | CONSULTI NG SERVI CES X
(5) KATHLEEN STEPHENS FAM LY MEM OF KEY EMPLOYE 89, 494. | EMPLOYEE X
(6) SHERI T. LATHAM FAM LY MEM OF TRUSTEE 12, 328. | EMPLOYEE X
(7) RUTH L. PAPPAS FAM LY MEM OF KEY EMPLOYE 62, 587. | EMPLOYEE X
(8)
(9)

10
w Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see instructions).

JSA
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SCHEDULE M
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Noncash Contributions

P Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, lines 29 or 30.
» Attach to Form 990.
» Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for the latest information.

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public
Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY
Types of Property

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

@

(b)

c
Noncash contribution

(d)

Check if Number of contributions or Method of determining
. . ] amounts reported on -
applicable items contributed Form 990, Part VIII, line 1g noncash contribution amounts
1 Art-Worksofart, . ........ X 11. 574, 673. |APPRAI SED
2 Art - Historical treasures . . . . ..
3 Art- Fractional interests . . . . ..
4 Books and publications . ... .. X 1,348, 938. |APPRAI SED
5 Clothing and household
goods. . . ... e e X 50, 760. |MARKET VALUE
6 Cars and othervehicles . . .. ..
7 Boatsandplanes. . ........
8 Intellectual property . . . ... ..
9 Securities - Publicly traded. . . . . X 255. 3,312, 991. |MARKET QUOTATI ON
10 Securities - Closely held stock . . .
11 Securities - Partnership, LLC,
ortrustinterests . . .. ......
12 Securities - Miscellaneous. . . . .
13 Qualified conservation
contribution - Historic
structures. . . .. .........
14 Qualified conservation
contribution - Other . . ... ...
15 Real estate - Residential , . . . . .
16 Real estate - Commercial . . . ..
17 Realestate-Other, .. ... ...
18 Collectibles. . . .. ... ..... X 1. 6, 500. |APPRAI SED
19 Foodinventory. .. ........
20 Drugs and medical supplies . . . . X 2. 17,428. |MARKET VALUE
21 Taxidermy ., . ..........
22 Historical artifacts . . . ... ... X 24. 5, 150, 570. |APPRAI SED
23 Scientific specimens., . . ... ..
24  Archeological artifacts. . . . ...
25 Other »( EVENT EXPENSES ) X 41. 17,892. |MARKET VALUE
26 Other »( TRAVEL ) X 9. 6, 166. |MARKET VALUE
27 Other p( )
28 Other »( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions for
which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement . . . . . ... .. 29 19.
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part |, lines 1 through
28, that it must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which isn't required
to be used for exempt purposes for the entire holding period?. . . . . . . . . . ¢ i i i i i i it e e e e e e 30a X
b If "Yes," describe the arrangement in Part Il.
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any nonstandard
Fo7o a1 {10011 31 X
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
Fo7o a1 {10011 32a| X
b If "Yes," describe in Part Il.
33 If the organization didn't report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) is checked,

describe in Part Il.

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule M (Form 990) (2017) Page 2
Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part |, lines 30b, 32b, and 33, and whether

the organization is reporting in Part |, column (b), the number of contributions, the number of items received,
or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

FORM 990, SCHEDULE M PART |, LINE 32B

USE OF THI RD PARTI ES

EMORY UNI VERSI TY USES REAL ESTATE BROKERS TO ASSI ST W TH SALES OF REAL
PROPERTY ORI G NALLY RECEI VED AS CHARI TABLE CONTRI BUTI ONS. SALES OF STOCK
AND PARTNERSHI P | NTERESTS G FTED TO THE UNI VERSI TY ARE MANAGED BY

FI NANCI AL AGENTS.

JSA Schedule M (Form 990) (2017)
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SCHEDULE O Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ OMB No. 1545-0047

(Form 990 or 990-E2) Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on 2@ 1 7
Form 990 or 990-EZ or to provide any additional information.

P Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ. Open to Public
Department of the Treasury ) .
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number
EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
FORM 990, PART II1l, LINE 1

M SSI ON STATEMENT EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S M SSION IS TO CREATE, PRESERVE,
TEACH, AND APPLY KNOWALEDGE | N THE SERVI CE OF HUVANI TY.

TO FULFILL THIS M SSION, THE UNI VERSI TY SUPPORTS THE FULL RANGE OF
SCHOLARSHI P, FROM UNDERGRADUATE TO ADVANCED GRADUATE AND PROFESSI ONAL

| NSTRUCTI ON, AND FROM BASI C RESEARCH TO I TS APPLI CATI ON I N PUBLI C

SERVI CE. WHI LE BEI NG A COVPREHENSI VE RESEARCH UNI VERSI TY, EMORY LIM TS

| TS ACADEM C SCOPE TO THOSE FI ELDS IN WHI CH, BY VIRTUE OF I TS H STORY AND
LOCATION, I T CAN EXCEL. HENCE | TS ACADEM C PROGRAMS FOCUS ON THE ARTS AND
SCI ENCES, BUSI NESS, LAW THECLOGY, AND THE HEALTH PROFESSI ONS. THESE

DI SCI PLI NES ARE UNI FI ED BY THEI R DEVOTI ON TO LI BERAL LEARNI NG BY
COOPERATI VE | NTERDI SCI PLI NARY PROGRAMS; AND BY THE COMMON PURSUI T OF

| NTELLECTUAL DI STI NCTI ON.

THE EMORY COMMUNI TY IS OPEN TO ALL WHO MEET | TS H GH STANDARDS OF

I NTELLI GENCE, COWPETENCE, AND | NTEGRITY. |IT WELCOMES A DI VERSI TY OF

ETHNI C, CULTURAL, SOCI CECONOM C, RELI G QUS, NATI ONAL, AND | NTERNATI ONAL
BACKGROUNDS, BELI EVI NG THAT THE | NTELLECTUAL AND SOCI AL ENERGY THAT
RESULTS FROM SUCH DI VERSI TY IS A PRI MARY ASSET OF THE UNI VERSI TY.

I N KEEPI NG W TH THE DEMAND THAT TEACHI NG, LEARNI NG, RESEARCH, AND SERVI CE
BE MEASURED BY HI GH STANDARDS OF | NTEGRI TY AND EXCELLENCE, AND BELI EVI NG
THAT EACH PERSON AND EVERY LEVEL OF SCHOLARLY ACTI VI TY SHOULD BE VALUED

ON ITS OAON MERI TS, THE UNI VERSI TY Al M5 TO | MBUE SCHOLARSHI P AT EMORY W TH

* A COVWM TMENT TO HUVANE TEACHI NG AND MENTORSHI P AND A RESPECTFUL

For Privacy Act and Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) (2017)
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Page 2

Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

I NTERACTI ON AMONG FACULTY, STUDENTS, AND STAFF,;

* OPEN DI SCI PLI NARY BOUNDARI ES THAT ENCOURAGE | NTEGRATI VE TEACHI NG,
RESEARCH, AND SCHOLARSHI P;

* A COW TMENT TO USE KNOALEDGE TO | MPROVE HUMAN WELL- BEI NG AND

* A GLOBAL PERSPECTI VE ON THE HUMAN CONDI TI ON. THE UNI VERSI TY, FOUNDED BY
THE METHODI ST EPI SCOPAL CHURCH, CHERI SHES | TS H STORI CAL AFFI LI ATION W TH
THE UNI TED METHODI ST CHURCH. WHI LE EMORY' S PROGRAMS ARE TODAY ENTI RELY
NONSECTARI AN ( EXCEPT FOR THOSE AT THE CANDLER SCHOOL OF THEOLOGY), THE
UNI VERSI TY HAS DERI VED FROM THI S HERI TAGE THE CONVI CTI ON THAT EDUCATI ON
CAN BE A STRONG MORAL FORCE | N BOTH SOCI ETY AND THE LIVES OF I TS

I NDI VI DUAL MEMBERS.

FORM 990, PART II1, LINE 4
PROGRAM SERVI CE ACCOVPLI SHVENTS

4A EMORY UNI VERSI TY: A MAJOR RESEARCH UNI VERSI TY THAT IS PRI VATELY
ENDOWNED, COEDUCATI ONAL AND NOT- FOR-PROFIT. WTH ITS NI NE COLLEGES AND
SCHOOLS, THE UNI VERSI TY ATTRACTS TOP QUALI TY STUDENTS FROM ACROSS THE
NATI ON AND ABROAD, AND HAS A CURRENT TOTAL ENROLLMENT OF APPROXI MATELY
14, 400 STUDENTS. THE UNIVERSITY IS A MEMBER OF THE ASSOCI ATI ON OF

AMERI CAN UNI VERSI TIES. IN U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPCRT' S ANNUAL RANKI NG OF
"AMERI CA' S BEST COLLEGES" EMORY RANKED 21ST AMONG NATI ONAL UNI VERSI Tl ES

IN 2018 AND HAS CONSI STENTLY BEEN | NCLUDED IN I TS TOP 25 LI ST SI NCE 1992.

EMORY ALSO RANKS I N THE TOP 25 SCHOCOLS FOR "BEST VALUE SCHOOLS'. I N
ADDI TI ON, EMORY RANKED 13TH I N KIPLI NGER S "100 BEST COLLECGE VALUES' AND

WAS NAMED A "BEST VALUE COLLEGE" BY THE PRI NCETON REVI EW THE UNI VERSI TY

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

I NCLUDES ONE OF THE NATI ON' S LEADI NG RESEARCH AND PATI ENT- CARE MEDI CAL
COVPLEXES, THE ROBERT W WOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER.  THE CENTER

I NCLUDES THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY SCHOOL OF MEDI CI NE, NELL HODGSON WOODRUFF
SCHOOL OF NURSI NG, ROLLINS SCHOCOL OF PUBLI C HEALTH, AND YERKES NATI ONAL
PRI MATE RESEARCH CENTER. AMONG THE MANY OTHER CENTERS FOR SPECI ALl ZED
RESEARCH AND STUDY AT EMORY ARE THE W NSHI P CANCER | NSTI TUTE, THE GLOBAL
HEALTH | NSTI TUTE; THE CENTER FOR HEALTH DI SCOVERY AND WELL BEI NG THE
CENTER FOR FACULTY DEVELOPMENT AND EXCELLENCE; THE CENTER FOR Al DS
RESEARCH, THE M CHAEL C. CARLOCS MUSEUM THE CHERRY L. EMERSON CENTER FOR
SCI ENTI FI C COVPUTATI ON;, AND THE CLAUS M HALLE | NSTI TUTE FOR G-OBAL

LEARNI NG,

4B EMORY UN VERSI TY HOSPI TAL:

A TEACHI NG AND RESEARCH FACI LI TY PROVI DI NG TERTI ARY AND QUATERNARY CARE
SERVI CES, PARTI CULARLY CARDI CLOGY, CARDI AC SURGERY, ONCOLOGY,

NEUROSCI ENCES, MULTI PLE ORGAN AND Tl SSUE TRANSPLANTATI ON, ORTHOPAEDI CS,
GERI ATRI CS AND ENDOCRI NOLOGY. | N 2018, EMORY UN VERSI TY HOSPI TAL WAS
RANKED AS THE NUMBER ONE HOSPI TAL | N METRO ATLANTA AND | N THE STATE OF
GEORA A BY U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT FOR THE SEVENTH YEAR IN A RON THE
HOSPI TAL WAS ALSO RECOGNI ZED AS ONE OF THE NATION' S TOP HOSPI TALS BY THE
NATI ONAL RESEARCH CORPCORATI ON'S CONSUMER CHO CE AWARDS | N 2017 AND FOR 18
OF THE PAST 19 YEARS. EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL PROVI DES | NTEGRATED

PATI ENT CARE W TH TEACHI NG AND CLI NI CAL RESEARCH BY PHYSI Cl ANS VWHO ARE
UNI VERSI TY FACULTY AS WELL AS PROVI DES CHARI TY CARE IN THE FORM OF

I NDI GENT CARE TO PATI ENTS W TH NO HEALTH | NSURANCE AND CATASTROPHI C CARE

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

TO PATI ENTS WHOSE MEDI CAL BI LLS ARE SO LARGE THAT PAYI NG THEM WOULD BE
PERVMANENTLY LI FE- SHATTERI NG EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL PHYSI Cl ANS

PROVI DED $27.4 M LLION I N CHARI TY CARE DURI NG THE CURRENT FI SCAL YEAR
THE HOSPI TAL HAS 643 LI CENSED BEDS, OF WHI CH 120 ARE LOCATED AT EMORY

UNI VERSI TY ORTHOPAEDI C AND SPI NE HOSPI TAL, AND MORE THAN 1, 300 LI CENSED
PHYSI CI ANS ON STAFF. THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY ORTHOPAEDI C AND SPI NE HOSPI TAL
HAS EARNED THE HI GHEST PATI ENT SATI SFACTI ON RANKI NGS | N THE COUNTRY BASED
ON RETURNED SURVEYS FROM PATI ENTS THAT HAVE BEEN NATI ONALLY BENCHVARKED
BY PRESS GANEY. THE CURRENT COVMUNI TY BENEFI TS REPORT | S PUBLI SHED AT

HTTP: / / WHSC. EMORY. EDU/ PUBLI CATI ONS/ COMMUNI TY- BENEFI TS- 2018/ | NDEX. HTML.

4C EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMN:

SINCE 1908, AN ATLANTA TEACHI NG HOSPI TAL OFFERI NG A MYRI AD COF PATI ENT
CARE, EDUCATI ON AND RESEARCH I NI TI ATI VES. EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL

M DTOMN WAS RANKED THE SEVENTH BEST HOSPI TAL | N ATLANTA, GEORG A I N 2018
BY U.S. NEWS AND WORLD REPORT AND TENTH I N THE STATE OF GECRG A. THE
HOSPI TAL PROVI DES ADVANCED SERVI CES SUCH AS CARDI CLOGY, ONCOLOGY AND
RADI OLOGY AS WELL AS MORE TRADI TI ONAL SERVI CES SUCH AS OBSTETRI CS W TH
BOTH ROUTI NE AND | NTENSI VE CARE NURSERI ES AS WELL AS PROVI DES CHARI TY
CARE I N THE FORM CF | NDI GENT CARE TO PATI ENTS W TH NO HEALTH | NSURANCE
AND CATASTROPHI C CARE TO PATI ENTS WHOSE MEDI CAL BI LLS ARE SO LARGE THAT
PAYI NG THEM WOULD BE PERMANENTLY LI FE- SHATTERI NG. EMORY UNI VERSI TY

HOSPI TAL M DTOWN PHYSI Cl ANS PROVI DED $19 M LLI ON I N CHARI TY CARE DURI NG
THE CURRENT FI SCAL YEAR. EMORY UNI VERSI TY HOSPI TAL M DTOMN HAS 505

LI CENSED BEDS AND MORE THAN 1, 200 LI CENSED PHYSI Cl ANS ON STAFF. THE

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
7E1228 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019 1:10:27 PM V 17-7.10 PAGE 149
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

CURRENT COVMUNI TY BENEFI TS REPORT | S PUBLI SHED AT

HTTP: / / WHSC. EMORY. EDU/ PUBLI CATI ONS/ COMMUNI TY- BENEFI TS- 2018/ | NDEX. HTML.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 2
FAM LY OR BUSI NESS RELATI ONSHI PS (1) TRUSTEES JOHN MORGAN AND ROBERT C.

GODDARD HAVE A BUSI NESS RELATI ONSHI P. (2) TRUSTEES MUHTAR KENT AND JAVI ER

GO ZUETA HAVE A BUSI NESS RELATI ONSHI P.

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION 2, LINE 11

PROCESS USED TO REVI EW FORM 990

THE FORM 990 | S PREPARED AND REVI EVED BY THE ORGANI ZATI ON' S MANAGEMENT
AND REVI EWNED BY AN | NDEPENDENT THI RD PARTY ACCOUNTING FIRM  PRIOR TO

FI NALI ZATI ON OF THE RETURN, MANAGEMENT PROVI DED ACCESS TO A FI NAL DRAFT
OF THE FORM 990 TO ALL MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES AND GAVE THEM AN
OPPORTUNI TY TO MAKE COMMVENTS. MANAGEMENT UPDATED THE FORM 990 FOR ALL
COMMENTS RECEI VED AND PROVI DED THE FI NAL VERSI ON OF THE FORM 990 TO ALL

MEMBERS OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES PRI OR TO FI LI NG

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 12C
CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST POLI CY

EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST POLI CY REQUI RES TRUSTEES,

OFFI CERS AND OTHER DECI SI ON MAKERS TO DI SCLOSE PARTI Cl PATI ON I N
ACTIVITIES OR Cl RCUMSTANCES THAT NMAY PRESENT A CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST ON AN
ANNUAL BASIS OR I F AT ANY TI ME SUCH | NDI VI DUAL BECOVES AWARE OF

Cl RCUMSTANCES THAT MAY PRESENT A CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST. THESE DI SCLOSURES

BY TRUSTEES ARE REVI EWED BY THE EXECUTI VE COVPENSATI ON AND TRUSTEES

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

CONFLI CT OF I NTEREST COW TTEE OF THE UNI VERSI TY BOARD OF TRUSTEES

(" CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST COWM TTEE"), AS NECESSARY. |F THE CONFLICT OF

I NTEREST COWM TTEE DETERM NES THAT A CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST EXI STS, THE

I NDI VI DUAL W TH THE CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST MAY MAKE A PRESENTATI ON TO THE
APPLI CABLE COW TTEE, BUT AFTER SUCH PRESENTATI ON, THE | NDI VI DUAL MJST
LEAVE THE MEETI NG DURI NG THE DI SCUSSI ON OF, AND THE VOTE ON, THE
TRANSACTI ON OR ARRANGEMENT THAT RESULTED | N THE CONFLI CT OF | NTEREST.
DURI NG THE FI SCAL YEAR NONE OF THE TRUSTEES W TH RELATED BUSI NESS

| NTERESTS VOTED ON BUSI NESS DECI SI ONS | NVOLVI NG SUCH COVPANI ES.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 15
DETERM NATI ON OF COVPENSATI ON

EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S EXECUTI VE COVPENSATI ON AND TRUSTEES' CONFLI CT OF

| NTEREST COW TTEE OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES, WH CH | S COWOSED OF

NON- EMPLOYEE MEMBERS OF THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY BOARD OF TRUSTEES, ANNUALLY
REVI EW6 MARKET DATA, COLLECTED AND REPORTED BY | NDEPENDENT CONSULTI NG

FI RM5, FROM COVPARABLE | NSTI TUTI ONS FOR EACH PGOsSI TI ON | DENTI FI ED AS A

" DI SQUALI FI ED PERSON' FOR PURPOSES OF | NTERMEDI ATE SANCTI ONS UNDER | RS
REGULATI ONS. THE COWM TTEE DI SCUSSES THE PROPOSED COVPENSATI ON FOR EACH
SUCH | NDI VI DUAL I N THE CONTEXT OF THE MARKET DATA AND THE | NDI VI DUAL' S
PERFORVMANCE AND CONTRI BUTI ON TO EMORY, AND | T MAKES A DECI SI ON REGARDI NG
THE APPROPRI ATENESS OF COVPENSATI ON AND ANY COVPENSATI ON | NCREASE. THE
DI SCUSSI ONS ARE DOCUMENTED IN THE COWM TTEE' S M NUTES BY A REPRESENTATI VE

OF THE OFFI CE OF THE GENERAL COUNSEL.

FORM 990, PART VI, LINE 19

AVAI LABI LI TY OF DOCUMENTS TO THE PUBLI C

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017

Page 2

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

EMORY UNI VERSI TY MAKES | TS GOVERNI NG DOCUMENTS AND | TS FI NANCI AL

STATEMENTS AVAI LABLE TO THE PUBLIC VI A | TS WEBSI TE.

FORM 990, PART XI, LINE 9
RECONCI LI ATI ON OF NET ASSETS:

ADJUSTMENT TO ANNUI TI ES PAYABLE

CHANGE I N FAI R VALUE OF DERI VATI VE | NSTRUVENTS

ADJUSTMENT TO PERPETUAL FUND | NCOME

CUMULATI VE EFFECT OF CHANGE | N ACCOUNTI NG

RECLASSI FI CATI ON OF NET ASSETS

839, 835
59, 172, 353
26, 880, 272
13, 953, 303

(124, 191)

TRANSFER OF NET ASSETS TO CONSOLI DATED AFFI LI ATES 110, 210, 972

GAAP ADJUSTMENTS

TOTAL OTHER CHANGES | N NET ASSETS

FORM 990, PART V, LINE 4B

FOREI GN BANK ACCOUNT REPORTI NG
ARGENTI NA

BRAZI L

CAYMAN

CHI LE

CHI NA

CCOLUMBI A

CZECH REPUBLI C

DENMARK

ETH OPI A

GREECE

4, 550, 010

215, 482, 554

JSA
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

HUNGARY

I NDI A
| NDONESI A
| RELAND
| SRAEL
JAPAN
MALAYSI A
MEXI CO
NI GERI A
PERU
POLAND
REPUBLI C OF KOREA
SAUDI ARABI A
SLOVAKI A
SPAI'N
TAI WAN
TURKEY

UNI TED KI NGDOM

FORM 990, PART |, QUESTION 5 AND PART V, QUESTI ON 2A
NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES:

THE EMORY CLINIC, INC. ("TEC') (EIN: 58-2030692) AND EMORY CHI LDREN S
CENTER, INC. ("ECC') (EIN:. 58-2298500) HAVE A COMMON PAYMASTER

RELATI ONSH P FOR PAYROLL PURPOSES W TH EMORY UNI VERSI TY. THE SALARI ES OF
TEC S AND ECC S EMPLOYEES ARE PAI D BY EMORY UNI VERSI TY, REPORTED ON ENORY

UNI VERSI TY' S FORMS 941, AND REI MBURSED BY TEC AND ECC. THEREFCORE, THESE

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

EMPLOYEES ARE REPORTED ON EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S FORM 990.

THE STAFF MEMBERS OF EMORY MEDI CAL CARE FOUNDATI ON, INC. ("EMCF') (EIN
58-1537752) AND EMORY | NNOVATIONS, INC. ("EI") (EIN. 45-5372942) ARE
EMPLOYEES OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY. THE SALARIES OF EMCF AND EI' S EMPLOYEES
ARE PAI D BY EMORY UNI VERSI TY, REPORTED ON EMCRY UNI VERSI TY' S FORMS 941,
AND REI MBURSED BY EMCF AND EI RESPECTI VELY. THEREFORE, THESE EMPLOYEES

ARE REPORTED ON EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S FORM 990.

FORM 990, PART 1V, LINE 12A & B AND PART XII, LINE 2B
| NDEPENDENT AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS

A COPY OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY' S AUGUST 31, 2018 AUDI TED FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS
'S ATTACHED TO THI S RETURN. THE FOLLOW NG ENTI TI ES | NCLUDED | N THESE

FI NANCI AL STATEMENTS ARE NOT | NCLUDED I N THE EMORY UNI VERSI TY RETURNS BUT
ARE | NCLUDED IN THE EMORY GROUP RETURN - EMORY HEALTHCARE I NC ("EHC'),
THE EMORY CLINIC INC ("TEC'), WESLEY WOODS CENTER OF EMORY UNI VERSI TY
("WAC'), EMORY MEDI CAL CARE FOUNDATI ON | NC("EMCF"), EMORY | NNOVATI ONS
INC("El"), EMORY-SAINT JOSEPH S INC ("ESJ"), SAINT JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF

ATLANTA I NC ("SJHA"), AND EMORY CHI LDREN S CENTER | NC ("ECC").

ATTACHVENT 1

990, PART VII- COVPENSATION OF THE FI VE H GHEST PAI D | ND. CONTRACTORS

NAME AND ADDRESS DESCRI PTI ON OF SERVI CES COVPENSATI ON

MCCARTHY BUI LDI NG COVPANI ES | NC CONSTRUCTI ON 68, 312, 960.
2859 PACES FERRY ROAD
ATLANTA, GA 30339

BON APPETI T MANAGEMENT CO FOOD SERVI CES 10, 041, 192.
PO BOX 50196
LOS ANGELES, CA 90074

GAY CONSTRUCTI ON COVPANY CONSTRUCTI ON 12, 785, 217.

JSA Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2017
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Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
ATTACHVENT 1 (CONT' D)

990, PART VII- COVPENSATI ON CF THE FI VE HI GHEST PAI D | ND. CONTRACTORS

NAME AND ADDRESS DESCRI PTI ON OF SERVI CES COVPENSATI ON

2907 LOG CABI N DRI VE
SMYRNA, GA 30080

FIRST TRANSI T, | NC SHUTTLE MAI NTENANCE 7,977, 377.
22192 NETWORK PLACE
CH CAGO, IL 60673

HOLDER CONSTRUCTI ON COVPANY CONSTRUCTI ON 13, 196, 939.
3333 RI VERWOOD PARKWAY SUI TE 400
ATLANTA, GA 30339

ATTACHVENT 2
FORM 990, PART VII11 - EXCLUDED CONTRI BUTI ONS
DESCRI PTI ON AMOUNT
W NSHI P GALA 942, 259.
W NSHI P 5K 862, 218.
OTHER EVENTS (5) 878, 677.
TOTAL 2,683, 154.

ATTACHMVENT 3
FORM 990, PART VII1 - FUNDRAI SI NG EVENTS

GROSS Dl RECT NET

DESCRI PTI ON I NCOMVE EXPENSES | NCOMVE
W NSHI P GALA 1,173, 202. 226, 469. 946, 733.
W NSHI P 5K 1, 005, 123. 113, 406. 891, 717.
OTHER EVENTS (5) 1, 039, 137. 316, 796. 722, 341.
TOTALS 3,217, 462. 656, 671. 2,560, 791.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

58- 0566256

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

» Attach to Form 990.

P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public

Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(CY] (b) () (d) (e) ®
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Primary activity Lg?%rg%mnitéfuﬁt;t)e Total income End-of-year assets Directe(r:]%rtl)t’rolling
(1) GO ZUETA BUSI NESS SCHOOL STUDENT | NVEST 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 517, 219. 2,726,816. |[EMORY UN VER
(2) GO ZUETA BUSI NESS SCHOOL REAL ESTATE 26-1718943
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 14, 041. 220, 765. |EMORY UNI VER
(3) EMORY UNI VERSI TY STUDENT HEALTH COUNSEL 27-1119602
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 HEALTHCARE GA 3, 801. 157, 364. |EMORY UNI VER
(4) ROSE ACQUI SI TIONS LLC 45- 4889158
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 5, 702, 866. 436, 404. |EMORY UNI VER
(5) EMORY | NTEGRATED HEALTH SERVI CES LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 HEALTH CLAI M5 |GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(6) EUEP LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 REAL ESTATE GA -48900426. | 53, 528, 015. |EMORY UNI VER

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had
one or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

@ (b) ©) (d) (e) ® )
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state | Exempt Code section | Public charity status Direct controlling Section 512(b)(13)
. . . . controlled
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity entity?
Yes No
1) EVORY VEDI CAL CARE FOUNDATT ON TNC 58- 1537752
1648 PTERCE DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 MED MGMT & 501(C) (3) 10 N A X
2 EMORY HEALTHCARE | NC 58-2137993
201 DOWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 VED NMGMT A 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X
(3) THE EMORY CLINIC INC 58-2030692
1365 CLTFTON ROAD ATLANTA, GA 30322 HEAL THCARE GA 501(Q) (3) |10 NA X
(a) EMORY VEDI CAL LABORATORI ES TNC 01- 0553460
1384 CLIFTON ROAD NE ATLANTA, - GA 30322 MD CARE PRACT |GA 501(C) (3) 3 EMORY HEALTH X
(5) VESLEY WOODS CENTER OF ENORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 1529366
1821 CLIFTCN ROAD ATLANTA, - GA 30322 HEAL THCARE GA 501(C) (3) 3 EMORY HEALTH X
(6) EMORY CHI LDREN S CENTER I NC 58- 2298500
201 DOMEN DRIVE ATLANTA, - GA 30322 HEAL THCARE GA 501(C) (3) 10 EMORY HEALTH X
) LUTHER C FI SCHER FOUNDATI ON 58- 1052508
550 PEACHTREE ST ATLANTA, GA 30308 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY

SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.

> Attach to Form 990.
P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information.

58- 0566256

| OMB No. 1545-0047

2017

Open to Public

Inspection

Name of the organization

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

Employer identification number

58- 0566256

Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(CY] (b) () (d) (e) ®
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity Primary activity Lgrgfétl)lrgi%mnit(i;ifuﬁt;t)e Total income End-of-year assets Directe(r:]%rtl)t’rolling
(1) LOTUS ACQUI SITI ONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(2) POPPY ACQUI SI TIONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(3) ORCHI D ACQUI SITIONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(4) MAGNOLI A ACQUI SITIONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(5) CLOVER ACQUI SITIONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER
(6) LAVENDER ACQUI SI TIONS LLC 58- 0566256
201 DOWVAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. | EMORY UNI VER

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had
one or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

@) (b) ©) (d) (e) ) @
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state | Exempt Code section | Public charity status Direct controlling Section 512(b)(13)
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity c%r:]ttrigllj?ed
Yes No
1) EMORY UNIV HOSPI TAL M DTOWN AUXI LT ARY 58- 6035386
550 PEACHTREE ST ATLANTA, GA 30308 SUPPORT GA 501(C)(3) |10 N A X
) EMORY UNI VERSI TY POST- RETT REVMENT BENEFI T 58- 2087692
1599 CLTFTON ROAD NE ATLANTA, GA 30322 VEBA GA 501(C) (9) N A N A X
3) EMORY HEALTHCARE POST- RETT REMENT BENEFI T 90- 0180674
1440 CLI FTON ROAD NE ATLANTA, GA 30322 VEBA GA 501(C) (9) N A EMORY HEALTH X
@) EMORY | NNOVATT ONS T NC 45-5372942
201 DOWWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 RESEARCH GA 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X
5y ENORY/ SATNT JCSEPH S TNC 45-2721833
1440 CLIFTON RD NE SUTIE 400 ATLANTA, GA 30322 HEAL THCARE GA 501(C) (3) 4 EMORY HEALTH| X
6y SATNT JOSEPH S HOSPT TAL OF ATLANTA TNC 58- 0566257
5673 P TREE DUNVOODY RD ATLANTA, GA 30342 HOSPI TAL GA 501(C) (3) 3 EMORY/ ST JOS| X
@) EMORY HEALTHCARE TNC RETT REVMENT PLAN 02- 0689035
1440 CLI FTON ROAD NE ATLANTA, GA 30322 DB PLAN GA 501(C) (9) N A EMORY HEALTH X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

JSA
7E1307 1.000

5380QU 1985 7/11/2019

1:

10:27 PM V 17-7.10

Schedu

le R (Form 990) 2017

PAGE 157



EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
H H H OMB No. 1545-0047
(SF%'?E,DQJQLOE)R Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships |
» Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37. 2@17
Department of the Treasun >AttaCh to Form 990. Open to Public
Int:rnal Revenue Service y P Go to www.irs.gov/Form990 for instructions and the latest information. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

EMORY UNI VERSI TY

58- 0566256

Identification of Disregarded Entities. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

@
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity

Primary activity

(b)

()

Legal domicile (state

d (€) ®

Total income End-of-year assets Direct controlling

or foreign country) entity

(1) JASM NE ACQUI SI TIONS LLC 58- 0566256

201 DOWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 I NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. |[EMORY UNI VER
(2) VIOLET ACQUI SITIONS LLC 58- 0566256

201 DOWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 I NVESTMENTS GA 0. 0. |[EMORY UNI VER
(3) EAC SERVI CES LLC 82- 4732084

1551 SHOUP CCOURT ATLANTA, GA 30322 EDUCATI ON GA 1, 705, 004. 79, 732. |EMORY UN VER
(4)

©)]

(6)

Identification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, because it had
one or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

(@) (b) ©) (d) (e) () )
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile (state | Exempt Code section | Public charity status Direct controlling Section 512(b)(13)
( i ) . controlled
or foreign country) (if section 501(c)(3)) entity entity?
Yes No
1) LETTTE PATE EVANS FOUNDATION, TNC. 23-7282939
191 PEACHTREE ST NE, STE 3540 ATLANTA, GA 30303 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12.D N A X
5y THE FALLE FOUNDATT GN 58-6201529
1201 W PEACHTREE ST NO 42210 ATLANTA, GA 30300 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X
3) THE ONNI E MAE SPRUILL FOUNDATT ON, TNC. 58- 2050054
1548 MOUNT VERNON ROAD ATLANTA, GA 30338 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12.D N A X
@) SUSAN H & WLBUR H_NARCY TRUST 59- 1932547
P.O BOX 1328 WNTER PARK, FL 32790 SUPPORTI NG OR | FL 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X
5) M L SIVPSON FOUNDATT ON TRUST 58- 6418299
1862 | NDEPENDENCE SQUARE ATLANTA, GA 30338 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X
6 ROBERT WVOODRUFF HEALTH SCI ENCES CENTER 58- 2229271
191 PEACHTREE ST NE, STE 3540 ATLANTA, GA 30303 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501( C) ( 3) 12. B N A X
-y EMORY CHI LDREN' S PEDI ATRI C TNSTT TUTE TRC 58- 1692698
2015 UPPER GATE DRI VE NE ATLANTA, GA 30322 SUPPORTI NG OR | GA 501(C) (3) 12. A N A X

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule R (Form 990) 2017 Page 2
Part Il Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34,
because it had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.
@ (b) ©) (d) (e). ® @ (h) i @ (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity Legal Direct controlling _ Predominant Share of total Share of end-of- | pisproportionate Code V - UBI General or | Percentage
related organization domicile entity 'ncgmzlgt‘zgted* income year assets alocatiors? | @mount in box 20 | managing | ownership
(state or excluded from of Schedule K-1 partner?
foreign tax under (Form 1065)
country) sections 512 - 514)
Yes| No Yes| No
(1) FOREST HILL STRATEG C VALUE FU
100 MORGAN KEEGAN DR # 430 LI T | | NVESTMENTS DE FOREST HI LL CAP | EXCLUDED 13, 604, 565. 149, 011, 894. X 0. X 67.2900
(2) ES REHABI LI TATI ON LLC 46- 38082
201 DOAWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 3 | HEALTHCARE GA EMORY HEALTH EXCLUDED 2,614, 643. 9, 253, 558. X 0. X 51. 0000
(3) CALMMTER REAL ESTATE CREDIT F
11755 WLSH RE BLVD STE 1400 L | | NVESTMENTS DE CALMMTER REAL | EXCLUDED 1,921, 974. 19, 472, 761. X 0. X 88. 0000
(4) TENZING GLOBAL | NVESTORS 36-47
90 NEW MONTGOMERY ST STE 650 S | | NVESTMENTS DE TENZI NG GLOBAL || NVESTMENT 13, 978, 009. 55,176, 086. X 0. X 49. 6500
(5) GRANITE STATE CAPI TAL 81-39954
529 FIFTH AVE 7TH FLOOR NEW YO | | NVESTMVENTS DE GRANI TE MASTER || NVESTMENT 1, 884, 791. 3,379, 122. X 0. X 37.9200
(6) THL CREDIT DI RECT LENDING CO N
100 FEDERAL ST 31ST FLOOR BOST | | NVESTMENTS DE THL CREDIT DIR |1 NVESTMENT 616, 633. 13, 781, 915. X 0. X 99. 9800
(N

Part IV Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV,
line 34, because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(@) (b) ©) (d) (e) ® @ (h) )
Name, address, and EIN of related organization Primary activity Legal domicile | Direct controlling Type of entity Share of total Share of Percentage| Section
(state or foreign| entity (C corp, S corp, or trust) income end-of-year assets |ownership ili(ttrjgl(lje?i)
country) entity?
Yes|No
(1) CLIFTON CASUALTY | NSURANCE COVPANY LTD 84- 0825711
PO BOX 1159, 878 WEST BAY RD GRAND CAYMAN, CAYMAN | SLANDS CAPTI VE | NSURANCE al EMORY HEALTH C CORP -2,746,521. 213, 368, 910. [100. 0000| X
(2) NORTHLAKE REG ONAL PHYSI CI ANS CENTER 58- 1850529
2850 PACES FERRY ROAD SUTIE 1140 ATLANTA, GA 30339 MEDI CAL BLDG GA N A C CORP 16, 486. 284, 449. | 93.0000| X
(3) CHARI TABLE REMAI NER TRUSTS (41)
201 DOWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 CHARI TABLE TR GA N A TRUST
(4) POOLED | NCOVE FUND (1)
201 DOWAN DRI VE ATLANTA, GA 30322 | NCOVE FUND GA N A TRUST
(5) PTAM DYNAM C FI XED | NCOVE FUND ( CAYMAN)
WEST BAY RD PO BOX 897 GRAND CAYMAN, CJ KY1-1103 | NVESTMENTS al PT ASSET MGNT |C CORP - 7,324, 255. 79, 821,932. | 65.6800| X
(6) US REAL ESTATE CREDI T 98- 1278458
11755 WLSH RE BLVE STE 1425 LOS ANGELES, CA 90025 | NVESTMENTS a US RE CREDIT MA|C CORP 2, 449, 840. 1,449, 486. | 31. 6000 X
(7) OZ EUROPE OVERSEAS FUND ||
GARDENI A CT SUI TE 3307 CAYMAN BAY, GRAND CAYMAN CJ KY1 11 | NVESTMENTS CcJ OZ MANAGEMENT |C CORP 6, 005, 188. 70, 745,899. | 65.9750| X
JSA Schedule R (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule R (Form 990) 2017 Page 3
Transactions With Related Organizations. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.
Note: Complete line 1 if any entity is listed in Parts Il, lll, or IV of this schedule. Yes| No
1 During the tax year, did the organization engage in any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?
a Receipt of (i) interest, (ii) annuities, (iii) royalties, or (iv) rent from a controlled entity, . . . . . . . . . . . . . i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e la X
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e 1| X
¢ Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s), . . . . . . . i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e 1c X
d Loans or loan guarantees to or forrelated organization(s) . . . . . . . . L L L i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1d X
e Loans or loan guarantees by related organization(s) , . . . . . . . . . . o i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e le X
f Dividends from related organization(S). . . . . . . . . v it e e e e e e e e e e e if
g Sale of assets torelated organization(s). . . . . . . o . i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1g X
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . . i i i i i i i ittt ottt e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ih X
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s). . . . . . . . . i L L i i i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1i X
j Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s). . . . . . . . . o o i i it i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1j X
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) . . . . . & v v v v i v i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1k X
| Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) . . . . . . . . vt v i v i i it e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ] X
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s). . . . . . . . . v v i it it e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1m X
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets withrelated organization(s) . . . . . . . . vt v i i i i i i i i s e e e e e e e e e e e in| X
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s). . . . . . . . . . i 0 i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 10| X
p Reimbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses. . . . . v o v i i i i L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1p X
g Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) forexpenses . . . . . . o i o L L L e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s 1q X
r Other transfer of cash or property to related organization(s) . . . . . . . . @ . i o i i i i i e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ir | X
s Other transfer of cash or property from related organization(s). . . . . . i vt v i i i i i e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e ee e eeeeee e 1s | X
2 If the answer to any of the above is "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds.
(@) (b) ©) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining
type (a-s) amount involved
(1) THE EMORY CLINC, |NC S 7,912, 503. FW
(2) EMORY HEALTHCARE, | NC S 101, 251, 6409. FW
(3) EMORY CHI LDREN S PEDI ATRI C | NSTI TUTE R 4,589, 977. FW
(4 EMORY CHI LDREN S PEDI ATRI C | NSTI TUTE B 150, 000. FW
(5) SAINT JOSEPH S HOSPI TAL OF ATLANTA B 17, 755, 208. FW
(6) EMORY/ SAINT JOSEPH S I NC B 15, 046, 911. FW
JSA Schedule R (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256
Schedule R (Form 990) 2017 Page 4

Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.

Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets
or gross revenue) that was not a related organization. See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) () @ (h) [0} (0] (k)
Name, address, and EIN of entity Primary activity Legal domicile Predominant Are all partners Share of Share of Disproportionate Code V - UBI General or | Percentage
(state or foreign income (related, section total income end-of-year allocations? amount in box 20 managing ownership
country) unrelated, excluded 501(c)(3) assets of Schedule K-1 partner?
from tax under organizations? (Form 1065)

sections 512514) [ yas | No Yes | No Yes | No

1)

(2

(3

4

(5)

(6)

@)

(8)

9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15)

(16)

JSA Schedule R (Form 990) 2017
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EMORY UNI VERSI TY 58- 0566256

Schedule R (Form 990) 2017
WAl Supplemental Information
Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R. See instructions.

Page 5

FORM 990, SCHEDULE R, PART V
ALL TRANSFERS TO AND FROM EMORY UNI VERSI TY AND RELATED ORGANI ZATI ONS WERE
CASH TRANSACTI ONS AND THEREFORE THE METHOD USED FOR DETERM NI NG THE

AMOUNT | NVOLVED WAS BASED ON U. S. DOLLARS.
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EMORY UNIVERSITY

Consolidated Financial Statements and
Supplementary Information

August 31, 2018 and 2017

(With Independent Auditors’ Report Thereon)



KPMG LLP

Suite 2000

303 Peachtree Street, N.E.
Atlanta, GA 30308-3210

Independent Auditors’ Report

The Board of Trustees
Emory University:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Emory University and its subsidiaries
(Emory University), which comprise the consolidated statements of financial position as of August 31, 2018 and
2017, the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related
notes to the consolidated financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design, implementation, and
maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion.

Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Emory University and its subsidiaries as of August 31, 2018 and 2017, and the changes

in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ended, in accordance with U.S. generally accepted
accounting principles.



KPMG

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the consolidated financial statements as a
whole. The supplementary information included in schedules 1 through 3 is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the consolidated financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the consolidated financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and
other records used to prepare the consolidated financial statements or to the consolidated financial statements
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to
the consolidated financial statements as a whole.

KPMe LLP

Atlanta, Georgia
January 31, 2019



EMORY UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION
Years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017

(Dollars in thousands)

August 31, 2018 August 31, 2017
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 149,449 $ 51,113
Patient accounts receivable, net 398,706 364,376
Student accounts receivable, net 109,780 57,713
Loans receivable, net 23,138 24,921
Contributions receivable, net 396,127 80,407
Other receivables, net 336,827 246,286
Prepaid expenses, deferred charges and other assets 341,697 310,799
Investments 8,157,678 8,043,880
Interests in perpetual funds held by others 1,311,406 1,244,906
Property and equipment, net 3,219,005 3,102,848

Total assets

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:

$ 14,443,813

$ 13,527,249

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 558,329 532,244
Deferred tuition and other revenue 521,289 431,735
Interest payable 29,391 29,271
Liability for derivative instruments 128,861 188,612
Bonds and notes payable 1,959,897 1,992,454
Accrued liabilities for benefit obligations and professional liabilities 575,741 565,699
Funds held in trust for others 791,841 747,109
Annuities payable 15,704 14,921
Government advances for federal loan programs 18,659 18,721
Asset retirement obligation 65,996 62,984
Total liabilities 4,665,708 4,583,750
Unrestricted net assets:
Net assets controlled by Emory 4,223,320 3,960,429

Net assets related to noncontrolling interests 113,345 96,633

Total unrestricted net assets 4,336,665 4,057,062
Temporarily restricted net assets 3,216,761 2,722,596
Permanently restricted net assets 2,224,679 2,163,841

Total net assets 9,778,105 8,943,499
Total liabilities and net assets $ 14,443,813 $ 13,527,249

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.



EMORY UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017

(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Tuition and fees
Less: scholarship allowances
Net tuition and fees
Endowment spending distribution
Distribution from perpetual funds
Other investment income designated for current operations
Gifts and contributions, net
Grants and contracts
Indirect cost recoveries
Net patient service revenue
Medical services
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Independent operations
Other revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues and other support

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Student financial aid
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and pharmaceuticals
Other operating expenses
Interest on indebtedness
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
NET OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES, NET:

Investment return in excess of spending distribution
for current operations

Change in undistributed income from perpetual funds held by others
Gifts and contributions
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Loss on defeasance of debt
Change in fair value of derivative instruments
Pension and postretirement benefit plans
Other nonoperating items, net
Net assets released from restrictions

Total nonoperating activities, net
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Less change in net assets related to noncontrolling interests
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS CONTROLLED BY EMORY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Temporarily Permanently Total Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted August 31, 2018 August 31, 2017
$ 710,471 - - 710,471 $ 675,179
(276,305) - - (276,305) (253,897)
434,166 - - 434,166 421,282
182,562 - - 182,562 179,696
35,377 - - 35,377 34,873
81,257 - - 81,257 72,622
43,656 12,404 - 56,060 44,550
470,924 - - 470,924 470,375
144,026 - - 144,026 131,012
3,404,004 - - 3,404,004 3,174,419
336,141 - - 336,141 301,404
74,481 - - 74,481 74,464
24,348 - - 24,348 23,097
176,853 - - 176,853 163,133
36,856 (13,149) - 23,707 29,384
5,444,651 (745) - 5,443,906 5,120,311
2,703,393 - - 2,703,393 2,495,653
608,246 - - 608,246 559,474
19,133 - - 19,133 13,159
526,859 - - 526,859 503,309
827,657 - - 827,657 757,407
353,349 - - 353,349 341,749
77,103 - - 77,103 81,476
260,674 - - 260,674 247,302
5,376,414 - - 5,376,414 4,999,529
68,237 (745) - 67,492 120,782
127,810 124,188 (3,316) 248,682 360,113
- - 26,880 26,880 74,558
2,035 381,473 37,431 420,939 72,764
(1,593) - - (1,593) (11,494)
- - - - (8,659)
59,751 - - 59,751 80,123
28,461 28,461 23,017
(3,100) 10,958 (157) 7,701 (4,885)
(1,998) (21,709) - (23,707) (29,384)
211,366 494,910 60,838 767,114 556,153
279,603 494,165 60,838 834,606 676,935
16,712 - - 16,712 15,360
$ 262,891 494,165 60,838 817,894 $ 661,575




EMORY UNIVERSITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
Year Ended August 31, 2017

(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Tuition and fees
Less: scholarship allowances
Net tuition and fees
Endowment spending distribution
Distribution from perpetual funds
Other investment income designated for current operations
Gifts and contributions
Grants and contracts
Indirect cost recoveries
Net patient service revenue
Medical services
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Independent operations
Other revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues and other support

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Student financial aid
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and pharmaceuticals
Other operating expenses
Interest on indebtedness
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
NET OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES, NET:

Investment return in excess of spending distribution
for current operations

Change in undistributed income from perpetual funds held by others

Gifts and contributions

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Loss on defeasance of debt

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Pension and postretirement benefit plans

Other nonoperating items, net

Net assets released from restrictions

Total nonoperating activities, net
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
Less change in net assets related to noncontrolling interests
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS CONTROLLED BY EMORY

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

Temporarily Permanently Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted August 31, 2017
$ 675,179 - - $ 675,179
(253,897) - - (253,897)
421,282 - - 421,282
179,696 - - 179,696
34,873 - - 34,873
72,622 - - 72,622
44,550 - - 44,550
470,375 - - 470,375
131,012 - - 131,012
3,174,419 - - 3,174,419
301,404 - - 301,404
74,464 - - 74,464
23,097 - - 23,097
163,133 - - 163,133
44,477 (15,093) - 29,384
5,135,404 (15,093) - 5,120,311
2,495,653 - - 2,495,653
559,474 559,474
13,159 - - 13,159
503,309 - - 503,309
757,407 - - 757,407
341,749 - - 341,749
81,476 - - 81,476
247,302 - - 247,302
4,999,529 - - 4,999,529
135,875 (15,093) - 120,782
179,573 177,417 3,123 360,113
- - 74,558 74,558
5,964 25,465 41,335 72,764
(11,494) - - (11,494)
(8,659) - - (8,659)
80,123 - - 80,123
23,017 - - 23,017
(7,174) 2,571 (282) (4,885)
41,194 (70,578) - (29,384)
302,544 134,875 118,734 556,153
438,419 119,782 118,734 676,935
15,360 - - 15,360
$ 423,059 119,782 $ 118,734 $ 661,575




EMORY UNIVERSITY

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017
(Dollars in thousands)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets

Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used in operating activities:

Capital contributions from noncontrolling interests
Contributions for endowment and capital projects
Net realized gains on sale of investments
Net unrealized gains on investments
Loss on disposal of property and equipment
Interests in perpetual funds held by others
Loss on defeasance of debt
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for uncollectable accounts
Accretion/amortization of bond discounts/premiums and issuance costs
Actuarial adjustments for retiree pension and benefit plans
Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Decrease (increase) in operating assets:
Accounts and other receivables, net
Contributions receivable for operations
Prepaid expenses, deferred charges, and other assets

Increase (decrease) in operating liabilities:
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and interest payable
Asset retirement obligation
Accrued liabilities for benefit obligations and professional liabilities
Deferred tuition and other revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Disbursements for loans to students
Repayment of loans from students
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments
Purchases of investments
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment
Increase in funds held in trust for others

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities

2018 2017
834,606 $ 676,935
- 802
(420,939) (17,000)
(197,789) (351,422)
(275,657) (228,118)
1,633 11,494
(26,880) (74,558)
- 8,659
260,674 247,302
247,732 244,836
(3,057) (2,627)
(28,461) (23,017)
(59,751) (80,123)
(424,670) (249,415)
21,167 20,334
(38,668) (29,243)
26,205 50,026
3,012 3,064
38,503 (6,750)
89,554 (37,078)
47,214 164,101
(2,713) (2,933)
4,496 4,684
7,653,840 8,437,212
(7,294,192) (8,984,313)
(378,464) (347,145)
44,732 81,894
27,699 (810,601)
(Continued)



EMORY UNIVERSITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017

(Dollars in thousands)

2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from contributions for endowment and capital projects 44,432 15,933
Proceeds from bonds payable - 491,171
Principal repayments of bonds payable (29,500) (365,776)
Recovery of posted collateral for debt-related derivatives 7,770 66,502
Increase (decrease) in annuities payable 783 (658)
Decrease in government advances for federal loan programs (62) 3
Bond issuance costs - (1,303)
Capital distributions to noncontrolling interests - (802)
Net cash provided by financing activities 23,423 205,064
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 98,336 (441,436)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 51,113 492,549
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 149,449 $ 51,113
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid for interest $ 84,274 $ 83,455
Accrued liabilities for property, plant and equipment purchases 10,836 10,477

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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EMORY UNIVERSITY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2018 and 2017

Organization

Emory University (the University or Emory) is a private, coeducational, not-for-profit institution, located in
Atlanta, Georgia. Founded in 1836, Emory owns and operates educational, research, and healthcare facilities
to support its mission. Emory provides educational services to approximately 8,100 undergraduate students
and 7,400 graduate and professional students within its nine schools and colleges. Included within the
University is the Emory Healthcare system, Emory Medical Care Foundation (EMCF) and Emory
Innovations, LLC.

The Emory Healthcare system (Emory Healthcare) consists of Emory Healthcare, Inc. (EHC) and its
controlled operating companies, including Emory University Hospital Midtown (EUHM), Emory University
Hospital (EUH), Emory Saint Joseph’s Hospital (ESJH), EHCA Johns Creek Hospital, LLC (EJCH), Emory
Rehabilitation Hospital (ERH), The Emory Clinic, Inc. (TEC), Emory Specialty Associates, LLC (ESA),
Emory Specialty Associates — Joint Operating Company (ESA JOC), Wesley Woods Center of Emory
University, Inc. (WWC), and Clifton Casualty Insurance Company, Ltd. (CCIC). EUH, EUHM, EJCH, and
ESJH are sometimes referred to herein, collectively, as “the Hospitals.”

The consolidated financial statements include the University and all other entities in which Emory has
significant financial interest and control. All significant inter-entity accounts and transactions have been
eliminated in consolidation.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The following significant accounting policies are used in the preparation of the accompanying consolidated
financial statements:

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the accrual basis in conformity with
U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP).

Net assets and revenues, gains, and losses are classified based on the existence or absence of externally
imposed restrictions. Accordingly, net assets of the University are classified and reported as follows:

Unrestricted Net Assets — Net assets that are not subject to donor-imposed stipulations; certain unrestricted
net assets are designated for specific purposes or uses under various internal operating and administrative
arrangements of the University.

Temporarily Restricted Net Assets — Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed stipulations; that will be
met either by actions of the University and/or the passage of time

Permanently Restricted Net Assets — Net assets that are subject to donor-imposed restrictions that the
University maintains permanently (note 7); generally, the donors of these assets permit the University to use
all or part of the income earned and net appreciation on related investments for general or specific purposes.

Revenues are reported as increases in unrestricted net assets unless their use is limited by donor-imposed
restrictions. Expenses are reported as decreases in unrestricted net assets. Gains and losses on investments
and other assets or liabilities are reported as increases or decreases in unrestricted net assets unless their use
is restricted by explicit donor stipulation or by law. Expirations of restrictions on net assets (i.e., the



EMORY UNIVERSITY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2018 and 2017

donor-stipulated purpose has been fulfilled and/or the stipulated time period has elapsed) are reported as net
assets released from restrictions and shown as reclassifications among the applicable classes of net assets.

Income and realized and unrealized gains on investments of permanently donor-restricted endowment net
assets are reported as follows:

. As increases in permanently restricted net assets if the terms of the gift require that they be added to
the principal of a permanent endowment fund

. As increases in temporarily restricted net assets until appropriated for expenditure by the University
and/or donor restrictions are met

Revenues earned, expenses incurred, and investment returns made available for the University’s operating
purposes of teaching, research, patient care, and other programs and services are components of the net
operating revenues/expenses presented in the consolidated statements of activities. The University considers
the following items to be nonoperating: gifts and contributions for capital and long-term investment and the
related net assets released from restrictions, investment return in excess of spending distribution for current
operations, change in fair value of derivative instruments, pension and postretirement related changes other
than net periodic cost, and other, net.

(@) Cash Equivalents

Cash equivalents consist primarily of bank balances and short-term money market mutual funds and
treasury bills with original maturities of 90 days or less that are not invested as part of the long-term
investment assets. These amounts are carried at cost, which approximates fair value. Cash and cash
equivalents that are part of the long-term pool are shown within investments as those funds generally
are not used for daily operating purposes.

(b) Contributions Receivable

Contributions of assets other than cash are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the gift.
Contributions to be received after one year, net of an allowance for uncollectible amounts are
discounted to their present value at credit-adjusted rates. Amortization of discounts is recorded as
additional contribution revenue. An allowance for uncollectible contributions receivable is provided
based on management’s judgment, considering such factors as prior collection history, type of
contribution, relationship with donor, and other relevant factors.

(c) Loans Receivable, Net

Emory-funded loans to students are carried at estimated net realizable value. Loans receivable from
students under certain governmental loan programs, carried at cost, can only be assigned to the federal
government or its designees. In addition to Federal Direct Loans (which are not reported in the
consolidated financial statements), loans to qualified students are funded principally with government
advances to Emory under the Perkins, Nursing, and Health Professions Student Loan Programs.
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2018 and 2017

Other Receivables, Net

Other receivables are recorded at net realizable value and include receivables under grants and
contracts, medical services provided to other organizations, and losses recoverable from reinsurers.

Investments

Investments in securities include U.S. and non-U.S. equities and fixed-income instruments, both
publicly traded and privately held. Fair value for these investments is measured based on quoted prices
in active markets, if available. If the market is inactive, fair value is determined by underlying
managers and reviewed by the University after considering various sources of information. Due to
variations in trading volumes and the lack of quoted market prices for fixed income, the fair value of
fixed income is normally derived through recent reported trades for identical or similar securities,
making adjustments through the reporting date based on available market observable data.

Investments in funds primarily include investments in commingled equity and fixed-income funds and
other investments in funds (public market investments, private market investments, real estate
partnerships, and natural resources) and are reported at fair value, as determined by the University in
accordance with the University’s valuation policies and procedures. The University has estimated the
fair value of the majority of its investments in investment funds on the basis of the net asset value
(NAYV) per share of the investment (or its equivalent), as a practical expedient, if a) the underlying
investment manager’s calculation of NAV is fair value based, b) the NAV has been calculated by the
fund manager or fund administrator as of the University’s fiscal year-end date, and c) the University
does not currently have plans to sell the investment for an amount different from NAV. If the reported
NAYV is not as of the University’s fiscal year-end date or is not fair value based, the University will
adjust the NAV, if deemed necessary. If the University determines it is not practicable to calculate an
adjusted NAYV as of the University’s fiscal year-end date, the practical expedient will not be utilized
and other valuation methodologies will be used. Typically, real estate partnerships and similar funds
are valued based on appraisals of underlying properties held and conducted by third-party appraisers
retained by the general partner or investment manager. General partners of oil and gas partnerships
also use third-party appraisers to value properties. Valuations provided by the general partners and
investment managers are evaluated by the Emory Investment Management Office and are believed to
present reasonable estimates of fair value at August 31, 2018 and 2017.

The University’s investments in investment funds are subject to the terms of the respective funds’
agreements, private placement memoranda, and other governing agreements of such funds. These
terms are typical for hedge fund and private equity arrangements. The University’s investments are
also subject to management and performance fees as specified in such funds’ agreements.
Additionally, such funds in which the University invests may restrict both the transferability of the
University’s interest and the University’s ability to withdraw. In light of such restrictions imposed, an
investment in these funds is illiquid and subject to liquidity risk.

Investment transactions are accounted for on the trade-date basis. Dividend income is recognized on
the ex-dividend date, and interest income is recognized on the accrual basis. Realized gains and losses
are determined by the specific identification method for investments in investment funds and average
cost for investments in securities. Additionally, gains and losses from realized and unrealized changes
in the fair value of investments are reported in the consolidated statements of activities as increases or
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August 31, 2018 and 2017

decreases in unrestricted net assets, if there are no donor restrictions, or in temporarily restricted net
assets, until amounts have been appropriated and the donor-imposed time restrictions have elapsed.
Changes in the fair value of these instruments are recognized as nonoperating investment gains or
losses in the consolidated statements of activities.

Fair Value Measurements

Fair value measurements reflected in the consolidated financial statements conceptually represent the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
among market participants at the measurement date. GAAP provides a hierarchy that prioritizes the
inputs to fair value measurements based on the extent to which inputs to valuation techniques are
observable in the marketplace. The hierarchy assigns a higher priority to observable inputs that reflect
verifiable information obtained from independent sources and a lower priority to unobservable inputs
that would reflect the University’s assumptions about how market participants would value an asset
or liability based on the best information available. Fair value measurements must maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Assets and liabilities measured and reported at fair value are classified and disclosed within one of the
following categories:

Level 1 — Valuations for assets and liabilities traded in active exchange markets as of the reporting
date; valuations are obtained from readily available pricing sources for market transactions
involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuations are determined through direct or indirect observations other than quoted
market prices. The type of investments in Level 2 also includes certain positions in which the
University is a unit of account holder within a fund or account that holds underlying assets that
are traded in active exchange markets with readily available pricing.

Level 3 — Valuations for assets and liabilities that are unobservable and derived from other
valuation methodologies, including discounted cash flow models and similar techniques, and not
based on market exchange, dealer, or broker-traded transactions; Level 3 valuations incorporate
certain assumptions and projections in determining the fair value assigned to such assets or
liabilities.

The majority of the University’s investments are held through limited partnerships and
commingled funds, for which fair value is estimated using the NAVs reported by the investment
managers as a practical expedient. Such investments have not been categorized within the fair
value hierarchy. Although a secondary market exists for these investments, the market is not active
and individual transactions are typically not observable. When transactions do occur in this limited
secondary market, they may occur at discounts to the reported NAV. It is therefore reasonably
possible that if the University were to sell these investments in the secondary market, a buyer may
require a discount to the reported NAV, and that discount could be significant.

Split-Interest Agreements

The University’s split-interest agreements with donors consist primarily of gift annuity agreements
and irrevocable charitable remainder trusts for which the University serves as trustee. Assets held in
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the trusts are included in investments. Contribution revenues are recognized when trusts (or annuity
agreements) are established, after recording liabilities for the present value of the estimated future
payments to be made to beneficiaries. The liabilities are adjusted annually for changes in the value of
assets, accretion of the discount, and other changes in the estimates of future benefits.

Interests in Perpetual Funds Held by Others

The University is also the beneficiary of certain perpetual funds held and administered by others. The
value of the funds’ assets (or Emory’s share when there are other beneficiaries) is considered a
reasonable estimate of the present value of the estimated future cash flows from these funds and is
recognized in beneficial interest in perpetual funds and as contribution revenue at the date such funds
are established. The largest fund of this type consists primarily of shares of common stock of The
Coca-Cola Company. The carrying value of Emory’s interest is adjusted annually for changes in fair
value.

Property and Equipment, net

Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost at the date of acquisition or fair value at the date
of gift to the University. Depreciation expense is based on the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the assets. Useful lives are as follows: buildings — 10 to 60 years, land improvements
and infrastructure — 5 to 40 years, movable equipment — 3 to 20 years, fixed equipment — 3 to 30 years,
software and enterprise systems — 3 to 10 years, leasehold improvements — term of the lease, and
library books — 10 years. Certain assets totaling $107.1 million and $99.0 million, such as art, museum
assets, and rare books, are included in property and equipment on August 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively, but are not depreciated.

Net Tuition and Fees

Tuition and fees revenues are recognized in the period in which the academic services are rendered.
Student tuition and fee receipts received in advance of services are reported as deferred revenue.
Student financial aid provided by the University for tuition and fees is reflected as a reduction of gross
tuition and fees.

Gifts and Contributions Revenue

Contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recognized as revenues in the period
received. Unconditional promises to give, with payments due in future periods, are recorded as
increases in temporarily or permanently restricted assets at the estimated present value of future cash
flows, net of an allowance for uncollectible pledges.

Donor-restricted contributions are reported as temporarily restricted or permanently restricted revenue
that increases those net asset classes. Expirations of temporary restrictions on net assets, such as the
donor stipulation being met or the passage of time, are reported as net assets released from restrictions
and reflect reclassifications from temporarily restricted net assets to unrestricted net assets. If the donor
stipulation for a temporarily restricted contribution is met in the year of the gift, the contribution is
reflected in the unrestricted net asset class. Temporary restrictions on gifts to acquire long-lived assets
are considered met in the period when the asset is placed in service. Conditional promises to give are

10
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not recognized until they become unconditional; that is, when the conditions on which they depend
are met.

Grants and Contracts Revenue and Indirect Cost Recoveries

Funding from a federal agency, corporation, or private foundation (sponsor) is recorded as grants and
contracts revenue when it is for a specified activity with a defined budget, period of performance, and
scope of work undertaken by the University. The agreement with the sponsor may take the form of a
contract, grant, or cooperative agreement and is generally in direct support of the University’s mission.
Sponsored program revenues and program income are earned when the University has substantially
met its obligations and when the contractual performance measures have been completed. Revenue is
recognized when services are rendered, or allowable expenditures are incurred as specified in the terms
and conditions of the agreements, not necessarily when payments are received. Unearned revenue
results when cash is received from sponsors in advance of revenue being earned. Unearned revenue is
recorded as a liability (deferred revenue) until it is earned. Amounts recorded in grants and contracts
receivable are for services rendered or expenditures incurred in advance of the receipt of funds.

Indirect cost recoveries are based on negotiated rates with grantor agencies and represent recoveries
of facilities and administrative costs incurred under grants and contracts agreements.

Net Patient Service Revenue

Net patient service revenue is reported at the estimated net realizable amounts due from patients, third-
party payors, and others for services rendered, including estimated retroactive adjustments due to
future audits, reviews, and investigations. Retroactive adjustments are considered in the recognition of
revenue on an estimated basis in the period the related services are rendered, and such amounts are
adjusted in future periods as adjustments become known or as years are no longer subject to such
audits, reviews, and investigations. Emory Healthcare’s estimates in this area may differ from actual
experience, and those differences may be material.

The Hospitals reserve for third-party payor cost report audits and anticipated settlements, through
initial audit and final settlement of the cost reports. The Hospitals’ maintain estimates of third-party
settlements for the Hospitals’ routine exposures in this area in recognition of the complexity of relevant
reimbursement regulations and the volatility of related settlement processes.

11
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Sales and Services of Auxiliary Enterprises and Independent Operations

An auxiliary enterprise, as put forth by the National Association of College and University Business
Officers, is a nonacademic entity that exists predominantly to furnish goods and services to students,
faculty, and staff. Auxiliary enterprises include residential halls, food services, a bookstore, and
parking operations. Fee charges are directly related to the costs of services provided.

Independent operations are activities, which are solely owned and/or controlled by the University but
are unrelated or independent of its mission. Independent operations include an externally managed
conference center, hotel, and a fitness center. Fee charges are based on market rates for the services
provided.

Income Taxes

The University is recognized as a tax-exempt organization as defined in Section 501(c)(3) of the
U.S. Internal Revenue Code (the Code) and is generally exempt from the federal income taxes on
related income pursuant to Section 501(a) of the Code. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes is
made in the consolidated financial statements. Unrelated business income of the University is reported
on Form 990-T. In December 2017, the Tax Cuts and Job Acts (the Act) was approved by the United
States Congress. Emory is currently evaluating the impact of the Act.

Derivative Instruments

Certain investment strategies used by the University and its investment managers incorporate various
derivative financial instruments in order to reduce volatility, manage market risk, and enhance
investment returns. Such instruments are reflected at fair value and included in investments. Changes
in fair value of these instruments are recognized as nonoperating investment gains or losses in the
consolidated statements of activities. The University will, from time to time, utilize interest swap
agreements to hedge interest rate market exposure of variable rate debt. The difference between
amounts paid and received under such agreements is reported in interest expense. Changes in the fair
value of these swap agreements are recognized as nonoperating changes in net assets in the
consolidated statements of activities.

Pension and Postretirement Benefit Plans

The University recognizes the funded status of its defined-benefit pension and postretirement benefit
plans as an asset or liability and recognizes changes in funded status during the year in which the
changes occur as changes in unrestricted net assets.

Reclassifications

Certain amounts included in the accompanying 2017 consolidated statements of financial position have
been reclassified to conform with the 2018 presentation.

The University reduced both the purchases and sales of investments, within the investing activities of
the consolidated statement of cash flows in 2017, which reflects the netting of high volume cash
activities within its investment pools.

12
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New Accounting Pronouncements

In May 2014, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued Accounting Standards Update
(ASU) No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, which requires entities to recognize
revenue to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in amounts that reflect the
consideration expected in exchange for those goods or services. Entities should also disclose
quantitative and qualitative information about the nature, amount, timing, and uncertainty of revenue
and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. ASU No. 2014-09 is effective for the University
for FY 2019.

In June 2018, the FASB issued ASU No. 2018-08, Clarifying the Scope and Accounting Guidance for
Contributions Received and Contributions Made, which clarifies whether grant (or similar
transactions) should be accounted for as contributions or exchange transactions. ASU No. 2018-08 is
effective in FY 2019 for the University.

In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-14, Presentation of Financial Statements of Non-
for-Profit Entities. ASU No. 2016-14 (1) reduces the number of net asset classes presented from three
to two, (2) requires the presentation of expenses by functional and natural classification in one location,

and (3) requires quantitative and qualitative disclosures about liquidity and availability of financial
assets. ASU No. 2016-14 is effective in FY 2019 for the University.

In March 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-07, Improving the Presentation of Net Periodic
Pension Cost and Net Periodic Postretirement Benefit Cost, which requires the University to present
the service cost component of net benefit cost within operating expenses and all other components of
net benefit cost in nonoperating activities. The ASU is effective for the University in FY 2020.

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842). ASU No. 2016-02 requires
the recognition of right-of-use assets and lease liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as
operating leases under the Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) Topic 840 — Leases. The
accounting applied by a lessor under ASU No. 2016-02 is largely unchanged from that applied under
ASC Topic 840. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for the University in FY 2020.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires that
management make estimates and assumptions affecting the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenues, and expenses, as well as disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. Actual results could
differ from those estimates.

Significant items in the University’s consolidated financial statements subject to such estimates and
assumptions include valuations for certain investments without readily determinable fair values, the
determination of the allowances for uncollectible accounts and contractual adjustments, reserves for
employee healthcare and workers’ compensation claims, accrued professional and general liability
costs, estimated third-party settlements, and actuarially determined benefit liabilities.

13
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(u) Conflict of Interest Policies

University trustees, directors, principal officers, and key employees may periodically be directly or
indirectly associated with companies doing business with the University. The University requires
annual disclosure of significant financial interests in, or employment or board service with, entities
doing business with the University. The annual disclosures cover these key officials and their
immediate family members. When such relationships exist, measures are taken to appropriately
manage the actual or perceived conflict. The written conflict of interest policy for the University
requires, among other things, that no member of a governing board may participate in any decision in
which he or she (or an immediate family member) has a material financial interest.

Contributions Receivable

Contributions receivable as of August 31 consist of the following (in thousands):

2018 2017
Unconditional promises expected to be collected in:
Less than one year $ 167,912 35,953
One year to five years 275,094 52,171
Over five years 2,983 3,671
Gross contributions receivable 445,989 91,795
Less:
Allowance for uncollectible amounts (10,581) (2,5106)
Discount to present value (39,281) (8,872)
Contributions receivable, net $ 396,127 80,407

At August 31, 2018 and 2017, the five largest outstanding donor pledge balances represented 90% and 42%,
respectively, of Emory’s gross contributions receivable. Contributions receivable are discounted at rates
ranging from 1.83% to 9.24%.

As of August 31, 2018, the University had received bequest intentions and conditional promises of
approximately $27.0 million. These intentions to give are not recognized as assets or revenues and, if
received, will generally be restricted for purposes stipulated by the donor.

Business and Credit Concentrations

Emory Healthcare grants credit to patients, substantially all of whom reside in the service areas. Emory
Healthcare generally does not require collateral or other security in extending credit to patients; however, it
routinely obtains assignment of (or is otherwise entitled to receive) patients’ benefits payable under their
health insurance programs, plans, or policies (e.g., Medicare, Medicaid, Managed Care, capitated, and other
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preferred provider arrangements and commercial insurance policies). The composition of net receivables
from patients and third-party payors follows:

2018 2017
Managed care and other third-party payors 56% 54%
Medicare 32 38
Patients 5 4
Medicaid 7 4
100% 100%

Net Patient Service Revenue

Emory Healthcare has agreements with governmental and other third-party payors that provide for
reimbursement to Emory Healthcare at amounts different from established rates. Contractual adjustments
under third-party reimbursement programs represent the difference between Emory Healthcare’s billings at
established rates for services and amounts reimbursed by third-party payors. A summary of the basis of
reimbursement with major third-party payors follows:

. Medicare — Substantially all acute care and professional services rendered to Medicare program
beneficiaries are paid at prospectively determined rates. These rates vary according to patient
classification systems that are based on clinical, diagnostic, and other factors. Revenue from the
Medicare program accounted for approximately 40% and 41% of Emory Healthcare’s net patient
service revenue for the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

. Medicaid — Inpatient and professional services rendered to Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid at
prospectively determined rates. Outpatient services are generally paid based on cost reimbursement
methodologies. Emory Healthcare’s cost reports have been audited and substantially settled for all
fiscal years through August 31, 2015. Revenue from the Medicaid program accounted for
approximately 4% of Emory Healthcare’s net patient service revenue for both years ended August 31,
2018 and 2017.

Emory Healthcare has also entered into other reimbursement arrangements providing for payment
methodologies, which include prospectively determined rates per discharge, discounts from established
charges, and prospectively determined per diem rates.

The composition of net patient service revenue (excluding charity care) follows (in thousands):

2018 2017
Gross patient service revenue $ 9,893,872 9,106,824
Less provisions for contractual and other adjustments (6,305,888) (5,735,501)
Less provisions for uncollectible accounts (183,980) (196,904)
Net patient service revenue $ 3,404,004 3,174,419

Emory Healthcare recognizes patient service revenue associated with services provided to patients with third-
party payor coverage on the basis of contractual rates for the services rendered. For uninsured patients who
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do not qualify for financial assistance in accordance with Emory Healthcare’s established charity/indigent
care policy, Emory Healthcare recognizes revenue on the basis of its discounted rates for services provided.
On the basis of historical experience, a significant portion of Emory Healthcare’s uninsured patients are
unable or unwilling to pay for the services provided. Thus, Emory Healthcare records a significant provision
for uncollectible accounts related to uninsured patients in the period the services are provided.

Patient service revenue, net of contractual allowances and discounts (but before the provision for
uncollectible accounts) recognized during the years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017 from these major payor
sources is as follows (in thousands):

2018 2017
Third-party payors $ 3,460,212 3,173,150
Self pay 127,772 198,173
Total $ 3,587,984 3,371,323
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(6) Investments

The following table summarizes investments as of August 31 (in thousands):

2018 2017
Short-term investments and cash equivalents @ $ 248,580 427,137
Investments in securities:
Global equity securities
U.S. equity securities 358,632 437,527
Non-U.S. equity securities 200,732 141,152
Fixed-income securities
U.S government securities ®) 653,952 897,719
Domestic bonds and long-term notes © 590,216 431,770
International bonds and long-term notes @ 208,163 174,647
Investments in private securities © 15,557 16,287
Commingled funds - equity 360,446 762,567
Commingled funds - fixed income 450,377 442,598
Investments in funds:
Public market investments © 2,775,397 2,251,918
Private market investments " 1,512,157 1,261,446
Natural resources 497,886 518,985
Real estate partnerships "’ 279,082 281,497
Derivatives ' (1,578) (9,572)
Marketable real estate investments 1,902 1,881
Oil and gas properties 1,155 680
Total investments at fair value 8,152,656 8,038,239
Joint ventures (equity method) 5,022 5,641
Total investments $ 8,157,678 8,043,880

(@) Includes short-term U.S. and non-U.S Treasury securities with maturities of less than one year, as well as funds that
invest in these types of investments; at August 31, 2018 and 2017, $4.1 million and $24.2 million, respectively,
was posted as collateral (primarily related to derivatives' trading agreements) and was not readily available for use.

(b

-

securities as of August 31, 2018.

Includes $379.0 million of net pending trade payables related to unsettled forward purchases and sales of such

(©) Includes investments in nongovernment debt securities. Investments consist primarily of credit-oriented securities
including U.S investment-graded and below investment-graded debt securities; other investments include mortgage-
based securities, asset-backed securities, repurchase agreements, senior loans, and bank loans.

(d) Includes fixed-income investments in non-U.S debt securities, such as government bonds, corporate bonds, bank

loans, and asset backed securities.
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(e

(f Includes professionally managed pooled investment funds registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission
or the Comptroller of the Currency (i.e. mutual funds and collective trusts).

N

Includes investments in private securities not held through a traditional fund or commingled vehicle.

-

(&) Includes investments in fund structures that pursue multiple strategies to diversify risks and reduce volatility, as well
as $353.0 million in investment subscriptions paid in advance. Fund managers have the ability to shift investments
across a wide variety of sectors, geographies, and strategies and from a net long position to a net short position.
Certain investments in public market investments may be subject to restrictions that limit the University's ability

to withdraw capital until i) a certain "lock-up period" has expired or ii) until certain underlying investments
designated as "illiquid" or "side pockets" are sold. In addition, this class includes investments that may be subject to

restrictions that limit the amount that the University is able to withdraw as of a given redemption date.
h

=

Includes illiquid investments in venture capital, growth equity, buyout, mezzanine, distressed debt, and commingled
vehicles in which Emory is typically a limited partner or shareholder; the nature of the investment

in this category is such that distributions are received through liquidation of the underlying assets of the fund.

As of August 31, 2018, it is estimated that underlying assets of the funds will be liquidated over the next 11 years.

(1 Includes investments in timber, mining, energy, farmland, commodities, and related services businesses held through
liquid and illiquid fund structures; the nature of the investments in this category is largely such that distributions are
received through liquidation of the underlying assets of the funds. As of August 31, 2018, it is estimated that
the underlying assets of the funds will be liquidated over the next nine years.

() Includes illiquid investments in real estate assets, projects, or land held in commingled funds; the fair value
of these investments is calculated from the NAV of Emory’s ownership interests in these funds. The nature
of the investments in this category is such that distributions are received through liquidation of the
assets of the funds. As of August 31, 2018, it is estimated that the underlying assets underlying of the funds
will be liquidated over the next ten years.

(&) Includes investments in derivative instruments including both exchange traded and over the counter futures,
forwards, swaps, options, rights, and warrants valued at the fair market value of each underlying instrument (note 8).

() Includes miscellaneous investments in real estate such as land gifts.

At August 31, 2018 and 2017, cash equivalents of $248.6 million and $427.1 million, respectively, are
included in investments and restricted for investment activity within the investment portfolio. The
Investment Policy for the long-term asset portfolio contains a target allocation to cash equivalents of 3%
with a tolerance band of +/- 10%.

The University’s investment policy allows fund managers to use foreign exchange contracts, currency
hedges, and other derivative transactions to reduce volatility and manage market risk in investment
portfolios. These financial instruments are included in investments at fair value in the accompanying
consolidated statements of financial position with the related gain or loss recognized as investment income
and gains (losses) in excess of spending distributions for current operations in the accompanying
consolidated statements of activities.

The University may hold investments denominated in currencies other than the U.S. dollar. Thus, there is
exposure to currency risk because the value of the investments denominated in other currencies may fluctuate
due to changes in currency exchange rates, and this can have an effect on the reported value of these
investments.

The value of securities held by the University may decline in response to certain economic events, including
those events impacting entities whose securities are owned and included in the investment portfolio. Those
events impacting valuation may include (but are not limited to) economic changes, market fluctuations,

18



@)

EMORY UNIVERSITY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2018 and 2017

regulatory changes, global and political instability, and currency, interest rate, and commodity price
fluctuations. The University attempts to manage this risk through diversification, ongoing due diligence of
fund managers, and monitoring of economic conditions.

As of August 31,2018, the related unfunded commitments of the University’s alternative investments valued
using the practical expedient and limitations and restrictions on the University’s ability to redeem or sell are
summarized as follows (in thousands):

Redemption
frequency
Unfunded (if currently Redemption
commitments eligible) notice period
Public market investments $ 20,000 30 days - over 2 years 3 - 306 days
Private market investments 916,428 not eligible not eligible
Real estate partnerships 296,239 not eligible not eligible
Natural resources 186,473 30 days or not eligible 45 days or not eligible

S___1419.140

Unfunded commitments are expected to be called by funds within five years of fund inception.

Investment return as reflected in the accompanying consolidated statements of activities for the years ended
August 31 is as follows (in thousands):

2018 2017
Investment income, net $ 39,055 32,891
Realized and unrealized gains, net 473,446 579,540
Total investment return 512,501 612,431
Operating
Endowment spending distribution 182,562 179,696
Other investment income designated for current operations 81,257 72,622
Total operating return 263,819 252,318
Nonoperating
Investment return in excess of spending distribution
for current operations 248,682 360,113
Total investment return $ 512,501 612,431

The University employs an internal core group of investment professionals dedicated to the management of
Emory’s investments and external investment managers.

Endowment Net Assets

The University’s Endowment (Endowment) consists of over 2,032 individual funds established for a variety
of purposes, including both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the board of trustees
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to function as endowments. The Endowment provides stable financial support to a wide variety of programs
and activities, playing a critical role in enabling the University to achieve its mission. Net assets associated
with these endowment funds are classified and reported based on the existence or absence of donor-imposed
restrictions.

(a)

Interpretation of Relevant Law

The board of trustees of the University has approved the University’s adoption of the State of Georgia
Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds Act (UPMIFA), which provides standards for
managing investments of institutional funds and spending from endowments. The University classifies
as permanently restricted net assets (a) the original value of gifts donated to the permanent endowment,
(b) the original value of subsequent gifts to the permanent endowment, and (c) accumulations to the
permanent endowment made in accordance with the direction of the applicable donor gift instrument
at the time the accumulation is added to the fund.

The remaining portion of the donor-restricted endowment fund that is not classified in permanently
restricted net assets is classified as temporarily restricted net assets until those amounts are
appropriated for expenditures by the University in a manner consistent with the standard of prudence
prescribed by UPMIFA. In accordance with UPMIFA, the University considers several factors in
making a determination to appropriate or accumulate donor-restricted endowment funds, including the
duration and preservation of the fund, the purposes of the fund, general economic conditions, the
possible effect of inflation and deflation, the expected total return from income and the appreciation
of investments, other resources, and the investment policies of the University.

The endowment funds subject to UPMIFA are true endowments and do not include perpetual funds
held by others, long-term investments, annuity funds, and deposits held in custody and miscellaneous
investments. As of August 31, 2018, approximately 64.3% of the investments described in note 6 are
classified as endowed net assets. Endowment funds are categorized in the following net asset classes
as of August 31 (in thousands):

2018 2017
Donor- Board- Donor- Board-
restricted designated Total restricted designated Total
Unrestricted $ (3,597) 1,556,384 1,552,787 (7,779) 1,498,575 1,490,796
Temporarily restricted 2,765,582 — 2,765,582 2,642,490 — 2,642,490
Permanently restricted 923,950 — 923,950 881,625 — 881,625
Total endowment funds $ 3,685,935 1,556,384 5,242,319 3,516,336 1,498,575 5,014,911
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Changes in endowment funds by net asset classification for the years ended August 31 are summarized as follows

(in thousands):

Balance as of August 31, 2016

Investment return:

Investment income

Realized and unrealized gains, net
Total investment return

Cash contributions
Additions of funds for endowments

Transfers of institutional funds for
quasi-endowments

Withdrawal of board-designated
funds for strategic initiatives

Appropriations for expenditure

Appropriations for capital purposes

Other

Balance as of August 31, 2017

Investment return:
Investment income
Realized and unrealized gains, net

Total investment return

Cash contributions
Withdrawal of funds

for endowments
Transfers of institutional funds for

quasi endowments
Withdrawal of board-designated
funds for strategic initiatives
Appropriations for expenditure
Appropriations for capital purposes
Other

Balance as of August 31, 2018

(b) Funds with Deficiencies

Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total
$ 1,379,106 2,467,363 837,814 4,684,283
2,807 16,021 — 18,828
134,226 350,647 — 484,873
137,033 366,668 — 503,701
1,100 — 41,206 42,306
— — 2,647 2,647
23,747 (258) — 23,489
(5,555) — — (5,555)
(51,147) (162,998) — (214,145)
(6,421) (15,394) — (21,815)
12,933 (12,891) 42) —
$ 1,490,796 2,642,490 881,625 5,014,911
4,183 18,825 — 23,008
89,993 295,339 — 385,332
94,176 314,164 — 408,340
168 — 41,209 41,377
— — (3,348) (3,348)
28,655 — — 28,655
(7,678) — — (7,678)
(36,779) (180,995) — (217,774)
(6,110) (16,054) (22,164)
(10,441) 5,977 4,464 —
$ 1,552,787 2,765,582 923,950 5,242,319

From time to time, the fair value of assets associated with individual donor-restricted endowment funds
may fall below the level of the donor’s original contribution. Deficiencies of this nature that are
reported in unrestricted net assets were $3.6 million and $7.8 million as of August 31, 2018 and 2017,
respectively. Subsequent gains that restore the fair value of the assets of the endowment fund to book
value will be classified as an increase in unrestricted net assets.
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(c) Return Objectives and Risk Parameters

The University has adopted investment and spending policies for endowment assets that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its endowment while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of the endowment assets. Under this policy, as approved by the board
of trustees, the endowment assets are invested within risk tolerances of the University to provide an
expected total return in excess of spending and inflation over the long-term.

(d) Strategies Employed for Achieving Objectives

To satisfy its long-term, rate-of-return objectives, the University relies on a total return strategy in
which investment returns are achieved through both capital appreciation (realized and unrealized) and
current yield (interest and dividends). The University employs a diversified asset allocation strategy
across global equities, fixed income, marketable alternatives, and private investments to achieve its
long-term return objectives within prudent risk constraints. The Endowment’s long-term target asset
allocation is approved by the investment committee of the board of trustees. The portfolio is
periodically rebalanced to the target weightings for each asset class.

(e) Relationship between Investment Objectives and Spending Policy

The University’s board of trustees has established a spending policy that determines how endowment
distributions are made. The distribution of endowment income in 2018 and 2017 was based on a hybrid
spending policy formula, which is approved by the board of trustees and has both a constant budget
growth component and market value based component. The target payout rate was 4.75% for FY 2018
and FY 2017. The University considers the expected return on its endowment, including the effect of
inflation in setting the annual appropriation amount. Accordingly, the University expects the current
spending policy to allow its endowment to maintain its purchasing power if projected growth rates are
achieved. Additional real growth will be provided through new gifts and any excess investment return.
The payout rate is approved annually by the board of trustees as part of the budget process.

Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities

Investments

The University has executed derivative financial instruments in the normal course of its business.
Investment strategies employed by Emory and investment managers retained by Emory may incorporate
futures, options, swaps, and other derivative instruments to adjust elements of investment exposures to
various securities, markets, and currencies without actually taking a position in the underlying asset.

These instruments expose Emory to risk of an unexpected movement in the fair value of the underlying
security, a counterparty failing to meet its obligations and, in certain circumstances, not being able to unwind
a position at current fair value due to market illiquidity. Emory has established procedures to monitor and
manage these risks. The purchase and sale of exchange-traded derivatives require collateral deposits with a
Futures Commission Merchant (FCM). In the event of an FCM’s insolvency, recovery may be limited to
Emory’s pro rata share of segregated customer funds available. It is possible that the recovery amount could
be less than the total of cash and other equity deposited. Management does not consider the underlying
counterparty risk will have a material impact on the financial position of the University.
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Emory’s net investment-related derivative exposures, categorized by primary underlying risk, as of and for
the years ended August 31 (in thousands):

Gross Notional Derivative Derivative Total Fiscal Year
2018 Amount"” Assets Liabilities Gains (Losses) @
Interest-rate contracts $ 1,083,904 3,772 (2,383) (9,487)
Foreign exchange contracts 1,112,864 781 (1,959) (637)
Equity contracts 679,692 17 (2,267) 79,293
Credit contracts 53,900 904 (443) 687
Total $ 2,930,360 5,474 (7,052) 69,856

Gross Notional Derivative Derivative Total Fiscal Year
2017 Amount” Assets Liabilities Gains (Losses) @
Interest-rate contracts $ 1,103,290 1,087 (1,017) 6,492
Foreign exchange contracts 511,563 814 (2,260) (2,637)
Equity contracts 883,547 5,464 (16,513) 31,649
Credit contracts 142,905 2,947 (94) 1,763
Total $ 2,641,305 10,312 (19,884) 37,267

(1) The notional amount is representative of the absolute value of the open contracts on August 31,
2018 and 2017.

(2) Gains (losses) on derivatives are included in the consolidated statements of activities in
“investment return in excess of (less than) spending distribution for current operations” in
“nonoperating activities.”
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Emory’s investment-related derivative assets and liabilities at August 31, by counterparty, are as follows (in

thousands):

Cash Collateral
2018 Assets Liabilities Held (Pledged)
Counterparty A 4,165 (4,409) (47,042)
Counterparty B 555 911) (30)
Counterparty C 283 (315) —
Counterparty D 241 (656) (200)
Counterparty E 159 (41) —
All other 71 (720) (350)
Total 5,474 (7,052) (47,622)
Cash Collateral
2017 Assets Liabilities Held (Pledged)
Counterparty A 9,403 (17,590) (71,536)
Counterparty B 310 (138) 246
Counterparty C 221 (339) (150)
Counterparty D 146 (1,012) (856)
Counterparty E 72 (69) —
All other 160 (736) 36
Total 10,312 (19,884) (72,260)
Debt

As a component of the debt portfolio, the University entered into interest rate swap agreements that
effectively convert a portion of variable rate debt to fixed rates and are used to manage interest rate risk. The
University’s exchange arrangements are exposed to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the
counterparty and to interest rate risk driven by factors influencing the spread between the taxable and tax-
exempt market interest rates on its basis exchange. Certain university derivative instruments contain
provisions requiring long-term, unsecured debt to be maintained at specified credit ratings from Moody’s
Investors Service and Standard and Poor’s Ratings Service. If the ratings of the University’s debt were to
fall below certain benchmarks, the counterparty could request immediate payment on derivatives in net
liability positions. At August 31, 2018, the University’s long-term debt ratings exceeded these benchmarks.

At August 31, 2018, Emory had nine interest rate swap agreements expiring on various dates ranging from
November 15, 2028 through December 1, 2042. These agreements require Emory to pay fixed interest rates
to the counterparties varying from 3.328% to 4.388% in exchange for variable rate payments from the
counterparties based on a percentage of the three-month LIBOR.

Net settlement transactions related to the agreements described above resulted in interest expense totaling
$13.7 million and $17.4 million during 2018 and 2017, respectively. The fair value of each exchange
agreement is estimated based on pricing models that utilize significant observable inputs, such as relevant
current interest rates, that reflect assumptions on the amount the University would receive or pay to terminate
the agreement at the reporting date. As such, the University’s exchange agreements are categorized as Level
2 in the fair value hierarchy.
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The aggregate fair value of all derivative instruments with credit-risk-related contingent features that are in
a liability position was $128.9 million and $188.6 million, collateralized by $0 and $7.8 million of cash on
August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Collateral postings are reported in prepaid expenses, deferred
charges, and other assets in the consolidated statements of financial position.

The following table summarizes the debt-related derivatives as of August 31 (in thousands):

Interest Rate Swaps 2018 2017
Liability Fair =~ Unrealized  Liability Fair = Unrealized
Inception Maturity Value Gains Value Gains

August 4, 2005 September 1,2035 § (20,317) 10,234 (30,551) 13,442
August 25, 2005 September 1, 2035 (6,858) 3,319 (10,177) 4,593
April 19, 2007 November 15, 2028 (991) 578 (1,569) 505
December 1,2007  September 1, 2035 (15,452) 7,010 (22,462) 9,084
May 1, 2008 September 1, 2038 (19,183) 6,793 (25,976) 10,624
December 1,2008 December 1, 2042 (22,594) 10,437 (33,031) 15,983
December 1,2009  September 1, 2035 (16,295) 6,546 (22,841) 9,133
June 23, 2015 September 1, 2035 (20,317) 11,175 (31,492) 12,502
June 23, 2015 September 1, 2035 (6,854) 3,659 (10,513) 4,257
Total $  (128,861) 59,751 (188,612) 80,123

Emory is exposed to financial loss in the event of nonperformance by a counterparty to any of the financial
instruments described above. General market conditions could impact the credit standing of the
counterparties and, therefore, potentially impact the value of the instruments. Emory management, with
consultation from third-party financial advisors, controls this counterparty credit risk by considering the
credit rating, business risk, and reputation of any counterparty before entering into a transaction, monitoring
for any change in the credit standing of its counterparty during the life of the transaction, and requiring
collateral be posted when predetermined thresholds are crossed. The swaps are exchanged with primarily six
counterparties.
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Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The following table summarizes the valuation of the University’s assets and liabilities according to the fair
value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2018 (in thousands):

Investments
Total fair measured at
value NAV @ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Short-term investments and cash
equivalents $ 248,580 — 247,493 1,087 —
Investments in securities:
Global equity securities
U.S. equity securities 358,632 — 358,420 203 9
Non-U.S. equity securities 200,732 — 199,813 222 697
Fixed-income securities:
U.S. government securities 653,952 — 217 653,735 —
Domestic bonds and long-
term notes 590,216 — 1,550 587,940 726
International bonds and long-
term notes 208,163 — 14 208,149 —
Investments in private securities 15,557 — — — 15,557
Commingled funds - equity 360,446 63,747 22,859 273,840 —
Commingled funds - fixed income 450,377 — 228,631 221,746 —
Investments in funds:
Public market investments 2,775,397 2,775,397 — — —
Private market investments 1,512,157 1,507,082 — — 5,075
Natural resources 497,886 493,382 — — 4,504
Real estate partnerships 279,082 279,082 — — —
Derivatives (1,578) — (2,980) 1,402 —
Marketable real estate investments 1,902 — 228 1,674 —
Oil and gas properties 1,155 — — — 1,155
Total investments 8,152,656 5,118,690 1,056,245 1,949,998 27,723
Interests in perpetual funds held
by others ? 1,311,406 — — — 1,311,406
Total assets at fair value $ 9,464,062 5,118,690 1,056,245 1,949,998 1,339,129
Financial liabilities:
Derivative instruments -
interest rate swaps (128,861) — — (128,861) —
Funds held in trust for others (791,841) — (791,841) —
Total liabilities at fair value $ (920,702) — — (920,702) —

(1)  Certain investments in joint ventures carried under the equity method of accounting are not reported at fair value and thus not included in

the table above (note 6).

2) Primarily invested in The Coca-Cola Company.

3) Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been categorized
in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy

hierarchy to the amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial position.
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The following table summarizes the valuation of the University’s assets and liabilities according to the fair
value hierarchy levels as of August 31, 2017 (in thousands):

Investments
Total fair measured at
value NAV @ Level 1 Level 2 Level 3

Financial assets:
Short-term investments and cash
equivalents $ 427,137 — 389,429 37,708 —
Investments in securities:
Global equity securities

U.S. equity securities 437,527 — 437,362 137 28
Non-U.S. equity securities 141,152 — 140,831 321 —
Fixed-income securities:
U.S. government securities 897,719 — 163 897,556 —
Domestic bonds and long-
term notes 431,770 — 1,628 429,020 1,122
International bonds and long-
term notes 174,647 — 37 174,610 —
Investments in private securities 16,287 — — — 16,287
Commingled funds - equity 762,567 366,617 133,757 262,193 —
Commingled funds - fixed income 442,598 293,450 149,148 —
Investments in funds:
Public market investments 2,251,918 2,251,918 — — —
Private market investments 1,261,446 1,260,729 — — 717
Natural resources 518,985 518,985 — — —
Real estate partnerships 281,497 281,497 — — —
Derivatives (9,572) 4,806 (14,378) —
Marketable real estate investments 1,881 — 207 1,674 —
Oil and gas properties 680 — — 680
Total investments " 8,038,239 4,679,746 1,401,670 1,937,989 18,834
Interest in perpetual funds held
by others @ 1,244,906 — — — 1,244,906
Total assets at fair value $ 9,283,145 4,679,746 1,401,670 1,937,989 1,263,740

Financial liabilities:
Derivative instruments -

interest rate swaps (188,612) — — (188,612) —
Funds held in trust for others (747,109) — — (747,109) —
Total liabilities at fair value $ (935,721) — — (935,721) —

(1)  Certain investments in joint ventures carried under the equity method of accounting are not reported at fair value and thus not included in
the table above (note 6).

(2)  Primarily invested in The Coca-Cola Company.

(3)  Certain investments that are measured at fair value using the NAV per share (or its equivalent) practical expedient have not been categorized
in the fair value hierarchy. The fair value amounts presented in this table are intended to permit reconciliation of the fair value hierarchy
to the amounts presented in the consolidated statements of financial position.
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Investments made directly by the University whose values are based on quoted market prices in active
markets, and are therefore classified within Level 1, include actively traded common and preferred stock,
U.S. government fixed-income instruments, and non-U.S. government fixed-income instruments. Level 1
investments may also include commingled funds, such as listed mutual funds, futures contracts, and
exchange traded funds.

Investments that trade in markets that are considered to be active but are based on dealer quotations or
alternative pricing sources supported by observable inputs or investments that trade in markets that are not
considered to be active, but are valued based on quoted market prices, dealer quotations, or alternative pricing
sources supported by observable inputs, are classified within Level 2. Alternative pricing sources include
quotations from market participants and pricing models, which are based on accepted industry modeling
techniques. These investments include U.S. investment grade and below investment grade debt securities,
international corporate bonds, mortgage-backed securities, asset-backed securities, money market funds,
senior loans and bank loans, most derivative contracts other than futures, and commingled structures with
quoted market prices.

Investments that do not trade in active markets and for which values are instead derived from significant
unobservable inputs are classified within Level 3. When observable prices are not available, these
investments are valued using one or more valuation techniques described below.

. Market approach: This approach uses prices and other relevant information generated by market
transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities.

. Income approach: This approach determines a valuation by discounting future cash flows.

. Cost approach: This approach is based on the principle of substitution and the concept that a market
participant would not pay more than the amount that would currently be required to replace the asset.

The following tables summarize the University’s Level 3 reconciliation for the years ended August 31, 2018
and 2017 (in thousands):

Balance as of Net Transfer in (out) of Balance as of
August 31,2017 gains (losses) Purchases Sales Level 3 August 31,2018

Investments in U.S. equity securities $ 28 ®) 42 (56) — 9

Non-U.S. equity securities — — — — 697 697

Domestic bonds and long-term notes 1,122 @®) — (388) — 726

Investments in private securities 16,287 (497) — (233) — 15,557
Investment in funds:

Private market investments 717 (345) 85 — 4,618 5,075

Natural resources — — — — 4504 4,504

Oil and gas properties 680 475 — — — 1,155

Total investments 18,834 (380) 127 677) 9,819 27,723

Interest in perpetual funds held by others 1,244,906 66,500 — — — 1,311,406

Total assets N 1,263,740 66,120 127 (677) 9,819 1,339,129
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Balance as of Net Transfer in (out) of Balance as of
August 31, 2016 gains (losses) Purchases Sales Level 3 August 31,2017
Investments in U.S. equity securities N 3 (46) 72 (1) — 28
Non-U.S. equity securities 507 113 — (620) — —
Domestic bonds and long-term notes 1,112 17 — (7) — 1,122
Investments in private securities 14,765 18,574 — (17,052) — 16,287
Investment in funds:
Private market investments 658 15 31 (92) 105 717
Oil and gas properties 680 — — — — 680
Total investments 17,725 18,673 103 (17,772) 105 18,834
Interest in perpetual funds held by others 1,170,348 74,558 — — — 1,244,906
Total assets N 1,188,073 93,231 103 (17,772) 105 1,263,740
Property and Equipment
Property and equipment at August 31 is summarized as follows (in thousands):
2018 2017
Land and land improvements $ 201,887 201,696
Buildings and improvements 3,668,327 3,376,910
Equipment 2,435,931 2,308,381
Library and museum assets 438,429 414,132
Construction in progress 142,101 214,071
6,886,675 6,515,190
Less accumulated depreciation (3,667,670) (3,412,342)

$ 3,219,005

3,102,848

Property and equipment is reviewed for recoverability whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss shall be recognized only if the carrying
amount of a long-lived asset is not recoverable and exceeds its fair value. The carrying amount of a long-
lived asset is not recoverable if it exceeds the sum of the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from
the use and eventual disposition of the asset. There were no asset impairments for fiscal year 2018 or 2017.

The University has identified asset retirement obligations primarily from commitments to remove asbestos
and lead paint in university facilities at the time of major renovation or demolition. The liability was
estimated using an inflation rate of 5.00% and discount rate of 4.74%. The liability for asset retirement
obligations at August 31,2018 and 2017 is $66.0 million and $63.0 million, respectively.
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(11) Bonds and Notes Payable

Bonds and notes payable, including unamortized premiums, discounts, and issuance costs, consisted of the
following at August 31 (dollars in thousands):

Average Final Outstanding principal
interest rate maturity 2018 2017
Tax-exempt fixed-rate revenue bonds:
2016 Series A 4.62% October 1, 2046 $ 130,030 130,030
2016 Series B 4.17 October 1, 2043 212,620 221,710
2013 Series A 4.95 October 1, 2043 186,800 191,415
2011 Series A 4.95 September 1, 2041 121,500 121,500
2009 Series B 4.79 September 1, 2035 195,470 200,530
2009 Series C 4.93 September 1, 2039 93,555 95,060
Total tax-exempt fixed-rate revenue bonds 939,975 960,245
Tax-exempt variable-rate revenue bonds:
2013 Series B @ 1.57 October 1, 2039 135,100 135,100
2013 Series C 1.83 October 1, 2039 57,865 57,865
2007 Series A 2.00 November 15, 2028 9,740 9,770
2005 Series B 1.17 September 1, 2035 250,000 250,000
2005 Series C 1.16 September 1, 2036 124,150 124,150
Total tax-exempt variable-rate revenue bonds 576,855 576,885
Taxable fixed-rate revenue bonds:
2009 Series A 5.63 September 1, 2019 250,000 250,000
1994 Series C 8.00 October 1, 2024 4,610 5,080
Series 1991 8.85 April 1, 2022 186 243
Total taxable fixed-rate revenue bonds 254,796 255,323
Taxable variable-rate revenue bonds:
1999 Series B 1.58 November 1, 2029 8,610 9,085
1995 Series B 1.58 November 1, 2025 1,940 2,115
1994 Series B 1.63 October 1, 2024 7,200 7,970
Total taxable variable-rate revenue bonds 17,750 19,170
Commercial paper:
2010 Program 1 - Tax-exempt 0.89 August 1, 2050 — 2,834
2008 Program 1 - Taxable 1.73 April 1, 2047 104,344 108,394
Total commercial paper 104,344 111,228
Other long-term debt Various 10 379
Unamortized bond premiums 76,575 80,642
Unamortized bond discounts (2,003) (2,325)
Bond issuance costs (8,405) (9,093)
Total bonds and notes payable $ 1,959,897 1,992,454
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(1) Included in the 2009 Series Bonds is a medium-term maturity of $43.0 million due on September 1, 2019 at an
average interest rate of 4.68%.

(2) Series 2013B and 2013C bonds are floating rate notes and interest rates are based on a spread to one month
LIBOR and The Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association Index (SIFMA), respectively.

The University incurred interest expense of $77.1 million and $81.5 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively,
net of capitalized interest of $4.1 million and $0.8 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively. During 2018 and
2017, the average interest rate on University tax-exempt and taxable variable rate demand bonds was 1.16%
and 1.58%, respectively. Related indices for this period were 1.21% for tax-exempt debt (SIFMA) and 1.69%
for taxable debt (LIBOR).

During 2017, the University refunded its 2008C and 2005A Series Bonds totaling $147.2 million with
proceeds from the University’s issuance of 2016B Series Bonds. The University incurred an accounting loss
of $8.7 million on the refunding of the extinguishment of the 2008C and 2005A Series Bonds, which is
included in the nonoperating activities in the accompanying 2017 consolidated statement of activities.

At August 31, 2018, the aggregate annual maturities of bonds and notes payable for the next five years and
thereafter are as follows (in thousands):

Payable in fiscal year:

2019 $ 21,873
2020 302,418
2021 18,614
2022 13,461
2023 13,365
Thereafter 1,523,999
1,893,730

Unamortized net premium 74,572
Unamortized net bond issuance costs (8,405)
$ 1,959,897

In 2010, the University established a $400.0 million tax-exempt Commercial Paper program. The primary
purpose of the program is to meet interim financing needs related to capital projects. As of August 31, 2018
or 2017, the University had no outstanding balances under this program.

The University has a standby credit facility to enable the University to purchase tendered variable rate debt
in the event of a failed remarketing. Currently, it has one diversified facility totaling $150.0 million that is
committed for this sole purpose and cannot be used for operating needs of the University. There were no
draws against this line of credit in 2018 or 2017.

Emory University’s healthcare system, Emory Healthcare, entered into an affiliation agreement with one of
its payors effective June 11, 2018. This affiliation agreement includes, among other provisions, a $100.0
million line of credit to Emory University, which can be utilized for any purpose that advances the charitable
mission of Emory Healthcare. There is no outstanding balance on this line of credit as of August 31, 2018.
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Emory University has an additional $75.0 million line of credit unrelated to this Emory Healthcare affiliation
agreement for which there is also no outstanding balance as of August 31, 2018.

The University has two letters of credit with a commercial bank totaling $1.4 million. There were no
outstanding balances as of August 31, 2018 or 2017.

The terms of the University’s long-term debt provide for certain financial and nonfinancial covenants,
including provisions as to the use of the proceeds, limits as to arbitrage and bond issuance costs, and various
other administrative requirements.

(12) Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets

Temporarily restricted net assets consist of the following as of August 31 (in thousands):

2018 2017
Appreciation on endowments restricted until appropriated $ 2,640,672 2,517,580
Term endowments 124,910 124,910
Contributions receivable, time, and purpose restricted 372,500 48,447
Restricted for capital projects and other donor purposes 70,013 24,518
Annuity and life income agreements 8,576 7,141
$ 3,216,671 2,722,596

Permanently restricted net assets include endowment funds subject to UPMIFA (note 7) as well as perpetual
trusts and endowments held by others. Permanently restricted net assets consist of the following as of
August 31 (in thousands):

2018 2017
Donor-restricted endowments $ 923,950 881,625
Interests in perpetual funds held by others 1,271,786 1,244,906
Contributions receivable, restricted for endowment 23,627 31,961
Annuity and life income agreements 2,071 2,081
Split-interest trusts 3,245 3,268
$ 2,224,679 2,163,841

Generally, the donors of these restricted gifts permit the University to use all or part of the income earned
and net appreciation on related investments for general or specific purposes, such as scholarships, faculty
salaries, or other operational and administrative support.

(13) Retirement and Deferred Compensation Plans

The University has a defined-contribution plan under Internal Revenue Code (IRC) Section 403(b) covering
certain employees and teaching staff. The University contributes an amount equal to 6% of each eligible
employee’s compensation to the plan as well as a supplemental contribution of 3% based on a 1.5 to 1 match
of employee contributions of up to 2% of compensation. Emory Healthcare sponsors a retirement plan,
covering most full time employees, under which annuities are purchased with contributions by Emory
Healthcare and its employees. The benefits are vested only to the extent of the annuities purchased. TEC
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sponsors The Emory Clinic, Inc. Retirement Savings Plan (the Plan), covering all its employees, except those
considered leased employees or those covered under collective bargaining agreements, as defined. The Plan
provides for employees to make salary reduction contributions and for TEC to make discretionary
contributions for employees who have attained the age of 21 and are employees at the date the contribution
is made. The Plan provides for contributions at an annual determined percentage of compensation and
employees cliff vest in employer contributions after three years of service. Retirement expense totaled $142.7
million and $131.6 million during 2018 and 2017, respectively, and is included in operating expense in the
accompanying consolidated statements of activities.

The University sponsors an IRC Section 457(b) Deferred Compensation Plan primarily for the purpose of
providing deferred compensation for a select group of management or highly compensated employees who
are eligible for participation and elect to make salary deferrals under the Deferred Compensation Plan. These
assets are fully vested and available to the participating employees at the point of termination of employment
from the University. As of August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, the University held other assets of $134.7
million and $115.7 million under the plan. These assets are included in other assets, which are designated
by the University to pay future salary deferral plan payments. The assets are held in separate investment
funds for which the majority are classified as Level 1 in the fair value hierarchy. Associated liabilities for
the obligations of $134.7 million and $115.7 million as of August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively, are
included in accrued liabilities for benefit obligations and professional liabilities and considered Level 2 in
the fair value hierarchy.

Pension Plans — Emory Healthcare

Emory Healthcare sponsors a defined-benefit pension plan (the Plan). The Plan was curtailed effective
December 31, 2011. The terms of the curtailment generally provide that no further benefit accrual under the
Plan is provided for service after the effective date nor will new entrants into the Plan be permitted after the
effective date.

The Joint Operating Company (JOC) assumed certain defined-benefit pension liabilities covering certain
employees of the entities contributed to the JOC by SJHS (SJHS Pension Plan). The Plan was curtailed,
effective December 31, 2011, and the JOC has agreed to provide for funding of the plan, generally over 10
years, beginning in fiscal year 2015, subject to certain terms and conditions.

The changes in the projected benefit obligations as of August 31 follow (in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory SJHS Emory SJHS
Healthcare Pension Plan Healthcare Pension Plan
Projected benefit obligation, beginning of year $ 326,875 154,690 324,577 160,393
Interest cost 11,614 6,180 10,605 6,042
Actuarial gains (10,651) (6,178) (1,131) (6,498)
Benefits paid (7,804) (5,574) (7,176) (5,247)
Projected benefit obligation, end of year $ 320,034 149,118 326,875 154,690
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Given the curtailment of the plans, the accumulated benefit obligations at August 31, 2018 and 2017 are the
same as the projected benefit obligations.

The changes in the fair value of plan assets, funded status of the plans, and the status of amounts recognized
in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position as of August 31 follow (in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory SJHS Emory SJHS
Healthcare Pension Plan Healthcare Pension Plan

Fair value of plan assets, beginning of year $ 235,118 110,316 213,181 99,096
Actual return on plan assets 12,969 9,406 19,666 10,197
Employer contributions 11,089 7,240 9,447 6,270
Benefits paid (7,804) (5,574) (7,176) (5,247)
Fair value of plan assets, end of year $ 251,372 121,388 235,118 110,316
Funded status - accrued pension cost

recognized in the consolidated

statements of financial position $ (68,662) (27,730) (91,757) (44,374

The components of net periodic pension cost for the years ended August 31 follow (in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory SJHS Emory SJHS
Healthcare Pension Plan Healthcare Pension Plan
Interest cost $ 11,614 6,180 10,605 6,042
Expected return on plan assets (18,827) (7,777) (17,156) (6,971)
Amortization of prior service cost 3,552 (438) 3,061 (438)
Recognized actuarial loss 2,295 1,866 2,576 2,196
Net periodic pension cost $ (1,366) (169) (914) 829

Net periodic costs are recognized as employees render the services necessary to earn the pension and
postretirement benefits.

Weighted average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations in the accompanying consolidated
statements of financial position for 2018 and 2017 follow:

2018 2017
Emory SJHS Emory SJHS
Healthcare Pension Plan Healthcare Pension Plan
Discount rate 431% 4.28% 4.07% 4.07%
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 8.00 6.75 8.00 7.00

Weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic pension cost for 2018 and 2017 follow:

2018 2017
Emory SJHS Emory SJHS
Healthcare Pension Plan Healthcare Pension Plan
Discount rate 4.07% 4.07% 3.83% 3.83%
Expected return on plan assets 8.00 7.00 8.00 7.00

34



EMORY UNIVERSITY
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

August 31, 2018 and 2017

Emory Healthcare Plan Assets

The Plan’s investment objectives are to protect long-term asset value by applying prudent, low-risk,
high-quality investment disciplines and to enhance the values by maximizing investment returns through
active security management within the framework of the Plan’s investment policy. Asset allocation strategies
and investment management structure are designed to meet the Plan’s investment objectives.

The Plan’s expected long-term rate of return on assets is determined by reviewing the historical return of
each asset category comprising the Plan’s target asset allocation.

The following table summarizes the Plan’s assets, which are recorded at fair value as of August 31 (in
thousands):

2018
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Short-term investments and
cash equivalents $ 2,103 (595) 2,698 —% 1%
Commingled funds - equity 174,329 — 174,329 70 69
Commingled funds - fixed income 74,940 — 74,940 30 30
Total investments $ 251,372 (595) 251,967 100% 100%
2017
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Short-term investments and
cash equivalents $ 354 (332) 686 —% —%
Commingled funds - equity 163,270 — 163,270 70 70
Commingled funds - fixed income 71,494 — 71,494 30 30
Total investments $ 235,118 (332) 235,450 100% 100%

SJHS Pension Plan Assets

Under the terms of the agreement forming the JOC, the assets of the SJHS Pension Plan formally remain
assets of SJHS and the plan assets remain invested in the CHE Trinity Health Pension Investment Program.
Accordingly, neither the JOC nor Emory Healthcare has discretion over the management of the plan assets.
However, the plan assets related to the entities contributed to the JOC (and certain other employees leased
to the JOC) are contractually required to be clearly separated from the plan assets of the other entities
participating in the CHE Trinity Health Employee Pension Program. The SJHS Pension Plan’s investment
objectives are to protect long-term asset value by applying prudent, low-risk, high-quality investment
disciplines and to enhance the values by maximizing investment returns through active security management
within the framework of the plan’s investment policy. Asset allocation strategies and investment
management structure are designed to meet the plan’s investment objectives.
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The SJHS Pension Plan’s expected long-term rate of return on assets is determined by reviewing the
historical return of each asset category comprising the plan’s target asset allocation.

The following table summarizes the Plan’s assets, which are recorded at fair value as of August 31 (in
thousands):

2018
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Short-term investments and
cash equivalents $ 4,814 2,067 2,747 2% 4%
Commingled funds - equity 66,187 27,008 39,179 52 55
Commingled funds - fixed income 31,751 31,751 35 26
Managed funds 18,636 — 18,636 11 15
Total investments $ 121,388 29,075 92,313 100% 100%
2017
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Short-term investments and
cash equivalents $ 3,990 1,868 2,122 —% 4%
Commingled funds - equity 54,671 23,190 31,481 50 49
Commingled funds - fixed income 35,868 — 35,868 40 33
Managed funds 15,787 — 15,787 10 14
Total investments $ 110,316 25,058 85,258 100% 100%
Cash Flows

Emory Healthcare expects to contribute $10.5 million to the Emory Healthcare Pension Plan and $6.4 million
to the STHS Pension Plan in fiscal year 2019.

Expected Future Benefit Payments

Emory Healthcare annual future benefit payments, excluding lump-sum settlements, are expected to range
from $8.7 million to $14.3 million for the next five years. STHS Pension Plan annual future benefit payments,
excluding lump-sum settlements, are expected to range from $6.2 million to $7.6 million for the next five
years.

Other Items
Emory Healthcare uses the straight-line method to amortize prior service cost for both plans.

Postretirement Healthcare and Life Insurance Benefits

The University sponsors a postretirement life insurance and healthcare benefits plan. Participants hired after
2002 pay the full retiree-specific premium equivalent and are therefore assumed to pay the full cost of their
coverage. The University and Emory Healthcare each fund a separate trust (VEBA Trust) for retiree health
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and life benefits. The assets of the VEBA Trust are invested primarily in equity and fixed-income securities.
The University funds these benefits only to the extent of current retiree claims. The University measures its
participation in the VEBA Trust at August 31 each fiscal year.

The changes in the accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) as of August 31 are as follows
(in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory Emory
University Healthcare Total Total
APBO, beginning of year $ 102,631 58,601 161,232 161,116
Service cost 1,680 713 2,393 2,308
Interest cost 3,634 2,039 5,673 5,181
Actuarial gains (2,201) (1,121) (3,322) (2,602)
Benefits paid (3,072) (2,256) (5,328) (4,771)
APBO, end of year $ 102,672 57,976 160,648 161,232

The changes in the fair value of plan assets, funded status of the plan, and the status of the accrued
postretirement benefit obligation recognized in the accompanying consolidated statements of financial
position as of August 31 are as follows (in thousands):

Emory Emory
University Healthcare Total Total
Fair value of plan assets,
beginning of year $ 68,209 20,452 88,661 80,416
Actual return on plan assets 5,234 1,401 6,635 9,623
Benefits paid by Emory — (2,256) (2,256) (1,378)
Fair value of plan assets,
end of year $ 73,443 19,597 93,040 88,661
Funded status - accrued postretirement benefit
cost recognized in the consolidated
statements of financial position $ (29,229) (38,379) (67,608) (72,571)

Actuarial assumptions used to determine the values of the APBO and the benefit costs for years ended
August 31, 2018 and 2017 included a discount rate of 4.31% and 4.11%, respectively. Since the plan was
amended on April 11, 2002 to limit the University’s liability for future medical care cost increases to 4.00%,
the per capita cost increase of healthcare benefits is capped at 4.00%. The estimated long-term rate of return
on plan assets was 8.00% for the University and Emory Healthcare for both years ended August 31, 2018
and 2017.
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The components of net periodic postretirement benefit cost for years ended August 31 were as follows
(in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory Emory
University Healthcare Total Total
Service cost of benefits earned $ 1,680 713 2,393 2,308
Interest cost on APBO 3,634 2,039 5,673 5,181
Expected return on plan assets (5,334) (1,559) (6,893) (6,218)
Recognized net actuarial loss 2,216 2,350 4,566 6,126
Net periodic postretirement
benefit cost $ 2,196 3,543 5,739 7,397

The amounts accumulated in unrestricted net assets follow (in thousands):

2018 2017
Emory Emory
University Healthcare Total Total
Net unrecognized actuarial loss $ 39,610 20,749 60,359 68,254
Prior service cost (146) 120 (26) 46
Total 39,464 20,869 60,333 68,300

In fiscal year 2019, net unrecognized actuarial losses of $2.0 million for Emory University and $1.9 million
for Emory Healthcare are expected to be amortized from unrestricted net assets into net periodic
postretirement benefit cost.

Plan Assets

The investment committee of the Emory University board of trustees approves the investment guidelines and
asset allocation targets for the pension benefits and postretirement benefits plans. The primary objective of
the investments is to ensure the solvency of the plans over time to meet plan obligations. The secondary
objective is to meet or exceed the plans’ actuarial assumed rate of return over time without taking excess
risk. The funds are diversified by asset class in accordance with established allocation targets and rebalanced
as needed. Specific investments are apportioned to a combination of institutional pooled funds and mutual
funds.
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The following table summarizes the University’s VEBA Trust assets as of August 31 (in thousands):

2018
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value NAV Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Commingled funds - equity $ 55,891 14,807 13,702 27,382 75% 76%
Commingled funds - fixed income 17,552 — 8,893 8,659 25 24
Total investments $ 73,443 14,807 22,595 36,041 100% 100%
2017
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value NAV Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Commingled funds - equity $ 52,714 15,026 13,656 24,032 75% 77%
Commingled funds - fixed income 15,495 — 8,968 6,527 25 23
Total investments $ 68,209 15,026 22,624 30,559 100% 100%

The following table summarizes Emory Healthcare’s VEBA Trust assets as of August 31 (in thousands):

2018
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value NAV Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Commingled funds - equity $ 14,597 — 4,837 9,760 75% 74%
Commingled funds - fixed income 5,021 — 3,045 1,976 25 26
Short term investment
and cash equivalents (21) — (21) — — —
Total investments $ 19,597 — 7,861 11,736 100% 100
2017
Total Fair value hierarchy Target Total asset
fair value NAV Level 1 Level 2 allocation allocation
Investments:
Commingled funds - equity $ 15,377 — 4,563 10,814 75% 75%
Commingled funds - fixed income 5,075 — 3,067 2,008 25 25
Total investments $ 20,452 — 7,630 12,822 100% 100%
Cash Flows

Emory Healthcare does not expect to contribute to the postretirement benefit plan during fiscal year 2019.
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Expected Future Benefit Payments

Annual future benefit payments are expected to range from $3.5 million to $4.7 million for Emory University
and from $2.0 million to $2.8 million for Emory Healthcare for the next five years.

Charity Care and Community Benefits

Emory Healthcare provides care to patients who meet certain criteria under their charity care policies without
charge or at amounts less than their established rates. Because such operating companies do not pursue
collection of amounts determined to qualify as charity care, such amounts are not included in net patient
service revenue. Emory Healthcare applies the measurement and disclosure provisions of FASB ASU No.
2010-23, Health Care Entities (Topic 954): Measuring Charity Care for Disclosure. ASU No. 2010-23
amends ASC Subtopic 954-605, Health Care Entities — Revenue Recognition, and requires that cost be used
as the measurement basis for charity care disclosure purposes.

Records are maintained to identify and monitor the level of charity care provided. These records include the
amount of charges foregone and actual costs for services furnished under its charity and indigent care
policies. The cost of charity care provided totaled approximately $99.7 million and $74.7 million for the
years ended August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively. Emory Healthcare estimated these costs by applying a
ratio of cost to gross charges to the gross uncompensated charges associated with providing care to the charity
patients.

Functional Expenses

The consolidated statements of activities include the following functional expenses for the years ended
August 31 (in thousands):

2018 2017

Instruction $ 458,270 454,276
Research 516,489 490,306
Public service 120,233 102,796
Academic support 174,975 162,308
Student services 102,684 95,017
Institutional support 205,043 199,057
Scholarships and fellowships 23,949 17,668
Medical services 306,932 263,842
Healthcare services 3,398,654 3,145,643
Auxiliary enterprises 46,533 46,554
Independent operations 22,652 22,062

Total operating expenses $ 5,376,414 4,999,529

Costs related to the University’s operation and maintenance of property, including depreciation of property
and equipment and interest on related debt, are allocated to program and supporting activities based upon
information reported in the space study and debt financing records. Total amounts allocated in 2018 and
2017 were $188.7 million and $192.0 million, respectively. Fundraising costs were approximately $38.9
million and $34.1 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
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Medical Professional and General Liability Insurance Coverage

CCIC, Emory Healthcare’s wholly owned offshore captive insurer, provides claims-made primary medical
professional and general liability coverage for the University, the Hospitals, Emory Clinic, Emory Specialty
Associates, and Wesley Woods Center.

As of August 31,2018 and 2017, the University has recorded an accrual for estimated losses associated with
all retained CCIC risks of approximately $144.6 million (discounted at 2%) and $121.5 million (discounted
at 2%), respectively.

Emory has purchased layered excess and umbrella insurance and reinsurance coverage beyond the amounts
retained by CCIC, through various carriers, for a total of $129.0 million per claim and in the aggregate.

The estimated liability for professional and general liability claims will be significantly affected if current
and future claims differ from historical trends. While the University monitors reported claims closely and
considers potential outcomes as estimated by its actuaries when determining its professional and general
liability accruals, the complexity of the claims, the extended period of time to settle the claims, and the wide
range of potential outcomes complicate the estimation. The University’s management believes adequate
provision has been made for the related risk.

Related-Party Transactions

The Carter Center, Inc. (CCI) is a nonprofit organization founded by former U.S. President Jimmy Carter
and Rosalynn Carter, which sponsors various domestic and international programs. The board of trustees of
CCI comprises 16 to 28 members, including its founders, and others as elected half by the University,
including the University’s president, and half by the Carter Center class trustees. The University’s board of
trustees has the authority to approve amendments to CCI’s articles of incorporation and bylaws.

Funds held in trust for others include $758.2 million and $708.4 million representing CCI’s investment in
the University’s long-term investment portfolio of August 31, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Commitments and Contingencies

The University is in the process of constructing, renovating, and equipping certain facilities for which the
outstanding commitments at August 31, 2018 totaled $68.2 million.

Expenditures and indirect costs related to federal and state grants and contracts are subject to adjustment
based upon review by the granting agencies. The amounts, if any, of expenditures, which may be disallowed
by the granting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although management expects they will not have
a material effect on the University’s consolidated financial statements.

Lawsuits and claims have been filed against the University in the ordinary course of business. As one of the
nation’s largest research universities and academic medical centers, the University has active litigation that
takes several forms. The University’s policy is to accrue for litigation and claims when such amounts are
probable and can be reasonably estimated based on consultation with external legal counsel and Emory
General Counsel review. In addition, the University is subject to many federal and state regulations, and as
a result, there may be one or more pending government investigations ongoing at any time. While the
outcome of many of these actions is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of management that any
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resulting liability from these actions will not have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial
position or operating results of the University. The University also has a comprehensive program of primary
and excess insurance. Management of the University believes any current pending lawsuit subjecting the
University to liability would not have a materially adverse effect on the University’s consolidated financial
position.

Subsequent Events

Emory has evaluated subsequent events after the consolidated statement of financial position date of August
31, 2018 through January 30, 2019, the date the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued
and noted that there are no other items to disclose except as follow:

On September 1, 2018, Emory Healthcare entered into a Definitive Agreement with DeKalb Regional Health
System (DRHS) and became the sole and controlling member of DRHS upon acquisition of DRHS’s assets
and liabilities with the goal of DRHS being integrated operationally, financially, and clinically into Emory
Healthcare. DRHS operates a 451-bed general acute care hospital with a freestanding surgery center in
Decatur, Georgia; a 100-bed general acute care hospital in Hillandale, Georgia; a 76-bed long-term acute
care hospital in Decatur, Georgia; and a physician network of primary care, occupational, and specialty
physician practices. The terms of Definitive Agreement addressed, among other matters, the positioning of
currently outstanding DRHS indebtedness, commitments of future capital funding, and amendments to the
current long-term and transfer agreement between DRHS and the Hospital Authority of DeKalb County,
Georgia.

Effective September 1, 2018, Emory University and Children’s Healthcare of Atlanta, Inc. (Children’s), a
Georgia nonprofit corporation, have entered into a Master Affiliation Agreement (the affiliation agreement)
to establish the Emory and Children’s Pediatric Institute (the Institute). The affiliation agreement restructures
previous arrangements between the parties for pediatric teaching, research, and related clinical services.
Under the terms of the affiliation, approximately 350 Emory University School of Medicine Department of
Pediatrics faculty physicians and PhD researchers have transferred to the Institute and became employees
thereof. The ownership of the Institute will be 50% Emory University and 50% Children’s with equal
representation on the governing board.

On September 13, 2018, Emory issued $164.4 million of its tax-exempt Commercial Paper program to
defease DRHS’s outstanding debt, DeKalb County Hospital Authority Revenue Anticipation Certificates
(DeKalb Medical Center Inc. Project), Series 2010 issued in the original aggregate principal amount of
$183.1 million.
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EMORY UNIVERSITY (excluding Emory Healthcare)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017 Schedule 1
(Dollars in thousands)
August 31, 2018 August 31, 2017
ASSETS:

Cash and cash equivalents $ 35,581 $ 9,726
Student accounts receivable, net 109,783 57,713
Loans receivable, net 23,138 24,921
Contributions receivable, net 396,127 80,407
Other receivables, net 156,489 142,864
Prepaid expenses, deferred charges and other assets 249,179 230,259
Investments 7,795,884 7,698,190
Interests in perpetual funds held by others 1,311,406 1,244,906
Property and equipment, net 1,974,860 1,953,229
Due from affiliates 270,014 136,286
Total assets $ 12,322,461 $ 11,578,501

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 162,689 150,405
Deferred tuition and other revenue 468,039 429,085
Interest payable 29,266 29,145
Liability for derivative instruments 127,870 187,042
Bonds and notes payable 1,952,008 1,984,348
Accrued liabilities for benefit obligations and professional liabilities 163,921 151,075
Funds held in trust for others 791,841 747,109
Annuities payable 15,704 14,921
Government advances for federal loan programs 18,659 18,721
Asset retirement obligation 52,434 50,097
Total liabilities 3,782,431 3,761,948
Unrestricted net assets 3,128,635 2,952,126
Temporarily restricted net assets 3,191,997 2,704,860
Permanently restricted net assets 2,219,398 2,159,567
Total net assets 8,540,030 7,816,553
Total liabilities and net assets $ 12,322,461 $ 11,578,501

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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EMORY UNIVERSITY (excluding Emory Healthcare)

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES
Years Ended August 31, 2018 and 2017
(Dollars in thousands)

OPERATING REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT:
Tuition and fees
Less: scholarship allowances
Net tuition and fees
Endowment spending distribution
Distributions from perpetual funds
Other investment income designated for current operations
Gifts and contributions
Grants and contracts
Indirect cost recoveries
Medical services
Sales and services of auxiliary enterprises
Independent operations
Other revenue
Net assets released from restrictions

Total operating revenues
Operating support from Emory Healthare
Total operating revenues and other support

OPERATING EXPENSES:
Salaries
Fringe benefits
Student financial aid
Professional fees and purchased services
Supplies and pharmaceuticals
Other operating expenses
Interest on indebtedness
Depreciation

Total operating expenses
NET OPERATING ACTIVITIES:

NONOPERATING ACTIVITIES, NET:

Investment return in excess of spending distribution
for current operations

Change in undistributed income from perpetual funds held by others

Gifts and contributions

Loss on disposal of property and equipment

Loss on defeasance of debt

Change in fair value of derivative instruments

Pension and postretirement plans

Other nonoperating items, net

Net assets released from restrictions

Total nonoperating activities, net
CHANGE IN NET ASSETS
BEGINNING NET ASSETS

ENDING NET ASSETS

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

Schedule 2
Temporarily Permanently Total Total
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted August 31,2018 August 31,2017
$ 710,471 - - 710,471 $ 675,179
(276,305) - - (276,305) (253,897)
434,166 - - 434,166 421,282
182,562 - - 182,562 179,696
35,377 - - 35,377 34,873
72,934 - - 72,934 65,138
43,350 12,404 - 55,754 44,285
470,924 - - 470,924 470,375
144,026 - - 144,026 131,012
336,141 - - 336,141 301,404
74,481 - - 74,481 74,464
24,348 - - 24,348 23,097
54,945 - - 54,945 56,620
29,726 (13,149) - 16,577 29,384
1,902,980 (745) - 1,902,235 1,831,630
109,957 - - 109,957 106,545
2,012,937 (745) - 2,012,192 1,938,175
1,123,502 - - 1,123,502 1,059,083
273,774 - - 273,774 253,270
19,133 - - 19,133 13,159
201,648 - - 201,648 181,096
72,028 - - 72,028 70,000
130,701 - - 130,701 112,924
51,431 - - 51,431 59,887
138,345 - - 138,345 133,516
2,010,562 - - 2,010,562 1,882,935
2,375 (745) - 1,630 55,240
116,439 124,188 (3,319) 237,308 345,223
- - 26,880 26,880 74,558
4311) 386,157 36,427 418,273 69,912
(1,494) - - (1,494) (11,510)
- - - - (8,659)
59,172 - - 59,172 79,619
5,273 - - 5,273 5,523
(6,077) (754) (157) (6,988) 5,818
5,132 (21,709) - (16,577) (29,384)
174,134 487,882 59,831 721,847 531,100
176,509 487,137 59,831 723,477 586,340
2,952,126 2,704,860 2,159,567 7,816,553 7,230,213
$ 3,128,635 $ 3,191,997 $ 2,219,398 8,540,030 $ 7,816,553
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EMORY UNIVERSITY (excluding Emory Healthcare) Schedule 3

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
Year Ended August 31, 2018
(Dollars in thousands)

2018
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Change in net assets $ 723,477
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash
used in by operating activities:
Contributions for endowment and capital projects (418,273)
Net realized gains on sale of investments (196,549)
Net unrealized gains on investments (270,605)
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 1,494
Interests in perpetual funds held by others (26,880)
Depreciation and amortization 138,345
Provision for uncollectable accounts 63,751
Accretion/amortization of bond discounts/premiums and issuance costs (3,239)
Actuarial adjustments for retiree pension and benefit plans (5,273)
Change in fair value of derivative instruments (59,172)
Decrease (increase) in:
Accounts and other receivables, net (129,446)
Contributions receivable for operations 21,167
Prepaid expenses, deferred charges, and other assets (26,690)
Due to/from affiliates (133,728)
Increase in:
Accounts payable, accrued liabilities, and interest payable 12,405
Asset retirement obligation 2,337
Accrued liabilities for benefit obligations and professional liabilities 18,119
Deferred tuition and other revenue 38,954
Net cash used in operating activities (249,806)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Disbursements of loans to students (2,713)
Repayment of loans from students 4,496
Proceeds from sales and maturities of investments 7,643,665
Purchases of investments (7,274,205)
Purchases of property, plant, and equipment (161,470)
Increase in funds held in trust for others 44,732
Net cash provided by investing activities 254,505
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Proceeds from contributions for endowment and capital projects 41,766
Principal repayments of bonds payable (29,101)
Recovery of posted collateral for debt-related derivatives 7,770
Increase in annuities payable 783
Decrease in government advances for federal loan programs (62)
Net cash provided by financing activities 21,156
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,855
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 9,726
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 35581

See accompanying independent auditors' report.
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